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Highlights of the Year 2015
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April

e The Group commenced to ship two
models of mobile phones designed
by the Group for a well-known
brand manufacturer (ODM) to
América Maévil of Mexico.

June

e Vehicle terminals designed and
manufactured by the Group for
well-known automobile companies
came into successful mass
production.

e The Group has made intelligent
core-module products into mass
shipment.

e The Group cooperated with
a famous security brand to
develop guarding products and
commenced mass production.

e Robot automated test equipment
used in motherboard of mobiles
have been successfully introduced
in the whole country and
clients include top 10 handsets
manufacturers in the PRC.

July
e The Group's LTE CAT3 module SIM
7100A has been certified by AT&T.

August

e The first mobile ODM designed by
the Group for a well-known mobile
internet brand came into mass
production.

September

e The Group began its business
cooperation in terminal of ODM
with wireless branch of top
telecommunications devices
enterprises in the world.

October
e The Group launched software of
data platform in version 3.0.

November

e The Group commenced cooperation
with a famous POS brand in LTE POS
products.

e The Group’s intelligent manufacturing
business were interviewed and
reported consecutively by several
media such as Phoenix TV, Dragon
TV and Wen Wei Po.

December

The Group's LTE CAT3 module
SIM 7100JE and SIM7100JC were
certified by Softbank and Docomo
respectively.

Yunmao IOT of the Group
attended the 2nd World Internet
Conference held in Wuzhen as the
only attending manufacturer of
automatic vending machines

SIMCom, a subsidiary of the
Group was approved to establish
a “Postdoctoral Research
Workplace” by Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security of
the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement
T S

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of SIM
Technology Group Limited (“Company”), | am presenting the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 (“Year”).

For the Year, the Group achieved a profit attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$64.6 million (2014: HK$24.0 million). The basic
earnings per share was HK2.53 cents (2014: HK0.94 cent).
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend to

shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2015, the Group’s shift in business positioning and development
strategies after its business transformation has begun to show
results. In addition to maintaining the growth in its Original Design
Manufacturer (“ODM”) handset business and wireless communication
modules business, the Group has also actively expanded the industrial
application terminal, Internet of Things (“IOT”) and the intelligent robotic
manufacturing businesses. During the Year, most of the core business
(as defined on page 17) of the Group recorded growth in revenue, which
has laid a solid foundation for the sustainable development of its overall

operation in the future.
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TREWE

For the handsets and solutions business, the Group has continued to
develop the high-end ODM consumer handset business as well as actively
expanded its business in industry and 10T application mobile terminals.
During the Year, shipment volume, sales and profit of the two production

lines have shown substantial growth when compared with last year.

Thanks to the strong demand for the Group’s 2G, 3G and 4G wireless
communication modules from domestic and overseas markets, the
communication modules business has set another new record in annual
shipment volume. The increase in shipment volume in Europe, Southeast
Asia and Australia exceeded 50%. Thus, annual shipment volume,
turnover and gross profit have shown notable growth. However, gross
profit margin for the Year dropped slightly due to the rapid reduction in
the average selling price of 2G products and the higher investment costs

of new 4G products.

As for the 10T business, the Group has continued to boost the investment
in the value-added services of intelligent vending machines. It has
expanded the business from retail and finance leasing to sectors
including beverage trading, Online-To-Offline (“020") operation
of vending machines and intelligent vending machine controller
manufacturing, etc. Besides, the Group has established the cloud
computing and big data service platform, which can support smart home
elderly service systems, health monitoring systems and vehicle anti-
theft management systems. While such business has yet to contribute
to the financial results, it has laid down a well-defined profitability model
and potential for replication, giving the Group a solid foundation for

development of the IOT business.

The Group has actively expanded the intelligent manufacturing
business in recent years. Starting from its own handset plant, the
Group has developed robot automated test equipment. It has also
acquired a number of non-standard automation integration companies
by way of industry association as a means to enter other sectors in the
manufacturing industry of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).
During the Year under review, the business has achieved a breakthrough
after starting from scratch. Although the scale was not enormous, the
intelligent manufacturing business is expected to generate fruitful

revenue and gross profit for the Group in the years ahead.
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Handsets and solutions business

In the PRC, the depth and breadth of subsidies for the handset operators
has further shrunk, leading to further reductions in the share of mass
procurement from operators, thus resulting in limited profits for branded
manufacturers and ODMs. Many manufacturers have reduced product
introductions to the market, resulting in the domestic consumer handset
market gradually returning to branded manufacturers. Smartphones
have played a key role in penetrating the mobile internet market, and this
phenomenon has driven some internet and other consumption brands
and channels to transfer their own core business to mobile terminals
as well as launch their self-developed handsets. During the Year, the
Group has seized the opportunities to focus its efforts on differentiated
customers and products, enabling it to achieve better results in the
handset business. The Group will continue to closely monitor its progress

as it proceeds in this direction to capture more market opportunities.

Demand from industrial application terminals has continued to rise along
with the further expansion and the firm foothold achieved by the 10T
market. Compared with consumer handsets, there is still huge room for
development in the sale of the industrial terminal market. In particular,
the rapid growth in specific industries such as information and public
safety, mobile office, Internet of Vehicles (“loV”) and mobile payment
is set to further stimulate demand for industrial terminal markets and
products, resulting in the continued expansion of market capacity. During
the Year, riding on the experience in developing handsets, the Group has
developed the handset chip-based core board (i.e. an intelligent module)
and achieved great success. The product has been widely applied in
areas such as mobile payment Point-of-Sale (“POS”) machines and the
loV.
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TREWE

Wireless communication modules business

During the Year, the Group has recorded growth in overall shipment
volume, revenue and gross profit of wireless communication modules.
The growth was attributable to the varying degrees of increases in product
demand in domestic and overseas markets. As for the products, sales
of 3G modules recorded growth of more than 30% when compared
with last year, and sales of Global Navigation Satellite System (“GNSS”)
modules also recorded a growth of three times when compared with last
year. The Group has also increased the sales of 4G products with higher
selling prices and two of its important ODM projects have started mass
shipment in 2015, driving higher growth in annual sales and gross profit.
However, despite the growth in sales volume, gross profit margin for the
Year has dropped due to the greater reduction in average selling price of
module products in the market, especially 2G products, and the higher

investment costs for the new 4G products.

As for the market, the 10T market in China has continued to flourish.
Its mainstream application markets including wireless Automated Meter
Reading (“AMR”), security and surveillance, smart home, loV, mobile
payment POS, smart home electrical appliances and health care sectors
have all shown growth to a varying extent. The application terminals
in various industries have been upgraded to complement the rapid
growth and popularity of 4G technology, which has further facilitated
the innovation and continuous growth of the 10T market. Thanks to a
comprehensive product series, extensive industry application experience
and strategic cooperation with major customers in the industry, the
Group was able to maintain its leadership position in the application
in loV, POS, wireless AMR, security and surveillance applications,
etc. Regarding the emerging smart home, smart electrical appliances
and healthcare markets, the Group has actively developed supporting
products and conducted research and development (“R&D”) for terminal
products which quickly meet the needs of customers and have achieved
outstanding results. These major application markets are expected to see
robust growth in the future. In addition, the Group has also increased
its efforts in developing tailored projects for major customers in specific
industries, thereby assisting customers to speed up R&D in terminal

products and save development costs.
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In overseas markets, Europe has gradually overcome the impact of
financial crisis as a result of the change in economic condition. Customers
in Western Europe have placed higher recognition on the Group’s 2G
modules with a high price-performance ratio and demand has been
rising. Customers in Eastern Europe have a strong demand for 3G
products while demand for 2G, 3G and GNSS modules has increased
substantially in Southeast Asia and Australia, increasing the shipment
volume in these regions for more than 50% annually. As for North
America, the shipment volume of the Group’s 3G modules was stable
and recorded a slight increase. Our SIM7100A 4G module was certified
by AT&T and was applied in products by certain customers. The Group
is also designing 4G CAT1 modules which meet the requirements set
by AT&T, as well as developing the module project in collaboration
with Verizon and Sprint. In Japan, certification for 4G modules has
been gradually completed and the design work for customers’ terminal
products has also commenced. The Group expects these collaborative
modules and terminal projects with operators will generate higher

revenue in 2016.

10T business

In recent years, the Group’s big data platform has continued to focus
on services for the elderly, as well as in the transportation and security
sectors. It has also established an elderly cloud big data service platform,
an loV big data platform and an organisational smart elderly management
platform. Currently, the Group has deployed more than 50,000 units of
virtual machines used for big data processing, providing all-round cloud

computing services for its customers.

In 2015, based on the elderly cloud big data service platform, the Group
has introduced the advanced elderly service concept from Sweden. It
has implemented and completed the development of the elderly service
system of Yiheyuan (E8701%2), a high-end elderly organisation in Shanghai
which has received high attention and affirmation from the leaders in the
city. The Group has built an Location Based Services (“LBS”) loV system
with several hundred thousand vehicles connected to the system so far.
The system can enable the simultaneous connection of up to ten million

vehicle terminals and thus effectively lowers the loss rate of vehicles.
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After two years of development, the Group has enhanced the digital and
networking functions of its vending machines by uploading the status
and transaction information of vending machines to the cloud platform
in real time. With such a comprehensive 020 platform, this business
possesses huge development potential. The vending machine operation,
maintenance and management platform developed by the Group adopts
high performance servers, highly effective program designs and language
and a highly functional database and structure model which is able to
support up to millions of terminal connections. The platform can assist
customers to perform instant management of traditional operations
businesses, as well as support various 020 businesses including
advertising, online payment and purchase points redemption in loyalty

programs.

During the Year under review, the scope of the automatic vending
machine business expanded from retail and finance leasing to more
areas including beverage trading, vending machine 020 operations
and the manufacturing of smart vending machine controllers. This year,
the Group’s subsidiary Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited (“Shanghai
Yunhao") experienced a more rapid business growth when compared to
last year. To attract more operators to join its platform, Shanghai Yunhao
has broadened its scope by adding the front-end supply chain business
for automatic vending machines and the provision of beverage and food
wholesale and logistics service during the Year. Despite the volume
of wholesale goods recording a greater growth in the Year, the gross
profit margin of the new beverage trading and distribution business was
relatively lower. As a result, the sales of this business recorded notable
growth as compared to last year while its gross profit margin for the
Year greatly decreased. Regarding the adjustment in the finance leasing
business, the Group shortened the lease period of certain customers and
allowed them to buy the automatic vending machines in order to reduce
the scale of finance leasing, lower the burden and risks of its assets and
concentrate its resources to develop the profitability of its online business

in the future.
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Intelligent manufacturing business

In 2015, the Group placed great emphasis on the development of the
robotic automation business and officially established the intelligent
manufacturing business segment. The Group seamlessly integrated its
self-developed standard robot arm and visual system and developed
a handset motherboard Printed Circuit Board Assembly (“PCBA")
automatic testing system, which replaced more than ten testing workers.
During the Year, the Group completed the equipment upgrade from
the first generation to the third generation, further enhancing its price-
performance ratio. Consequently, the system can enhance the quality
level while greatly lowering the manufacturing cost of handsets. Currently,
the equipment is widely used by the leading handset processing plants in

the PRC and has been highly praised in the industry.

During the Year, the Group officially formed the “SIM Intelligent
Manufacturing System (“IMS”) manufacturing industry alliance”.
The alliance has attracted a group of some non-standard automation
integration companies. Through this platform, they can realise their
strengths in their respective technology fields and most familiar markets
and utilise the shared resources of the platform to grow rapidly. This
in turn is facilitating the Group’s intelligent manufacturing business to
expand rapidly from the handset manufacturing industry to other new
labour-intensive fields, as it transforms from a singleunit intelligent
equipment provider to a turnkey total automated solutions restructuring

service provider.

The Group aims to comply with the Industry 4.0 and Made in China
2025 strategic directives. With the goal of replacing manpower through
automated restructuring, the Group has deployed Process Control System
(“PCS”), Manufacturing Execution System (“MES”) and Enterprise
Resource Planning (“ERP”) systems in its factories to implement an
information management system across the entire manufacturing
process, to expedite networking of all equipment and, in turn, making
its factories more intelligent and flexible. The Group has formed a
team to develop intelligent manufacturing business with the aim to
achieve restructuring by utilising intelligent applications in the high-end
manufacturing industry. Negotiations with several interested enterprises
are underway. At the same time, the Group is accelerating the R&D of its

proprietary MES.
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In 2015, the Group specially engaged the world’s top visual analysts
and established the SIM IMS research institute to focus on developing
proprietary visual and artificial intelligent applications, some of which

have been successfully applied in the market.

Display modules business

The Group has decided to reduce the operation scale of this business
since 2013 and gradually cleared the inventory, idle materials and
equipment production lines. Currently the Group is now procuring display
and touch panel module products from external suppliers to meet its

internal demand.

Properties development

As at 31 December 2015, Phase | of “The Riverside Country” (2 e &)
#IKER) , which is located in Shenyang City, the PRC, has a total of 404
residential units, of which 389 units had been sold. Phase Il has a total of
756 residential units, of which 636 units had been sold. Phase Il has a
total of 456 residential units, of which 108 units had been sold.

As at 31 December 2015, Phase | of “Seven River in Sweet” (+B2&FX),
which is located in Taizhou City, the PRC, has a total of 310 residential
units, of which 179 units had been sold. The construction of the Phase I

has been started in the second half of year 2015.

The revenue recognised for Year was amounted to HK$161.9 million
(2014: HK$211.2 million) with gross profit margin of 15.8% (2014:
21.0%).
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PROSPECTS

In the future, the Group will continue to implement its ongoing strategies.
As for the handset business, the Group believes the business will maintain
steady growth. The size of the consumer handset market is expected to
remain unchanged in 2016. At the same time, the consolidation of brands
will be further enhanced and the price and market competition will be
intensified. The Group will continue to actively strive to secure high-end
differentiated customers so as to bring a stable revenue to the handset
business. With the continued growth in the 10T and industrial application
markets, the Group expects that the industrial applications terminal
business will achieve greater growth compared to 2015. Thus, the Group
will continue to increase investment in industry terminals and broaden
the product range and service scope with the aim to provide more quality
products and gain profit. Apart from strengthening close cooperation
with the existing consumer and industry customers, the Group will
continue to actively explore domestic and international customers with
good market prospects and development potential. The Group has
begun stringent control over R&D and operating costs of several major
industrial customers in the second half of 2015, which is expected to
bring a greater contribution to the business performance in the second
half of 2016. Regarding the development of overseas markets, the Group
will maintain its focus on the economically developed markets such as
Europe, America and Japan. Looking ahead to 2016, the Group believes
the business of these markets will further expand.

Within the coming three years, the wireless communication module 2G
products will remain the core of 10T applications. The Group will continue
to enrich its 2G product range and boost competitiveness of its products.
As there is still room for growth in the 3G product market, the Group will
launch 3G products with a higher price-performance ratio in 2016 while
continuously increasing investment in the GNSS products and optimise
the product range. 4G module products are the Group’s most important
focus and have enormous room for growth. The Group has commenced
mass production of several CAT3/CAT4 products and will design CAT4
and CAT1 products with a high price-performance ratio. Meanwhile, it
will continue to monitor the evolution of the Narrow Band 10T (“NB-10T")
technology application trend and continue to enhance its relationship
with major domestic and overseas operators. Given the good results and
the solid foundation laid in the past years, the Group will still be able to
maintain a leading position in the global I0T module application and
solutions market.
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TREWE

As for the 10T business, the Group will continue to further develop the
value-added business within the intelligent automatic vending machine
industry, accelerate cooperation within the cloud-based business. It
will also step up promotion efforts of the 020 business, confirm the
development of the Shanghai Yunhao division and regional branch
offices, explore new business cooperation models in the industry and
rapidly expand its scale of business. Moreover, the Group will continue
to expand the cloud and big data service platform and provide a strong
cloud computing service and data to support its self-developed smart
home elderly service system, health monitoring systems and vehicle anti-
theft management systems, and to promote these systems to domestic

and overseas markets.

In 2016, the Group is expanding intelligent automation applications in
the handset manufacturing business by, firstly, helping customers to
implement intelligent applications throughout the whole factory, from
automation of motherboard manufacturing to testing of the entire system,
the automation of packaging and then the MES for the management of
handset manufacturing as well as intelligent warehousing and intelligent
logistics and, secondly, speeding up the extension of its business to other
fields apart from the handset manufacturing industry. At present,
automation and intelligent applications are the shared goals in the
PRC’s manufacturing industry. Enhancement of production efficiency,
automation and transformation have become urgent needs of all major
enterprises. The management expects that 2016 should be a fast-growing
period for the intelligent manufacturing business of the Group. Riding
on the success of 2015, the Group will continue to increase investment
and expedite the pace of development in a bid to drive the intelligent
manufacturing business to achieve a few-fold increase and to become

one of the Group’s core businesses in the future.
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The management believes that the Group has identified new growth
points and development directions to lay a foundation for its sustainable
development. The management is confident that the growth of its new
business is set to advance the Group'’s business to new heights in the

future.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my cordial appreciation to
all members of the management and the employees for their efforts and
dedication throughout the Year. Finally, | would like to thank the financial
institutions, Shareholders and investors for their continuous support and

confidence in us.

Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016

= |

n's Statement_—_

IRBEY B

BEERA  NEED LR T HeEREM
BRIM RAUSERRETTER KT
m - ERERRED  RRHBEEHEFNK
RUERBAEENEREANN —RFIE -

EERTHARE MR  BS - HERE
RETRELENHAEMAT IR - AAYL
ARATNAEE TRAEEARRRTEHE
SECE

BB
T

&5 —F-AF=A=1MA



SMART Machine and @ .
SMART Module for Internet of Thlngs
%WZHH—I'TJQE/] -

Eazﬂﬁ"ﬂ%’ﬁ%ﬁiﬂ

_'




BRANKEBEERAR —F aFF%

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue from sale of
handsets and solutions, wireless communication modules, display
modules, internet of things business and intelligent manufacturing
business (“core business”) increased significantly by 41.8% to
HK$3,035.4 million (2014: HK$2,141.2 million). The revenue from the
sale of residential units in China amounted to HK$161.9 million (2014
HK$211.2 million). The total revenue of the Group for the Year, included
revenue of core business and properties development, amounted to
HK$3,197.3 million (2014: HK$2,352.4 million).

The gross profit for core business of the Group for the Year increased
substantially by 55.8% year-on-year to HK$400.2 million (2014
HK$256.8 million). The gross profit margin for core business increased
to 13.2% (2014: 12.0%). The overall gross profit margin of the Group for
the Year was 13.3% (2014: 12.8%).

As a result of the significant increase in the revenue, the Group achieved
a profit attributable to owners of the Company which increased year-
on-year by 169.7% to HK$64.6 million (2014: HK$24.0 million) for the
Year. The basic earnings per share for the Year was HK2.53 cents (2014:
HK0.94 cent).
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Research and development expenses MERHAZRER

In 2015, the Group focused on the development of 10T and intelligent R-Z—RHF AEEEREVBBNRE R

manufacturing businesses. The number of design and development EEKOME RZZE—RF Rt LA

team members was 820 (2014: 800) in 2015. The R&D expenses, which B £EB820EZME (—ZZT—PU4E : 8004 ) °

amounted to HK$148.9 million (2014: HK$144.2 million), represented fift 2% 9 % 4 148,900,000 Tt ( —ZF — PO 4F -

4.7% (2014: 6.1%) of the Group’s revenue. 144,200,000 7C) * I ANEBWALI4.7% (=
ZTMF :6.1%) -
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Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for the Year increased by
26.3% to HK$128.3 million (2014: HK$101.6 million). The ratio of the
selling and distribution costs over revenue in 2015 was 4.0% (2014:
4.3%).

Administrative expenses
The Group’s administrative expenses for 2015 increased by 19.8% to
HK$102.9 million (2014: HK$85.9 million), representing 3.2% (2014

3.7%) of the revenue.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

BIRE R R AT
Segment results of core business BOEBRND BEE
Year ended 31 December 2015 Year ended 31 December 2014

BE-Z-AF+-AZ+-ALFE BE-Z-NFT-A=+—-AILFE

Gross

Gross Gross profit

Gross profit profit (loss)

Revenue profit margin Revenue (loss) margin

e EA=

LN E7 EFIE WA (EB) (EB%)

HK$'M HK$'M % HK$'M HK$'M %

BEET HEBER % HBERAT BEATL %

Handsets and solutions FHRMBRFR 2,043.2 235.8 11.5 15115 160.5 106
Wireless communication

modules ELBAER 638.9 94.7 14.8 557.3 90.8 16.3

Internet of things business #1487 273.0 42.2 15.5 57.8 135 23.4
Intelligent manufacturing

business BREERTS 80.3 27.5 34.2 = = =

Display modules BRESR - - - 14.6 (8.0) (54.8)

Total @t 3,0354 400.2 13.2 2,141.2 256.8 12.0

Handsets and solutions FREBRAR

During the Year, the Group has seized the opportunities to focus its
efforts on differentiated customers and products, enabling it to achieve
better results from the handset business. As a result, the revenue for
handsets and solutions increased significantly year-on-year by 35.2% to
HK$2,043.2 million (2014: HK$1,511.5 million) in 2015. The gross profit
margin for this segment increased slightly to 11.5% (2014: 10.6%) in
2015. The revenue of ODM business contributed to approximately 91%
of the revenue of this segment in 2015 (2014: 78%).

RAFE AEEMETHEAKS B
ERNBRAZELLNBEFMER  FEF#
EBHSRgHELE- Al —F— 1
FF R R EERA RO AR F KRN
35.2% %= 2,043,200,0007% ;T ( = F — g 4F :
1,511,500,000/ 7T ) o = F — f F itk 5 I
ZEFMEREBHKIEINE115%( ZF —MF -
10.6%) e R=ZZ—AH%F - ODMEBFUW AL I
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EEER WA

Wireless communication modules

During the Year, the Group has recorded growth in revenue and gross
profit of wireless communication modules. The growth was attributable
to the varying degree of increases in product demand in domestic and
overseas markets. However, gross profit margin for the Year has dropped
due to the greater reduction in average selling price of module products
in the market, especially 2G products, and the higher investment costs
for the new 4G products. In 2015, the revenue of this segment increased
by 14.6% as compared to that of year 2014, while the gross profit margin
decreased to 14.8% (2014: 16.3%).

Internet of things business

During the Year, the scope of the automatic vending machine business
expanded from retail and finance leasing to beverage trading, as a result,
the revenue of this segment increased significantly by 3.7 times as
compared to year 2014. Despite the volume of wholesale goods recording
a greater growth in the Year, the gross profit margin of the new beverage
trading and distribution business was relatively lower. As a result, the
gross profit margin of this segment for the Year greatly decreased to
15.5% (2014: 23.4%).

Intelligent manufacturing business

In 2015, the Group placed great emphasis on the development of the
robotic automation business and officially established the intelligent
manufacturing business segment. The revenue of this new business
segment amounted to HK$80.3 million for the Year and the gross profit

margin was 34.2%.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$298.4 million (31 December 2014: HK$291.8 million), among
which 71.6% was held in Renminbi, 28.3% was held in US dollars
and the remaining balance was held in Hong Kong dollars. The Group
also had pledged bank deposits of HK$102.9 million (31 December
2014: HK$40.9 million) in Renminbi for the purpose of the Group’s US
dollars borrowings. The Group intends to finance its working capital and
capital expenditure plans from such bank balances. The Group has
pledged certain of its assets (including bank deposits, property, plant
and equipment, notes receivables and land use rights) to secure the
bank borrowings. The total bank borrowings of the Group amounted to
HK$333.5 million (31 December 2014: HK$319.0 million), among which
83.5% was denominated in Renminbi and the remaining balance was
denominated in US dollars. All of the bank borrowings were at floating

interest rates and repayable within one year.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
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Operating Efficiency EEMER
The turnover period of the inventory, trade and notes receivables, trade REFBXFEEB2FE BRESFEFRE
and notes payables of the Group for the core business are presented B ENESERREBROEEH25)0T
below:
2015 2014
—E-—FE —ET—HF
Days Days
X X
Inventory turnover period FEASH 71 53
Trade and notes receivables period JEUNE SRR IR 33 41
Trade and notes payables period JEE SRR R R A H 64 56

The inventory turnover period increased in 2015 as compared to 2014 HBRABE—Z— R FYHENHKRLE=F

because the finished goods to be delivered at the beginning of year 2016 —REPAEEN - At - ZT—RF2HFE
increased significantly as compared to the beginning of year 2015. BEEHALL =T — PO gn -

The trade and notes receivables period decreased in 2015 as compared HAAEENFERF (HEERRE) 2Bl
to 2014 because the trade receivables from a major customer, with BORFE—_T—RAF LT —OFEmMm -
shorter credit period, increased in year 2015 as compared to that of year I ZE-RF2EKE SRR REREE
2014. b= Z— PR o



The trade and notes payables period increased in 2015 as compared
to 2014 because the average balance of trade payables significantly

increased in year 2015 as compared to that of year 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, the current ratio, calculated as current assets

over current liabilities, was 1.8 times (31 December 2014: 2.1 times).
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Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach in its treasury policy. The Group’s
surplus funds are held under fixed and savings deposits in reputable
banks to earn interest income. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
has entrusted a total amount of HK$122.0 million under certain asset
management agreements for an investment period from six months to
two years. During the Year, the Group did not have any other security or

capital investments or derivative investments.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are denominated
in US dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables, trade payables,
bank balances and bank borrowings are denominated in US dollars,
therefore exposing the Group to the currency risk of US dollars. During the
Year, the Group did not use any financial instrument for hedging purpose
but it will consider entering into non-deliverable foreign exchange forward
contracts to eliminate the foreign exchange exposures in US dollars when

necessary.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2015, the Company had 2,557,896,300 ordinary

shares of HK$0.10 each in issue.

The Company has issued 397,800 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

upon exercise of share options of the Company during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, no shares of the Company has been issued or

repurchased during the Year.

BRANKEBEERAR —F aFF%

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS

RERERBE

2015 2014
“E-AF —ZT—-F
HK$’ million HK$’ million
BEAT BEET
Net cash from operating activities RELETH2REFHE 161.6 44.6
Capital expenditure =N (25.4) (19.2)
Development costs F B A (172.0) (123.1)
Net increase in bank borrowings RITE B INFEE 14.6 129.9
Investments in associates REEERE] 2 IRE (4.9) (1.7)
Net decrease/(increase) in entrusted
loan receivables ERZAETURD(38hn) F58 45.4 (41.4)
Proceeds from disposal of machinery
and equipment I E e MR E TS 5IE 2.9 16.3
Deposits received for disposal of an associate ~ FLHE —FKEtE QA WE 5] & 8.6 16.3
Others HAh (3.7) (15.8)
Net increase in bank balances and cash IRITHES RIR S IE N FRE
(including pledged bank deposits and (PR HEMRITIFN
structured deposits) M METTR) 27.1 5.9




GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2015, the total assets value of the Group was
HK$3,396.1 million (31 December 2014: HK$3,074.6 million) and the
bank borrowings was HK$333.5 million (31 December 2014: HK$319.0
million). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank

borrowings over total assets, was 9.8% (31 December 2014: 10.4%).

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 2,600 (2014:

2,180) employees. The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme for all of its employees in Hong Kong, and
provides its PRC employees with welfare schemes as required by the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC. The Group also offers
discretionary bonuses and may grant share options under the share
option scheme of the Company to its employees by reference to individual
performance and the performance of the Group. Total staff costs incurred
by the Group amounted to HK$366.8 million (2014: HK$313.2 million)
during the Year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
human resources department. The Group seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of the merit, qualifications and competence of the

employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Board,
having regard to factors including the Group’s operating results,
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management and comparable

market statistics.

The Company adopted a pre-listing share option scheme (“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) to recognise and reward the contribution of certain
Directors and employees of the Group to the growth and development of
the Group. The Group also adopted a post-listing share option scheme
(“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”), the primary purpose of which is to
motivate the eligible persons referred to in the scheme, which include
executive Directors and employees of the Group, to optimise their future
contributions to the Group and to reward them for their efforts. Details
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option

Scheme are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT

As at the date of this report, the Group does not have any other plans for

material investment or capital assets save as disclosed in this report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisition or

disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any material contingent

liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period of the Group.
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Development Concept of SIMT et’Hl{ology

Al B B IR R

LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

We will continue to strive to create long-term values for our customers,

shareholders and employees.

TARGETED AT MARKET LEADERS

Our target is to make the Company the leader in global wireless
communication end product solutions and services. All employees of the

Group are fully confident in, and are striving for, achieving the target.

CUSTOMER-ORIENTED WITH CONTINUOUS
INNOVATION

We are customer-oriented. We attend to, in a timely manner, and
continue to satisfy customer needs, through continuous innovation in

technology and management.

BUSINESS FIDELITY AND SUSTAINABLE
OPERATION

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from our investors, customers, suppliers, as well as

employees.
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Care for our Future
78T B FIRI AR 2K

MAKING THE WORLD BETTER BECAUSE OF US

With “making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision, the
Group aims to provide the world with a light of betterment through our
continuous efforts.

Support from the community is vital to corporate development, thus giving
back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of our
limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take up
our responsibility, the world will be better because of us.

SUNRISE PEOPLE CHARITY FUND

An organisation established and funded by the employees of the Group
for charity purpose. Sunrise People (the employees of the Group) should
not only be satisfied with material wealth but should also enrich ourselves
spiritually. The Group wishes that more Sunrise People can share our
charitable culture and carry it out so as to create a better and more
harmonious future together.

FOCUSED ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and started
from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.
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DIRECTORS

Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”), aged 71, is the chairman
of the Company and an executive Director and a director of
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited. Mrs Wong is responsible
for developing direction and strategies of the Group. Mrs Wong
together with her spouse, Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”),
an executive Director, was the founder of the Company.
Over the years, Mrs Wong and Mr Wong had established a
number of companies which engaged in the electronics and
telecommunications business including Shanghai Sunrise
Simcom Ltd. (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”), one of the
Group’s main operating subsidiary which was established in
November 1993. Mrs Wong has over 20 years of operational
and management experience in the electronics and
telecommunications industry. Mrs Wong lectured at the Electrical
Department of the South China University of Technology in 1977.
Mrs Wong has been a guest professor at Tongji University since
2003. Mrs Wong graduated in 1968 from the Beijing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics, specialising in electrical
engineering.

Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”), aged 71, is an executive
Director and the president of the Group. Mr Wong is responsible
for participating in formulation of the direction, strategies and
be responsible for the development plan of the new business
of the Group. Mr Wong is the chairperson of Shanghai SIM
Technology Limited (“Shanghai SIM Technology”), a director
of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom and SIM Technology HK Limited
(“SIM Technology (HK)"). Mr Wong is also the director of Info
Dynasty Group Limited and Intellipower Investments Limited,
both of which are the substantial shareholders of the Company.
Mr Wong together with his spouse, Mrs Wong, an executive
Director, was the founder of the Company. Mr Wong graduated in
1968 from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics,
specialising in electrical engineering. Mr Wong has decades of
experience in the electrical, electronics and telecommunications
industry.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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EERSREBAR

Ms Tang Rongrong (“Ms Tang”), aged 62, is an executive
Director, vice president of the business operation headquarter
(located in Shanghai, PRC) of the Group and a director of
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom and Shanghai SIM Technology. Ms
Tang has nearly 20 years of experience in human resources
management, administration and corporate operation. Prior to
joining the Group in 1995, Ms Tang was a physician of )L 754 &8
N5 — AR E BT (Jiangxi Ganzhou First People’s Hospital) and
the head of technology and deputy chief physician of § & &t
&4 B #5EFT (Nanchang Birth Planning Institute). Since then,
Ms Tang has served as the manager and deputy general manager
of the personnel and administration department of Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom. Ms Tang graduated from 557 2 £ 5 Rl &1
(Gannan Medical College) in 1978.

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard (“Mr Chan”), aged 59, is an
executive Director and the chief finance officer of the Group.
Mr Chan was qualified as a certified general accountant (CGA)
in Canada in 1988. He is a member of the Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada. Mr Chan has more than
25 years of financial management experience and has worked
as, amongst other positions, the chief finance officer of E-Mice
Solutions (HK) Limited and Chinatron Group Holdings Limited,
the financial controller of SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited and the finance director of EMI (Hong Kong)
Ltd and had also held a financial management position in
Merrell Dow Pharmaceuticals (Canada) Inc. Mr Chan obtained
a bachelor’s degree in arts from York University, Canada in
1979 and a bachelor’'s degree in administrative studies with
honours from the same university in 1982. Mr Chan joined SIM
Technology (HK) in July 2004.
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Mr Liu Hong (“Mr Liu"), aged 51, is an executive Director and
the chief operating officer of the Group’s business operation
headquarter. He is responsible for overseeing the product quality
and product delivery processes of the Group. Mr Liu obtained
a Bachelor degree of Engineering specialised in electronic
engineering at Shanghai Jiao Tong University ( /8328 AER)
in July 1986. He also obtained a Master degree of Engineering
specialised in communications and electronic systems at
ShanghaiTech University (_E/&RHEZAZ) in December 1988
and a PhD degree of Engineering specialised in electric field and
microwave technology at Shanghai University (_E/8AE) in July
1999. Mr Liu had worked as a vice general manager in &
LEHF & 2 A R A 7 (unofficial English translation being Shanghai
DBTEL Industry Company Limited) from 2000 to 2006 and a
vice general manager in /8 R {Z BT R 2 7 (unofficial
English translation being Shanghai Hui Zhong Information
Technology Company Limited) from 2006 to 2007. Mr Liu joined
the Group in 2007, and was appointed as an executive Director
on 1 March 2013.

Mr Liu Jun, aged 43, is an executive Director (appointed on 4
June 2015) and the chief executive officer of the Group. Mr Liu
Jun is fully responsible for the overall management of the Group.
Mr Liu Jun graduated with a bachelor’s degree in electronic
engineering from K& K2 (Tianjin University) in 1994 and was
awarded a master's degree in information technology from %
% B2t (unofficial English translation being Nanjing Institute
of Post and Telecommunications)(currently known as & &S
% A2 (Nanjing University of Post and Telecommunications))
in 1997. Mr Liu Jun has extensive experience in the field of
telecommunication technology and software programmes
development. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Liu Jun has
worked for the mobile research and development centre of
Motorola in Beijing and was responsible for the development of
telecommunication software programmes. Mr Liu Jun has also
worked for China Techfaith Wireless Communication Technology
Limited, a company listed on the NASDAQ of the United States
of America (“US"), from August 2002 to March 2007, in various
positions including as a director, chief operating officer and
executive senior vice president.
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Mr Liu Hing Hung (“Mr HH Liu"), aged 53, is an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee
of the Board and the chairman of the remuneration committee
of the Board. Mr HH Liu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong and also a member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. Mr HH Liu now runs a professional
accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over ten years of
experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and corporate
finance. Mr HH Liu was an independent non-executive director
of Emperor International Holdings Limited (stock code: 163),
a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited from September 2004 to August 2015. Mr
HH Liu was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in September 2008.

Mr Xie Linzhen (“Mr Xie"), aged 75, is an independent non-
executive Director. He graduated in 1963 from the Peking
University of Physics and is a Professor of Electronics Department
of Peking University. Mr Xie has acted as the deputy director of
the Telecommunication System and Equipment Department in
the Ministry of Electronics Industry, PRC, the deputy director of
the IT Product Department in the Ministry of Information Industry,
PRC and the standing member of Communication Science and
Technology Committee of the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, PRC (“MIIT”). Mr Xie is currently the vice president
of China Mobile Communication Association, the chairman
of China Domestic Handset Summit, a member of Electronic
Science and Technology Committee of MIIT. From March 2006
to June 2015 he served as the executive director and chief
scientist of CECT-Chinacomm Communications Co, Ltd. From
October 2010 to March 2015, Mr Xie is also an independent
director and audit committee member of UTStarcom, Inc.,
the securities of which are listed on NASDAQ of the US. Mr
Xie was an independent director of Funtalk China Holdings
Limited, the securities of which was listed on the NASDAQ of
the US (privatized in August 2011). Mr Xie was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in January 2009.
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Mr Dong Yunting (“Mr Dong”), aged 70, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated from the Department of
Mathematics of Hangzhou University (411 A2) (now part of
Zhejiang University) in 1967 and received a master of science
degree in computer science at Sun Yat-sen University in 1982.
Since 1981, Mr Dong had been teaching in Hangzhou Dianzi
University (i EFEHEAZ) and served as the Head of
System Engineering Teaching and Research Section (Z#t
TIEHIFZEZE) in 1986, the Head of the Department of
Management Engineering (B T2 RE(F) in 1988, the
Dean of School of Business Administration ( T 7% 2 £z
£ ) and vice-president of Hangzhou Dianzi University (7)1
FRHEAE) in 1992. From 1989 to 1990, Mr Dong had been
engaged in research work at the University of Toronto. Mr Dong
was appointed a professor by the Ministry of Mechanical and
Electronic Industry (###%E 7 T350) of the PRC in 1993. In
February 1997, Mr Dong was appointed as the president of
China Electronic Industry Development and Planning Institute
(FEIEFITEERBFEF R RK). In October 1997, he
was appointed the head (leading role) of the Policy and Law
Research Office of the Ministry of Electronic Industry (&F 1L
EMEEERAREEE(IEFIAR)) of the PRC. From 1998 to
2000, he served as the president of China Electronic Planning
Institute (&7 R BIPTFTK). Mr Dong was appraised as a doctoral
post graduate students tutor (FBFTEIEEZAED) by the
University of Electronic Science and Technology of China (&
FRHZAE) in 2004. Mr Dong is currently the chairman of
China Electronics Enterprises Association (& F ¥ HE)
and also a managing vice chairman (F7#%&32% &) and legal
representative of China Association of Electronics Equipment
For Technology Development (FREIE FEERITFHERE).
Mr Dong had been an independent director of Nantong Fujitsu
Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (FiE T@MEBFRHBER AT,
a company listed on the Small and Medium Enterprise Board of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code of 002156, from
December 2003 to December 2009. He was the independent
director of Nantian Electronics Information Corp, Ltd. (Ef R
KETEBEERKARAF]) from 28 December 2007 to 28
December 2013, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code of 000948. He was
an independent director of SuperMap Software Co., Ltd. (1t i
B #E I BER2AR]), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code of 300036, from
28 April 2008 to 27 April 2014, He is currently an independent
director of Tianshui Huatian Technology Co., Ltd. (R/KEEXRE
R BMRAR]), a company listed on the Small and Medium
Enterprise Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock
code of 002185 and an independent director of Xiamen Hongfa
Technology Co., Ltd. (EPIRZERHERHBRAE]), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code of
600885. Save as disclosed above, Mr Dong had not held any
other directorship in other listed companies in the past three
years. Mr Dong was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in June 2011.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREBEAR

Ms Wong Tik (“Ms Wong”), CPA, aged 43, is the company & &+ (&Lt ])(CPA) - 435% * AATZ AT
secretary and finance manager of SIM Technology (HK). Ms WERBERNBRZHBEERE - @R+t R-_TT
Wong joined SIM Technology (HK) on 1 April 2005 and is R4 MA—BMABBENEE - aEAEE 26
responsible for the financial reporting of the Group. Ms Wong  BRESEE - @ TR - ZT/N\E_A-_F+hBE
was appointed as the company secretary of the Company  EEAKRQTZATNWME((AFTWE]) - BLtA
(“Company Secretary”) on 29 February 2008. Ms Wong is an & EEHIASE B NS RIEA B 205 &5 -
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public ~ wXZ R —HATF - BUSE B St e
Accountants and has over 20 years of experience in the field BYUE o

of accounting. Ms Wong obtained the Honours Diploma in

Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan College in 1995.



The Directors are pleased to present the Group’s annual report and the

audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss on page 71.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend to the

Shareholders for the Year.

There was no arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under

which he/she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2015 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 are set out on page 207 of

the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements in the investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and land use rights of the Group during the Year are
set out in notes 16, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year

are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to

the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as
at 31 December 2015 were approximately HK$71,840,000, being the
contributed surplus of approximately HK$193,848,000 and accumulated
losses of approximately HK$122,008,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr Wong Cho Tung (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Zhang Jianping
(resigned with effect from 30 May 2015)
Ms Tang Rongrong
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard
Mr Liu Hong
Mr Liu Jun
(appointed with effect from 4 June 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Xie Linzhen

Mr Dong Yunting
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With effect from 30 May 2015, Mr Zhang Jianping resigned as an
executive Director. With effect from 4 June 2015, Mr Liu Jun was

appointed as an executive Director.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws (“Bye-
laws”), Ms Yeung Man Ying, Ms Tang Rongrong and Mr Liu Hong
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(“Annual General Meeting”) and Mr Liu Jun shall only hold office until
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Each of the aforesaid Directors,

being eligible, will offer herself/himself for re-election.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and

Senior Management Profile” section of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap
571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO™)), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (“Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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(a)

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of director

BEns

Mr Wong Cho Tung
FHERLE

Ms Yeung Man Ying
BX#E T

Ms Tang Rongrong
BERRLL

Mr Chan Tat Wing Richard
s

Mr Liu Hong

N

Mr Liu Jun

AERE

Nature of interest

BEME

Corporate interest (note 1)
NEER (M)
Personal interest
EAEE

Total
By

Corporate interest (note 2)
AEER (W#H2)
Personal interest
EAER

Total
By

Personal interest
EAER
Personal interest
EAEER
Personal interest
EAEE
Personal interest
EAER

Total number of
ordinary shares
of the Company
LA
EEREY

1,209,084,000

3,098,000

734,857,000

3,418,000

1,000,000

BEEAARRGZIFE
Approximate
percentage of
Underlying interest in
shares of the Company
the Company Total  {EAARRER
HERS By BAEDH
(note 3)
(Mt 3)
1,209,084,000 47.27%
3,098,000 0.12%
1,212,182,000 47.39%
734,857,000 28.73%
3,418,000 0.13%
738,275,000 28.86%
4,446,000 4,446,000 0.17%
5,382,000 5,382,000 0.21%
1,446,120 1,446,120 0.06%
936,000 1,936,000 0.08%



Notes:

1. Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong") controls more than one-third of the
voting power of Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info Dynasty”). Mr Wong
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held
by Info Dynasty in the Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Both
Intellipower Investments Limited (“Intellipower”) and Simcom Limited
(“Simcom (BVI)") are wholly-owned by Mr Wong and he is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the 454,227,000 shares and 20,000,000
shares held by Intellipower and Simcom (BVI) respectively in the
Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO respectively.

2. Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”), the spouse of Mr Wong, controls
more than one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs Wong is
therefore deemed to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by
Info Dynasty by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

3. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the
issued share capital of 2,557,896,300 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, save as disclosed above, none of the Directors,
chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of
Hong Kong)).

Share option schemes
Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and details of
movements in the share options are set out in note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the Year nor at the end of the
Year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance (as defined in the Listing Rules), to which
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the Group was

entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling
shareholder during the Year; and there is no contract of significance in
relation to provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any of its

subsidiaries to the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of other persons
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

BEROSEZ 2L

BRim e B R I L 38 P I B8 2 BB AL i HE 25
Sh - RRE] - HERARREERNBE AR R
[ Z M & A BB ENAF R AR ERAFE
FEEATLEALE  REEEAERER
REHAATEAMEAB B 2 B kB &

< o

BX

ESREEANZER

AATF - HERAR - EHERME AR RR
EMNBARMET IR AFEFEARNEAEE
TREEEAMESHEEFHENETER
HhHEERMEREEARSZEZEHN(E
2R ETHRAD -

EEEEN
RAFE - BEAAARAATRARE ¥

BRERTEBS REBERITHARTIA
WRHEA N -
REH

AR B SHEAE T — R E D RN AR B
IR ER]FEERER - RFERNH
ERBR M A EERAREHOERSR -

FERRFEMALTRERT 2
R

W= £¢+—ﬂ:+—avﬁmﬁéﬁ&
#9151 56 336 A R A T TE 2 M AT
% E@Ai&§$y$ AEBTHARR
I RARFRL - BB REHH 2
RAHRITT



Nature of interest

EEME

Name of shareholder

MR E

Info Dynasty (note 2) Personal interest

(Krzt2) B AR

Intellipower (note 3) Personal interest

(K15%3) B A

Notes:

1. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued share

capital of 2,557,896,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2015.

2. The relationship between Info Dynasty and Mr Wong and the relationship between
Info Dynasty and Mrs Wong is disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares” above.

3. The relationship between Intellipower and Mr Wong is disclosed under the section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares”
above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, there is no other
substantial shareholders or persons who had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded

in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out in

note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Total number of
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the five largest customers accounted for approximately
48.2% of the Group’s total sales and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 20.6% of the Group’s total

sales.

For the Year, the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
28.2% of the Group’s total purchases and purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately 21.9% of the

Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the Year did any Director, any close associate of a
Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in any of

the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to retire and, being eligible, shall

offer themselves for re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the

preceding three financial years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The fair review, financial key performance indicators and indication
of future development of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
and “Management Discussion & Analysis” in this annual report. That

discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of the

Group. Major risks are summarized below.

1.  Risks related to the economic slowdown in the PRC:
The PRC’s economy has been growing rapidly in terms of Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) for more than three decades since
economic reform. Whereas recent indicators demonstrate that
economic growth are experiencing slowing down, including less
than 7% of GDP growth and even down to around 6% as reported
by some agencies. Economic slowdown weakens the stability
of both global finance system and foreign exchange market,
and also affects consumers’ confidence index and disposable
income’s growth. Consumer Price Index (CPI) and Producer Price
Index (PPI) keep fluctuating below target value. A weakened
consumption sentiment reduces demands for our product directly,

and hence affects the Group’s handset ODM business.

2.  Risks related to overcapacity suffered in handset ODM business:
In recent years, growth of handset industry in the PRC has
been declining with the economic slowdown and diminishing
demographic dividend. Therefore, handset market turns from
the increment market to the existing market in a short while, and
results in merger, winding up, bankruptcy and transfer occuring
from time to time among companies upward and downward in
the industry chain. One of the most direct reasons attributable to
such phenomena is overcapacity, which means too much supply
in relative to demand. Meanwhile, production capacity adjustment
will inevitably lead to diluted profits, and underlying risks caused by

increasing marketing and channels’ cost.
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3. Risks related to centralized brands:
Compared to lower centralization in the handset industry before,
companies with handset brands nowadays incline to expand and
strengthen their scale, reduce prices to lower costs by virtue of
economy of scale effect, or cover handset hardware’s expense with
other income from the internet in order to enhance competitive
advantages and market share. Currently, up to 80% to 90% of
market share are taken up by top 10 brands. Apple, Samsung,
Huawei, Xiaomi, Meizu, OPPO,VIVO, Lenovo, ZTE, Letv, 360,
Yulong are not our clients. Our ODM handset business would be
affected if our clients’ markets were further squeezed by the further

expansion of those brands.

Key Relationships
The Group’s success also depends on the support from key relationships

which comprise employees, suppliers and customers.

1.  Employees
The Company is committed to value every talent and emphasize
that excellent employees are valuable assets for the Company. We
pay attention to self-improvement of staff and give them a working
environment full of fairness, openness, sincerity, warmth and
opportunities. Our competitive remuneration system can also bring
long-term and stable return for staff and also take into account the
long-term and stable development of the Company. We determine
staffs’ remuneration and promotion based on their capacity and
contribution to the Group. The Company recognizes staff with
outstanding performance and the same values with the Company
as valuable assets. We keep trying our best to provide promising
career prospect and a platform for them to display their talents
fully. Therefore, the Company not only helps our employees to
improve their knowledge, skills and experience through performing
their own duties, but also create good conditions in facilities
and environment suitable for their development. To facilitate the
proper allocation of high caliber talents, the Company has set up
an employee career development system which focuses on both
management and technical skills. Through this system, each
outperforming key member can seize such opportunity to improve
overall abilities by various ways. The Company aims to create
conducive conditions for talents to demonstrate themselves and

grow through career, and also build solid team with talents.
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2.  Suppliers
The Company selects and enters into strategic cooperation with
suppliers with good reputation in accordance with the principle
of mutually beneficial cooperation and international standards
such as IS09001, 1ISO14001 and OHSAS18001. We use a strict
social responsibility management system to manage our suppliers,
ensure that the quality of the supplies meet our demands and their
production management systems also comply with requirements
on environment, occupational health and safety management
system as defined in relevant laws and regulations. We also make
cost and delivery plans in advance to meet logistic requirements of

the Company.

3. Customers
We establish complete management systems in compliance
with national standards and abroad, as well as well-known
clients’ requirements, which cover product quality, environment,
occupational health and safety, information security and product
safety management. Through survey on clients’ satisfaction we
conduct every year, our clients express their positive feedback on
quality, logistics, cost and service. Among our clients all over the
world, both new and old well-known clients supervise and inspect
each management system of the Company every year. Apart from
this, our Company also implements Key Performance Indicator
(KP1), internal control scheme, management appraisal program
in every aspect. In order to continuously enhance management
systems of the Company, we set up a specific department to
supervise operation and pass the results to the management on a

regular basis to review.

Environmental policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of our business,
but the responsibility of each of us. We initiate and strive to minimize our
environmental impact by using water saving facilities, saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. We also
operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations
and rules and possess all necessary permission and approval from the

PRC regulators.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Our operations are regulated by Hong Kong and PRC laws.
During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report, we have complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have

significant impact to the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Events after the reporting period

There were no significant events after the reporting period of the Group.
On behalf of the Board

Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong

24 March 2016
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The Company’s goal is to continue to increase its transparency to the
Shareholders and the public and to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted by the
Group emphasise a Board with high quality, sound internal control,
transparency, accountability and independence.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Save as mentioned below, the Company has complied with the code
provisions laid down in the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate
Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during
the Year.

In respect of code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Company does not have a nomination committee. At present,
the Company does not consider it necessary to have a nomination
committee as the full Board is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the appointment of new Directors
from time to time to ensure that it has a balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Company, and the Board as a whole is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and reviewing
the succession plan for the Directors, in particular the chairman of the
Board.

According to the code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the chairman of the Board shall attend the annual general meeting of
the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the committee
or failing this, his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer
questions at the annual general meeting.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 June 2015
(“2015 AGM"), Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend due to an unexpected business engagement. Mr Chan
Tat Wing, Richard, an executive Director and the chief finance officer
of the Group, chaired the 2015 AGM on behalf of the chairman of the
Board pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company and was available to
answer questions. Mr Liu Hing Hung, an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Board
(“Remuneration Committee”) and the audit committee of the Board
(“Audit Committee”), was also available at the 2015 AGM to answer
questions from Shareholders.
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Code Provision of A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code requires the
chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least annually with the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)

without the executive Directors present.

As Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, is also an executive
Director, the Company has deviated from this code provision as it is not
applicable. Currently, the chairman of the Board may communicate with
the non-executive Directors on a one-to-one or group basis periodically to
understand their concerns, to discuss pertinent issues and to ensure that

there is access to adequate and complete information.

THE BOARD

Board functions

The Board is responsible for the promotion of the success of the Company
by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and effective
manner. Board members acknowledge their duty to act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and its

Shareholders.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include:

1. setting the Company’s mission and values;

2. formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate

performance;

4. monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of

management, Board members; and

b. ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems

for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law.
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Board composition and practices

As at 31 December 2015 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised six executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors:

Executive Directors:
Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)
Ms Tang Rongrong
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard (Chief Finance Officer)
Mr Liu Hong
Mr Liu Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed with effect from 4 June 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Xie Linzhen

Mr Dong Yunting

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among them
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on
pages 35 to 40 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
connection (including financial, business or family relationship) with each
other as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing
Rules.

During the Year, the roles of the chairman, president and the chief
executive officer were separated in order to reinforce their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility in compliance with the
requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. During the Year, the role of the chairman was performed by Ms
Yeung Man Ying who was responsible for developing direction and
strategies of the Group. During the Year, the role of the president was
performed by Mr Wong Cho Tung who was responsible for formulating
the direction, strategies and the development plan of the new business of
the Group. During the Year, the chief executive officer of the Group was
performed by Mr Liu Jun. During his tenure, he took up the responsibility
of the overall management of the Group’s product and business planning,
including management of product definition, sales, procurement,
production and delivery.
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The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he has met the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules regarding the guidelines for the

assessment of independence of non-executive Directors.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management including
the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by the Board
and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board before public

reporting.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Bye-laws. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. Directors shall have full access to information on the
Group and are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. No request was made by any Director
for such independent professional advice during the Year. The Company
Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records of matters discussed
and decisions resolved at all Board meetings, which will be available for

inspection by Directors upon request.
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The Board held four meetings and the Company held one general
meeting in 2015. The following is the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings and the general meeting of the Company for the

Year:

Number of Board
meetings attended/
Number of Board

Number of general
meeting attended/
Number of general
meeting held during meetings held during

Name of Director director’s tenure director’s tenure

Ms Yeung Man Ying 01 4/4
Mr Wong Cho Tung 01 4/4
Mr Zhang Jianping 01 171
(Resigned with effect from 30 May 2015)
Ms Tang Rongrong 01 4/4
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard 171 4/4
Mr Liu Hong 01 4/4
Mr Liu Jun 01 3/3
(Appointed with effect from 4 June 2015)
Mr Liu Hing Hung 171 4/4
Mr Xie Linzhen 0/1 4/4
Mr Dong Yunting 01 4/4

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board is
responsible for nominating appropriate person, either to fill in casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors for election by

Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.

As and when circumstances required, the Board will meet to discuss
nomination of new Directors. In considering the suitability of a candidate
for directorship, the Board will base on objective criteria, with due regard
to the benefits of diversity, as set out in the board diversity policy of the
Company (“Board Diversity Policy”) as well as the requirements under the

Listing Rules.
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The re-election procedure set out in the Bye-laws provides that one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years at each annual general meeting
of the Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who become or were last re-elected Directors on the same day
those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be

determined by lot.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was and is

being in force for the benefit of the Directors.

The Company has also arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board. During
the Year, the Board had in place the Board Diversity Policy in accordance

with the Corporate Governance Code.

The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including skills, regional
and industry experience, background, race, gender and other qualities.
In informing its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take into
account factors based on its own business model and specific needs from

time to time.
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The composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis. The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a

regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions in accordance with code provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. During the Year, the Board has reviewed the
policies and practices and compliance by the Company and has reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development of

the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and regulatory

requirements.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Company has provided regular updates to the
Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable
to the Directors and the Company on a timely basis and on the latest
business development of the Company. The Directors confirmed that they
have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all Directors namely, Ms
Yeung Man Ying, Mr Wong Cho Tung, Mr Zhang Jianping (resigned
with effect from 30 May 2015), Ms Tang Rongrong, Mr Chan Tat Wing,
Richard, Mr Liu Hong, Mr Liu Jun (appointed with effect from 4 June
2015), Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Xie Linzhen and Mr Dong Yunting, have
participated in continuous professional development by attending
seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills in areas related to their roles, functions and duties
of Directors such as corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics

related to telecommunications industry.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee
is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its goals of providing
packages which can attract, retain and motivate Directors with required

qualities for running the Company successfully.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i) making
recommendations to the Directors on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each executive Director and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Directors from time to time; and (iv) considering and approving the
grant of share options to eligible participants pursuant to the share option
schemes adopted or to be adopted by the Company. Terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee which have been adopted by the Board

are available on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee had one meeting in 2015 and
had reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management of the Group. The members and attendance of the meeting

are as follows:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 1/1
Mr Xie Linzhen 1/1
Mr Dong Yunting 1/1
Mr Wong Cho Tung 1/1

No Directors took part in any discussion about his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, being Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr
Xie Linzhen and Mr Dong Yunting, and one executive Director being Mr
Wong Cho Tung. They have substantial experience in human resources
management. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing

Hung.
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Executive Directors, assisted by the Group’s human resources
department, are responsible for reviewing all relevant remuneration
information and obtaining market conditions in addition to considering
the performance of individuals and the profitability of the Group, and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee for consideration and
approval, remuneration packages for Directors and senior management.
Executive Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of

their own remuneration.

The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus

and/or share options.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive

Director has completed 12 months of services.

Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options to executive
Directors in accordance with the share option schemes adopted by the

Company.

Each of the executive Directors (except Ms Yeung Man Ying and Mr
Wong Cho Tung) is entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by the
Remuneration Committee by reference to the performance of the Group

and the Director.

Each of Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Xie Linzhen and Mr Dong Yunting entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company to serve as an independent
non-executive Director for one year commencing on the date of
appointment and subject to the right of the independent non-executive
Director or the Company to terminate the appointment of the independent
non-executive Director at any time by giving at least one month’s notice

in writing.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with the written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent review
of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group and oversee the audit process and

other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee members met twice in 2015 to review with senior
management and the Company’s external auditors the internal and
external audit findings, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and discussed
auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial reporting
matters (including the 2014 annual financial statements and 2015
interim financial statements before recommending them to the Board for

approval).

The following is the attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 2/2
Mr Xie Linzhen 2/2
Mr Dong Yunting 2/2

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Xie Linzhen and Mr Dong
Yunting. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung who has

professional qualifications in accountancy.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the

Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors. For the Year, the
Company paid Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the
Company, HK$1.7 million as audit fees and HK$0.3 million as non-audit

fees for reviewing the interim financial report of 2015.

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 69 to 70 of this

annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control systems have been designed to allow the Directors
to monitor the Group’s overall financial position, safeguard its assets,
provide reasonable assurance against fraud and errors, and to manage

the risks in failing to achieve the Group’s objectives.

The Group has a defined scope of authority governing activities of the
Directors and senior management. Directors monitor the business
activities closely and review monthly financial results operations. The

Group from time to time updates and improves the internal controls.

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review them
at regular intervals. The Directors manage risks by strategic planning,
appointment of appropriately qualified and experienced personnel at
senior management positions, monitoring the Group’s performance
regularly, maintaining effective control over capital expenditure and
investments, and setting a high standard of code of conduct for

employees to follow.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of the Group is responsible for conducting
internal audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to provide the
Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control systems of
the Group are effective and the risks associated with the achievement of
business objectives are being managed properly. The department also
conducts other projects and investigation work as required. The Directors
were satisfied that an effective control system had been in operation
having reviewed the material controls and all other major components of

the internal control system of the Group for the Year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds to
requests for information and queries from the investment community by

the investor relations personnel.

The Board is committed to provide clear and full information of the Group
to Shareholders through sending the Shareholders the Company’s interim
and annual reports, circulars, notices, financial reports as and when
appropriate and providing additional information to Shareholders in the

“Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website.

Annual general meeting of the Company (“Annual General Meeting”)
provides a good opportunity for communications between the Board
and Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting. Notice of the Annual General Meeting and related
papers are sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and the said notice is also published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and of the Company. The Chairman and Directors will
answer questions on the Group’s business at the Annual General Meeting.

External auditors will also attend the Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions

put to the vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll.

e
RRNEEBERAR — fﬁs&%

Cor] nance Report

A,'

A EB
ABBEDE B AEEBITRETE - R
BRNENEMESSELARNRE - RE
A EE R BB SIS A BAS R L B
HEBRRGIEEMNEE - MERE - %%
PITHETT R bt BIRABE Tk - EBREMAA
S BB RN BB SIE A A
TEREE  BENAFEREEERZ IS
HIE o

EREECHARRERRZER

/\Ai

AEEBRERERARAESE  RERKREE
ZERRINBE - $%§Dﬁ§i@&é%%ﬁ%/\§i
HIRERALTZRENLARELOE -

EFeERERARRTELARR 2P HRE
RER BEK - BERMBREB N RARRE
HAKEBWMEE 2 ER - ARFTRAR
AL R EERR ] — WA R RRHARRZ
HAER -

$"ﬁZ%$ﬁ¢ﬁﬁ(f%$ﬁ¢K@J)%ﬁ

EEglRRBRIBEHREE - KAFIEE
Hxiﬁfﬂxiﬁiﬁ o RRAFRNGRE R
E@X@HAKQ%TTK/J\ —T{E TR TER AT
MR R E 2 - BiRESEE R AR 24
h_E Iﬁ&i%ﬂ#ﬁ@ﬁx?i@ﬁﬁ@t?ﬁ
REE 2 EBEIEIRME o SNEBIZERD TN H FE
BRERBFRE o

RiE ETRAIE13.39(4) 6 - IRRIBFREH
EPRFEGBARETARR - Bt - FrAR
ERRBFAERRZRBEBUEBFTAR
R o

TEERHRETT

—




SIM Tech Group Limited Annual Report 2015
. Corporate Go ort
NSEETREE R .

The poll is conducted by the Company’s registrars and the results of

the poll will be published on websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company. Financial and other information is made available on the

Company’s website and updated regularly. Specific enquiries and

suggestions by Shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the

Company Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 2908, 29th Floor, 248 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING/PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS

A
1.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s
head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Unit 2908, 29th Floor, 248 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for the attention to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of

such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
those Shareholder(s).

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements and the Listing Rules
to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
has been verified as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a special general

meeting will not be convened as requested.
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The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s)
concerned at a special general meeting varies according to the

nature of the proposal as follows:

- at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than
ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company,
which cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical

amendment to correct a patent error; and

- at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal

constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general meeting other
than a proposal of a person for election as Director

The Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of those shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholder(s) concerned, can submit a written

requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the

Shareholder(s) concerned).

The written requisition must be deposited at Unit 2908, 29th Floor,
248 Queen‘s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, the head office
and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
for the attention of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks
before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week in the case of any other

requisition.
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4. The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the Annual General
Meeting; or (ii) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements and
the Listing Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the Shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, (i)
the proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the
Annual General Meeting; or (ii) a special general meeting will not

be convened as requested.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company had not amended its constitutional

documents.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements did not
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” nor “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has, where
applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Deloitte.
o)

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIM
Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to
206, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

EANBEEBRARAR —F AFFF
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Independent Auditor's Report
B XN R E

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2016
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Other gains and losses

Research and development expenses

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Share of results of associates
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (HK cents)
Basic

Diluted

BRANEEBEERAR —F aFF%

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
MEEmR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BESESEE T A HIEEE

2015 2014
—E-RE —T—uF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt FHxT FAT
A 6 3,197,289 2,352,353
SHERAR (2,771,526) (2,051,264)
el 425,763 301,089
EHAbUA 8 94,858 73,932
HAbYrzs K B 18 9 (35,271) 15,423
ot & s & A (148,866) (144,177)
THE R HRA (128,313) (101,582)
TEFAX (102,879) (85,911)
AR lNCTE 23 (1,261) -
BE R 10 (14,381) (8,599)
BREERT R A 89,650 50,175
I8 12 (19,775) (16,029)
AN S5 A 13 69,875 34,146
THFIEESETF]

AR AR 64,645 23,967
IR 5,230 10,179
69,875 34,146

FREEF GBI 15
B-9IN 2.53 0.94

E 2.51 0.94
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeEmkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEE T Ty 5

2015 2014
—E-RfF —ZE—MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Profit for the year IR A 69,875 34,146
Other comprehensive AFEEEMEE (X)W
(expense) income
Items that may not be subsequently HeTashnEs
reclassified to profit or loss: BmcIAR -
Exchange difference arising on BMEEZ2)|EES
translation to presentation currency ZIERERR (91,113) (19,435)
Surplus on transfer of land use rights 1 o AR LA R 2 - B &
and property, plant and equipment BEEBRERATEAR
to investment properties at fair value ZIREYEE B — 27,753
Deferred tax liabilities on surplus on 1T REA R - BRE
transfer of land use rights and PRl e /N E PN
property, plant and equipment to ZIREME T KR
investment properties at fair value ZIEERIEAE - (6,938)
(91,113) 1,380
Total comprehensive AFEEE2HE(FAX) WG
(expense) income for the year (21,238) 35,526
Total comprehensive (expense) income THFIBELEE (X)) W8z
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KAREEAA (19,277) 27,184
Non-controlling interests IR R (1,961) 8,342

(21,238) 35,526




Non-current assets

Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Finance lease receivables
Entrusted loan receivables
Interests in associates
Available-for-sale investments
Consideration receivable

Current assets

Inventories
Finance lease receivables
Properties under development for sale
Properties held for sale
Trade and notes receivables
Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments
Consideration receivable
Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Entrusted loan receivables
Pledged bank deposits
Structured deposits
Bank balances and cash

Asset classified as held for sale

BRANEEBEERAR —F aFF%

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
el A R

At 31 December 2015
R=-F—AF+=A=+—A

2015 2014
—E-EF —E-F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt FTHT FHIT
FRBEE
BEYE 16 355,981 363,850
M - BE REE 17 405,976 467,294
Tt A 18 91,605 100,154
B EE 20 117,017 76,693
RIETIBE E 21 45,487 47 556
EUmERE 19 3,184 11,146
JEWEER 22 47,360 -
RERE AT 2 R 23 5,333 1,694
AL ERE 24 16,875 16,875
JEURE 40 1,806 -
1,090,624 1,085,262
REEE

mE 25 668,271 354,365
ENEERE 19 9,954 7,661
BRAMHEEYSE 26 227,010 455,948
FHEHEME 27 340,681 95,306
[N E SRR R ZEE 28 292,356 255,746

H b FEUERSR -

E& RIEMRIE 28 254,709 249,897
FEURAE 40 754 -
FEULHI B A R

IR AR R SRR 28 8,504 -
ERZFAER 22 74,592 167,315
BIIFIRITIFR 29 102,864 40,913
HEEETER 30 = 41,441
BITHRHBRIRS 29 298,386 291,762

2,278,081 1,960,354
DIABIEREZEE 23 27,384 28,967

2,305,465 1,989,321
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ke BISIRR R

At 31 December 2015
R-ZT—AF+-_A=+—H

Current liabilities

Trade and notes payables

Other payables, deposits
received and accruals

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Amount due to an associate

Bank borrowings

Tax payable

Liability associated with asset
classified as held for sale

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

REAE

ENEZERARFE

HADRERRK -
Bz e Mg R

FEASH BB X RIZFHERR
IR R IR

JEA —FEIHs 4 R BIFRIR

RITEE

FERTEIR

DIERBIEREZ
a

~
=
=1

g

RBEEFE

HEERRBAE

BEAXREE

N
1

EN/NCIE PN e
FEER R R

B

Notes
Hat
31

31

31

31
32

23

33
34

2015 2014
—E-RE —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
628,401 406,823
236,260 182,655
46,911 35,140
3,501 -
333,520 318,960
8,229 7,758
1,256,822 951,336
24,805 16,252
1,281,627 967,588
1,023,838 1,021,733
2,114,462 2,106,995
255,790 255,750
1,639,989 1,656,261
1,895,779 1,912,011
102,605 86,443
1,998,384 1,998,454




Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEBE
Deferred income FEIELA

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 206 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2016 and are
signed on its behalf by:

WONG CHO TUNG
FHEE

DIRECTOR

k2

BANEEEERAR —F AFFH
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A MBAARE

At 31 December 2015
R_F=HF+=-A=1+—H

2015 2014

—2-1% —T-MmF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FHET FET
21 63,528 61,401
31 52,550 47,140
116,078 108,541

2,114,462 2,106,995

ENETIEZE2006E 2 HAVBBRRERZZE—R
FZAZTHRAESEESIE WHUTESREE
E=

CHAN TAT WING, RICHARD
BRIESR

DIRECTOR

EF

75
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
I\"j—\ 1:"_ /\ /\ I%Em %b i%

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEE T Ty 5

Attibutable to onners of the Company

RAEHENEE
Statutory Share  Properties Capital Non-
Share Share surplus Other optin  revaluation  redemption  Translation  Accumulated controling
capital -~ premium Tesene Tesene fesere fesere fesere Teserie profits Tofal  interests Total
i ElE % B 2R

BE RBEE  ESRE At BE EMRE ERRE HERR  ZRA &if B &

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O000  HK$'000

fan TR TEm TEL TR TR TR TAm TR TR TR T
(Notea) (Note b)

K1 January 2014 R-5-ME-R-R PN N S R 1) SN -7/ S A1)V 28 0B 258 180 Tl 1959048
Profit for the year TR - - - - - - - - B9%7 23.%7 10179 146
(ther comprefienshe RERANREYNE

ncome forthe jear - - - - - 20815 - (1) - 3 (1837) 130
Tl compehensieinoome.~— BERAERE

(expense) for e year (Fx)eg - - - - -8 - Ry B% T 83 B
Tansrupon e complein. - R TEER

of Rights ssue - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer upon foreiure of

share opfons - - - - 2130 - - - 213 - - -
Recognition o equy setted

Share-0ased peyments - - - - 380 - - - - 3880 - 380
At31 Decembier 2014 Ro5-mE

t2f=-f MW B8 759 97091 RN 7] 208 BlL4% 0146 1912011 B3 19984

Proftfor e year KEERH - - - - - - - - BB B4 530 69875
Otercomprehensiempense AERERETHR

forthe e - - - - - - - (83 - (B39 (1) L)

Totel compefiensieincome MF il im
(evpense) forthe year
Issug of new sheres upon
rercising of shere opfions
Transfer upon exercise of
share options - ) - - (74) - - - - - - -
Share options lapsed - - - - 4316) - - - 4316 - - -
Acquistions of busingss
(noe41a)
Incorporation of nor-sholly
onned Subsidieries
Transfer o satutory
Splus esene - - 13 - - - - - (13024 - - -
Recogriton of equiyseted TEREE
Share-based peyments

- - = - - - - (8% oA (1927) (1961 (20,238)

40 101 - - - - - - - 141 - 141

- - . = - - - - - - 6,075 6,075

- - - = = - - - - S VA1 R VA

- - - - 2904 - - - - 2904 - 2904

At 31 December 2015
+2f=1-8 25790 831363 40623 97091 30888 102827 2080 153 132 1895719 102605 199,384




Notes:

(a)

(b)

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), before distribution of the net profit each
year, the subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of
their net profit after taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund
(except where the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval
by the board of directors of the relevant subsidiaries and by the

relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

Other reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Bt

(a)

(b)

RANMEEEERAF

Consolidated State nges in Equity =

/ BAEREHRD
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

HMhEARANMBE(HEDERRERZBRE - ReP
PRI MBS A B A RN IR 3% ) 2 B B B AR 0 A
10%EREERBREES (RBEZHEBRREMER0%1E
RTERSIN) - ZERHBSETAREHERFBRIEMES -
HRESHENBARNESE MAAMET ERE 2 1E -

REBARBABROREEBARZMARIB TR EHmE
TEEESZ B -

N
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
an\ fﬁimu i'%

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEE T Ty 5

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Profit before taxation BRI AR A
Adjustments for: FTFEE AR
Finance costs BERA
Depreciation and amortisation IrE R
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME « BE K
plant and equipment i e ()
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—REMB AR Z W
Share-based payments expense PARR AR 5 5B 2
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts REREE
Share of results of associates FEREE AR EE
Reversal of allowance of inventories FERERD
Impairment loss recognised in respect BE - HERREER
of property, plant and equipment REEE
Changes in fair values of BEVENTEE
investment properties
Interest income FLSUA
Operating cash flows before movements EEESEERI
in working capital REReRE
Increase in inventories FEEM
Increase in properties under development BRANEEWER
for sales and properties held for sales FELEMEL M
Increase in trade and notes receivables FEWE 5 BR F R AR N
(Increase) decrease in other receivables, HAiEBERER - He ik
deposits and prepayments FBAFIE (g M) m
Decrease (increase) in R AR &R D (32 0)

finance lease receivables
Increase in trade and notes payables R E SRR REREM
Increase (decrease) in other payables, deposits ~ EfbEREER - 2z S

received and accruals and deferred income FERTHE KB FEIASE N G )
Cash generated from operations RELE 2R
Interest received BUF 8
PRC tax paid BB

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERE TR RS TR

Notes

Wizt

2015 2014
—2-1% —T-MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
89,650 50,175
14,381 8,599
192,354 183,442
2,402 (4,146)
(2,186)
2,904 3,880
603 -
1,261
- (12,876)
4,305 -
(13,210) (11,103)
(19,651) (16,315)
272,813 201,656
(329,380) (145,737)
(43,063) (54,112)
(34,453) (26,926)
(18,108) 61,799
5,669 (18,807)
241,546 79,631
60,430 (62,586)
155,454 34,918
19,651 16,315
(13,515) (6,667)
161,590 44,566




INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Development costs paid
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Investments in associates
Investment in entrusted loan receivables
Receipt of entrusted loan receivables
Withdrawal (placement) of structured deposits
Net cash inflow (outflow) on acquisition
of business
Injection from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries
Deposits received for disposal of an associate
Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Interest paid

Advance from a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary

Net proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of share options

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR, represented by
bank balances and cash

REES
BENE  BEMRE
HEME - BELRE
PSR
ERFAEKE
FABREMRITIER
R BRI TR
REE AR ZIE
REREFESR2IRE
WEE R Z FEE K
R (FA) SRR

YRR 2 RERA GRE) 35

B AR 2 FRER L E

BREE-ABE AR zEE
HE—RHBARRSRLFR

ARREFBZREFE

BEEE
HrERTTS
(B IRTT
ERFE
RE—EHBAR—%
JFARRR AR Z 23K

&

mfF

mf

RERTTERBRERETRN

TSR E R
REMETH2REFE

RERREEEER
BFE

FIRERREEEEE

EXxEB o 28

FRASRRESEEEE

BETHESBRAES

Notes
st

41

40
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FAREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEZZ R+ A=1+—HIEFE

2015 2014
ZE-RF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz THT
(25,383) (19,215)
2,880 16,326
(172,029) (123,120)
(138,148) (25,037)
74,515 63,353
(4,900) (1,694)
(80,537) (79,065)
125,900 37,650
41,441 (9,441)
5,629 (5,654)
9,619 -
8,553 16,252
(465) -
(152,925) (129,645)
299,712 541,306
(274,404) (411,412)
(14,381) (8,599)
— 5,020

141 -
11,068 126,315
19,733 41,236
291,762 255,440
(13,109) (4,914)
298,386 291,762

/9
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GENERAL INFORMATION

—REHR

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) with limited liability. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of
the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB"). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), as the Directors
consider that it is a more appropriate presentation for a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and for the convenience of the
shareholders.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacturing,
design and development and sale of display modules,
handsets and solutions, wireless communication modules,
carrying out internet of things business and intelligent
manufacturing business and property development in the
PRC.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

ARRDREBARE-NN—FREE(EE
FRBREIMRLRERRERATF] - &
RAZAMPERL T BEEMHEFRZA
AIEM—EINIREE -

ARBZNEEERARE (AR - AR
BUBRRAEBTZ - DEREFZBHIES—
BEEBAXZAER AR (BT )R Em
RAMTERRAIRR - MBEHRAETES
ERIRE -

ARRB—FREZER AR - HBRRZE
REBRBREL - FH NIRRT SRR ERE
AR BUE - R FEREE - EITYH
WEBREREEXET - AREREARKM
B ([hE ) EERE -

P& A #TR] K RS ET B PR B B R o
28 ([ BB R & 22 8] 1)

Application of new and revised IFRSs
The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs for
the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IAS 19

P37 5T R AT 5 T B MR B A 4 B
RO E A R T B S s
B2 52T -

Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions
SR E : EEHRX

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

BRI mE S — TS F 2 T FRAZFENE
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

Bl GmE A —E——F 2 T —=FRM FEIE

BIFR & 5T RIS 195k 2 1BET A
Amendments to IFRSs

B B B 75 i 5 MR B 2 A AT AR
Amendments to IFRSs

BB B 7 i 5 MBI 2 B AT AR

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

RAFEE &R BRI 15 S R 2B A E A
SEAFEMBEFEZMBRIREMR
R/ S GEMBBRRAB L RBLEERY
@ .
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FERFTTRKEITERG KRS
A

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (coNTINUED)

(TEIFR R R 522 A ) ()

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9
B B 75 ¥ 5 R R 28 9 5%
IFRS 15

BUR B 5 ¥R 5 R RIS 1558
IFRS 16

BB B 75 5 A2 RIS 16 9%
Amendments to IFRS 11
BIFR s RIS 1198 2 185
Amendments to IAS 1

Bl s RN 158 2 18R]
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38

ﬁmau&ﬁJ16%&ﬁm@EﬁW
F 38R 218
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41
BB 2R RIS 165 kB S 7128
FALR 2B
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

BB B T 3R 52 RIS 105k R BIR & 5 ER

F 285 2185
Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

BB RS 7ERIZE 1055 - BB BB HE
F12R LB SFHERIE 2857 2187

Amendments to IFRSs

B B B 75 i 5 R B 2 1B AT
Amendments to IAS7

BIR G F AR 7 57 2 18R]
Amendments to IAS12
BIRR @5 RIS 1257 2 185]
Amendments to IAS27
BIpR & E RN 27 SR 2 18R]

© B8 1B 1o AR 28 2 3T AT R AR S BT Bl R B A 3
HERA
AEBHARFEATIIEEMERRERZ
#a] RIS T BIRR BA T S 5 22 R

Financial instruments!

SR TA!?

Revenue from contracts with customers!

FEA MK

Leases*

e

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations®

WS &R GFtIRIR A

Disclosure initiative®

BERETEIS

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation®

BRI NITE R ENER

Agriculture: Bearer plants®

BE  HEMEED®

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture?

BREENABERRHAECEMZEEREIIA?

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception?

RETRE  BRAGRRS

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle®

TE R -NFRFREHBUES

Disclosure initiative®

BERETEIS

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses®
HABE EBEERARLETIEEES

Equity method in separate financial statements®

B AR A 2 s>
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (coNTINUED)

2.

F& P #T ] R ARAE 5T B PR B M R o
R ([EFR B mE2ER ) (F)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017.

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to
include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and
b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI”) measurement category
for certain simple debt instruments.

B EMAE R RER 2 HET RIS R B R

HER ()

! RZE-NF—-A—Bsz&RENE
[ZHARIAE R -

2 RAERSETE B sz #RnFEREE
e

3 REZE—RFE-—A—BdERBNF
Féﬁﬁﬁaﬁiﬂz ©

4 RZE-NF—A—Bsz&RENE
E IS

° RIE—tEF—A—BHZERRNF
S BRI AR -

BRI HmEZEREIRK eI A

R EE NG EIPR B S E 2R ZE 95
SINBEBEDERAESREECHRTE - BHE
HEMEENFEIREEN T —SFELE
Al MAEBEmAE I ERTERBEBRRLE
BMRZBE  TRZT—=FEH#E— B
Al MABBE —MEASHEEFEZHA
TE o R Z— P00 2 BIR B % 5 2R %
WM B —ELETMRAEEMA) ERMEE
ZRMEHE &b)%EﬁEFFaﬁ%Ei‘kI/E\%U\
FERNEREMEERGEZATEYER]FTE

Bl B E R ERTEELBRIER] -
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IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (coNTINUED)
Key requirements of IFRS 9 relevant to the Group are
described below:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement” are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

BERHBREERFIORERT A I(H)
BIBRBA RS ERFEO 2 T 2R E &M T

o HREFERER[EMTA - BR
M8l MEANMECHERNTHMEE
HZWOHERAH A FEFE - A8
MmE RENASKREEHNRESRENE
BRAAFANEBRE - UREHH
EREE/INAERREEASHH
EMEBKKRE  —RERERSTHRS
= EI B AETE - R B R RE K

BHEERENHESREENER
*EEQEP%E‘E’\J%%%IE AR EREE
ﬂ%%ﬂ%ﬁé%iﬁﬂﬁ%iﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁ%@%
XNAE RAREERSHFENER
i R e %;?/A?TEEIJ@EE’J
AR E - MAEHEMEHREMRER
BiRAESHHRERE 2 A TEHNE -
HEAN - RIBEIBRE TS IRELERFEIN - B
BE AT LA AT JB E 1 2 12 70 At 2 T

2RARE (WIHFFHEEE) HIEHR
FEZY MBERBEREVRARNER
WEEH/L °

s BMEMEEZREMS  HBEERSRE
AIE39RIE T REELEEBERAG
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (coNTINUED)

2.

F& P #T ] R ARAE 5T B PR B M R o
R ([EFR B mE2ER ) (F)

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (coNTINUED)

The Directors anticipate that the application of IFRS 9 in the
future may have a material impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

In July 2015, IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including IAS 18 “Revenue”, IAS 11 “Construction contracts”
and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

BERHBREENFIRERITAI(H)
EEEM RARERBEEREMEREERF
A EHIARECREERERAGBHRZ
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IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(CONTINUED)

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with
specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.

The Directors anticipate that the application of IFRS 15
in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 “Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation”

The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to |AS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an
appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. This
presumption can only be rebutted in the following two limited
circumstances:

a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated.

BB B | EERE 155 TR S AW ()
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (coNTINUED)

2.
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Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 “Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation”
(CONTINUED)

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the
Group uses the straight-line method for depreciation
and amortisation for its property, plant and equipment,
and intangible assets respectively. The Directors of the
Company believe that the straight-line method is the most
appropriate method to reflect the consumption of economic
benefits inherent in the respective assets and accordingly,
the Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 will
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture”

The amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial
statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in associates and
joint ventures” deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains
or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business in a transaction with an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting
from the remeasurement of investments retained in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair
value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.
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Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture” (CONTINUED)

The amendments should be applied prospectively to
transactions occurring in annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. The Directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of these amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
may have an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in future periods should such transactions arise.

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

The Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle include
a number of amendments to various IFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to IFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
IFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or a disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa). The amendments clarify that such a change
should be considered as a continuation of the original plan of
disposal and hence requirements set out in IFRS 5 regarding
the change of sale plan do not apply. The amendments also
clarify the guidance for when held-for-distribution accounting
is discontinued.

The amendments to IFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement
in a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures
required in relation to transferred assets.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised IFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXETBE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CO").

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2015. Further, the
disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
annual accounts have been amended with reference to
the new CO and to streamline with IFRSs. Accordingly the
presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2015 have been changed to comply with these
new requirements. Comparative information in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based on
the new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not
under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed
in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting periods as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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EXETHER (8)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRETBER (8)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREHBER(E)
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (coNTINUED) EOFEE(E)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing P EEREEN B L FFEERZEE

subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRETBER (8)

Business combinations (conTINUED)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS
12 “Income taxes” and IAS 19 “Employee benefits”
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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EXETHER (8)

Business combinations (conTINUED)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with 1AS 39, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRETBER (8)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date of which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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EXETHER (8)

Interests in associates (coNTINUED)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS
36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment in an associate, the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group discontinues the use
of the equity method in relation to the portion that is classified
as held for sale. The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method at the time of disposal when the disposal results in the
Group losing significant influence over the associate.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs of disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRETBER (8)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods and properties is recognised
when all the following conditions are satisfied:

- the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and
properties;

- the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the properties sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to the buyers.
Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to
meeting to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under current liabilities.

Repair and maintenance income is recognised when the
services are provided.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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EXRETHER (8)

Revenue recognition (CONTINUED)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

BE
15 54 50 S 95 R B B A B BB SE B 48
Ao

S BB T R A IR BOR RIS o iR
B I 4 LA A R S AR 2
ASBISER - R R BB AT B
BE - ERIARRAIEFIRE - A EARE
BOEE (B IRE N RS R AR
Bl -

EERBAGEM B RRANEERAGERTE
SETERERTUANPIRAREREA TR ER
AR - R B BB @A A A R
ERHER - EERRTOE N A H AT R E =
BHIEE - AT A TR B E R R R UR AT
MBABE - WETRZRABHERHVIRER
—ENFERRVUENRENEN 2 L EE
REE (EBAGHIRIN FEL - AT EERE
MEENAME-

BLEHIAB BENRNHB AR KB E AR ZR
BMaIMZERRE R ZRMER - HEEAS
B EHIE R EE B TR EEE AT
SRR R AR ZEEZ ERARIN - BZER
BRENT AT R EZEMELNRERIEE
B EERAELRAMNBEREENRE
ARBUE A - WM A R R - '
HETTRER ©



BANMBEBERAT —F AFFH
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Taxation (CONTINUED) BiE (E)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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EXETHER (8)

i

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
where primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRETBER (8)

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for those
transferred from property, plant and equipment and land use
rights which are measured at fair value at date of transferred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair value using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, other
than construction in progress, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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EXRETHER (8)

Property, plant and equipment (conTINUED)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to accumulated
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent the prepaid lease payments
of leasehold interests in land under operating lease
arrangements and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms, except for those held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation purpose and classified as investment
properties are carried at fair values.

If a land use right becomes an investment property because
its use has changed as evidenced by the end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and
the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and included in properties
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to accumulated profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRETBER (8)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

- the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EREFBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (CONTINUED) | EE (F)

Research and development expenditure (conNTINUED) HEREREH (&)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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EXETHER (8)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both the
land use rights and development cost of the property. Net
realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of property comprises the related land cost,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to
the Group’s accounting policy and directly attributable costs
incurred during the development period. On completion, the
properties are transferred to properties held for sales.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land, development
expenditure incurred and, where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value is determined based on
price ultimately expected to be realised less applicable selling
expenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified to available-for-
sale investments, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified
as at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED) ST A (&)

Financial assets (CONTINUED) THEE (&)

Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

- the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the “other gains and losses” line
item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRETBER (8)

Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investment.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, trade and notes receivables,
entrusted loan receivables, other receivables, consideration
receivable, pledged bank deposits and bank balances) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, of the Group
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREHBER(E)
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED) SMIA(E)
Impairment loss on financial assets (coNTINUED) TAEEREESE (B)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments and an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 90 days.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXRETBER (8)

Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Impairment loss on financial assets (coNTINUED)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREHBER(E)
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED) SMIA(E)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (coNTINUED) THEERKATA(E)
Effective interest method BT

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and notes payables,
other payables and accruals, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate and bank
borrowings) are initially measured at fair values and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- 3. EREFBEK(E)
(CONTINUED)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions DREREEROARZIRE
Share options granted to employees and other providing KTIES REMIEHREESBLIRE A L2
similar services as employees JERE
The fair value of services received determined by reference ERERBc AFELENE L BHAELE
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is Kz A FEET  WEHSZNEBHZN
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with WRARE RS AR FEL N (BERRREREME) ©
a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).
At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its RIEHRR  AEEBEERRBEERBHERK
estimates of the number of options that are expected to BHE M - BEREMRF ZFE(NE)
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original TR EEPER - LWR RS RESEME
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that FT 0 WA R E R RS R R o
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.
At the time when the share options are exercised, the RITERBIIERS - AER B EREERR 2R
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will 18 - BEARDEE o BERENERB BT
be transferred to share premium. When the share options RITE S EEIRE AN ER B HATR Lol B - DA BE
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at the IRFEREERER Z 2008 - BBRAZ50ER) -
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. HFFTREMENEERR

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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UNCERTAINTY (conNTINUED)
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A TREMENEZRR ()

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis
at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that
are no longer suitable for use in production or sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials based primarily on the latest
selling and purchase prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at the end of the reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete items. If the market condition was to
deteriorate, resulting in a lower net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials, additional allowances may
be required. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of inventories is approximately HK$668,271,000 (2014:
HK$354,365,000). During the year ended 31 December
2014, reversal of allowance of inventories of HK$12,876,000
was credited to profit or loss.

Collectability of entrusted loan receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss on
entrusted loan receivables, the Group estimates the future
cash flows of entrusted loan receivables for impairment
testing purpose. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the entrusted loan
receivable’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise in future financial periods. The aggregate carrying
value of entrusted loan receivables at 31 December 2015 was
HK$121,952,000 (2014: HK$167,315,000).
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

A TREMENEEZRR (&)

Impairment of trade receivables

In estimating whether allowance for bad and doubtful
debts is required, the Group takes into consideration the
ageing status and the likelihood of collection. When there
is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2015, the net carrying amounts
of trade receivables are approximately HK$274,765,000
(2014: HK$240,086,000). During the year ended 31
December 2015, net allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
HK$603,000 (2014 nil) is charged to profit or loss. Details of
trade receivables are disclosed in note 28.

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether development costs included in
intangible assets are individually impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use calculation by reference to
the cash flow projections prepared in accordance with the
signed sales contracts of respective projects. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, an impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of development costs is approximately HK$115,150,000
(2014: HK$73,184,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation of development costs are disclosed in note 20.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst
different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and
certain projects of the Group have not yet finalised their land
appreciation tax calculations and payments with any local
tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgment
is required in determining the amount of land appreciation
and its related income tax provisions. The Group recognised
the LAT based on management’s best estimates. The final
tax outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and the related income tax provisions
in the periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax
authorities.
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A TREMENEZRR (&)

Estimated of fair value of investment properties
Investment properties were revalued at the end of the
reporting period using income approach by independent
qualified professional valuer. Such valuation was based
on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results. In
making the valuation, the Group’s management has made
estimates concerning rental yield for rental income to be
generated by the investment properties. The assumptions
used are intended to reflect conditions existing at the end
of the reporting period. Where there are any changes in
the assumptions due to the market conditions in the PRC,
the estimate of fair value of investment properties may be
significantly affected. As at 31 December 2015, investment
properties of approximately HK$355,981,000 (2014:
HK$363,850,000) were revalued.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation
to the Group’s investment properties has been measured in
accordance with the general principles set out in IAS 12.

Valuation process

The chief financial officer of the Company is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engaged
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The chief
financial officer works closely with qualified external valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The chief financial officer reports to executive
Directors semi-annually to explain the cause of fluctuations in
the fair value of the assets.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (conTINUED)

T REMENEEZRR (&)

Valuation process (CONTINUED)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market date to estimate
the fair value of investment properties. Note 16 provides
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of
investment properties.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

fhEBRRE (&)

REBBFHREME 2 A TFERRAZMET
EWRAEAR BN S B AER 2 AR
B FRETRAMELATERRAZMHET
E BABERBRZER  FHERHEL6 -

TEMTH

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the
bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits. The management reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.
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Categories of financial instruments SWMITAER
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mUE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including BB E IR
cash and cash equivalents) (BEReMESSEER) 951,963 872,256
Available-for-sale investments AIMHEZIRE 16,875 16,875
Financial assets designated EEABBEREATE
as at FVTPL PER - S RVEE - 41,441
Financial liabilities =N
Amortised cost B8 A A 1,056,672 801,951
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, trade and notes receivables and payables,
other receivables and payables, accruals, finance lease
receivables, entrusted loan receivables, amounts due from
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, consideration
receivable, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries and an associate, pledged bank deposits,
structured deposits, bank balances and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 40% (2014: 82%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost 65% (2014:
82%) of costs are denominated in the group entity’s functional
currency.

At the end of the reporting period, the major financial assets
and liabilities of the Group denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities
are trade receivables, bank balances, trade and notes
payables and bank borrowings and the amounts are disclosed
in notes 28, 29, 31 and 32 respectively.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conNTINUED)

LRI A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(coNTINUED)

Currency risk (coNTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of reporting period are as follows:

United States Dollars (“USD”) 7T

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency expose should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
(2014: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against USD.
10% (2014: 10%) represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and foreign currency
forward contracts and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 10% (2014: 10%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 10% against USD for
the both years. For a 10% weakening of RMB against USD,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
profit and the balances below would be negative.

PSR EER B EEEE (F)

Eime ()
M|ER - REBLIMNEHENEREER
ERaEMNRRERT

Assets Liabilities
EE =V
2015 2014 2015 2014

—F-Hf —TWF =F-HF T MWF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TET TR TET

141,927 133,624 484,462 432,008

BEEEESIMNERR YRBERERZEYH
HEARINERR -

HEET
TRAMINHAEBMHRARE LETLH
B,/ 82E10% (ZZE—MF : 10%) HBRE -
10% (ZZ—P4F : 10%) REREREHTRTH N
EERA[REHIENAEEE - UREDITER
FELSNEHER R EE B IEE RINERBAE
4 WIAEREIB10% (= F—P04E : 10%)
BEHUHHNRERRNBESBERTE - UL
THEERRARBEETEMEFEAE
10% BB BB B FIE AN - I AR X FETizE
10% - BEERFEEHEREBARNTE M
EHRBeEay -
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TRl T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Currency risk (coNTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis (coONTINUED)

Decrease in post-tax profit MR 1E s AR

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD
bank balances, receivables, payables and bank borrowings of the
Group at the end of the reporting period.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
notes receivables, other receivables, consideration receivable,
entrusted loan receivables, structured deposits, pledged bank
deposits, and bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 December 2015 and 2014 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

PR EE I B R ()

EHmps (&)
BUENE T (42)
2015 2014
—E-EHF g
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
24,205 22,231

Biet - TBRRERAEERREPRAERTTHEZ R E
BIRITHEER © RN B FIRA R RTT R B 2

B

EEmE

AEENEERRERRABKESERALE
B YGRS BRAKE  BREZFEE
R BBIEER - BEMRITER - ARIRTT

+
l%':' 7N

RIE-—RAFER-_T-WF+-_A=1+—H"
AEBRHF I RERTEEMUSHECHER
EMEEMBRIZEANEERR - RZEFE
ERGFA BN KRAPR ZIREE -

SEEREEERR  AREEEEDRIK—
YEGREEEERRE FEEHLREME
RIEF - AR EREERE B U B ET -
AN AEEERREHRERZREBNHA
WEIEHE - ARERIA T AT D S HEEHR B EH
ERE - BT E  AAREERAAEE
MEERRCEERE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

5.

LRI A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(coNTINUED)

Credit risk (conTINUED)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group invested into four (2014:
six) entrusted loan agreements (details are set out in note 22).
Under the entrusted loan agreements, the Group provided
funding to loan borrowers through licensed asset managers
and/or licensed banks, which acted as the assets managers
and trustees respectively. The asset managers and the
trustee banks do not bear the credit risk of the entrusted loan
receivables. Before entering into these agreements, the Group
assesses the credit quality of the loan borrowers and defines
the terms of the loans. The Group has concentration of risk on
the entrusted loan receivables as the loans are made to three
(2014: two) entrusted loan borrowers. During the year ended
31 December 2015, the Group received interest income of
HK$12,787,000 (2014: HK$12,417,000) and recognised
as other income. In view of the timely interest repayment, in
the opinion of the Directors, the credit risk in respect to the
entrusted loan receivables could be monitored.

The Group’s bank balances and cash are deposited with
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC and the Group has limited
the exposure to any single financial institution. In addition, the
Group’s structured deposit is also deposited with a bank in
the PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good credit-rating.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2015, five
(2014: five) customers amounting to HK$86,178,000 (2014:
HK$127,025,000) comprised approximately 31% (2014:
53%) of the Group’s trade receivables. These customers
are within the same mobile phone technology industry in
the PRC and Taiwan. The management closely monitors the
subsequent settlement of the customers. In this regard, the
Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

BB EE K B RSB (F)

EERf ()

R-B—RE+-_A=+—H0 KEEKEAE
RUG (ZE—F : ND) Bt E R (G
BERHE22) - RIBZTERNZE - ~5E
BRBREEERARSFBERT(DRIE
REEEBARITIAN) AERERARKE
T RMEBET @ LRABTRKEEER
AT EAERRETERZ EREERR &
EEFIZZE WS EFMEERERAZE
BExZ VTEARTERFH - AEER=F
(ZZ—F - WA EAERERARMER
ZHAER  AMBZSERMEETRR - B
HE-"Z-AF+-A=t+—HILEE  x&
E = U EUR B U A 12,787,000 58 7T ( = Z — Y
F 112,417,000/ 7T) + WHER AHMUA ©
EERE ERFEREEN  REKZEE
FAEEZ EERBEREREGE -

AEBZRTERMREFRZHEERPE
ZIRIT - MOANR BB E M SHEAEL
EERBR o po - AEE 2 EBUEFRIFR
REPE—RRTT - RBESZEERBRAR
AARZHTHRARFERFRZRIT -

AEEGFEEERBETROER  BEBREFR
ETEF -R-_E—RAF+-_A=+—8"
AE(ZE—NF: L) BFEEAEEMNE
U 8 5 8K 386,178,000 st ( — T — PO 4 :
127,025,000/ 7T) * HHERBEL31% (=ZF
—PO%F : 53%) - ZERFPURFE KA ER
S ERBEERITE EEERBNER
ZERPABZEERBR - BMmE - AAF)
EERAAEE 2 EERBRE AKREE -
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of bank
borrowings amounted to HK$333,520,000 (2014:
HK$318,960,000). All such bank borrowings included a
repayment on demand clause exercisable at any time by
the relevant banks and are classified as current liabilities.
In accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows amount to HK$334,957,000 (2014:
HK$322,858,000). However, should the relevant banks
exercise their rights to demand immediate repayment, the
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounting to
HK$333,520,000 (2014: HK$318,960,000) will be repayable
on demand. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors of the Company do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment.

The Directors consider that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future, including the repayment schedule of bank
borrowings as discussed above and the short-term liabilities
which are required to be repaid within three months from the
end of the reporting period. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

PR EE A B R ()

REBELTmEE

ERRPDECRARTHE  FAEESERNER
RekReFEABREEER/TRAK
¥ ARNAKESEMT AR ERSRE
KBz FE BREESERRITEEZER
VAREGR TS & B RELAA o

R-ZB—RE+-_A=+—08 RTEEHN
BR T {8 333,520,000 jt( — T — /Y 4F -
318,960,00047T) - A RITEEHH B IRT
AR AT MR 2SR ER G - Bmo
HAERDAEE BREBEHETPHEEEES -
K& K F BT E 7 H 485 5 334,957,0007%8 T
(Z—Z— U4 : 322,858,000 7T) © A+ 0
BRARTITEENERENER - ZSRITHE
&2 A4 %8333,520,000/8 (=T — P04 :
318,960,000 7T) #§BR EKEFEE - ZEE|
REENFEAD - AR REBSRBRITTAKR
AT AR B E AR EE -

ERINAEEAER RAGKNAKRE R (B
EXPrE R IRITIE BE RIS KBRS
RE=ZBARNEENERER) 2R EFR
BRBDESERER - AEBBEBHEEER
HEERRESR  YHemEERAENDIH
BRECASREENRFE  KMEERBES
R o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

5.

LRI A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(cONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
entrusted loan receivables.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group is exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
borrowings and bank balances.

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors
its exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change on
market interest rate and will consider hedging changes in
market interest rates should the need arise. A 100 basis point
(2014: 100 basis point) change represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) and Loan Prime Rate (“LPR”) arising from the
Group's variable interest rate bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances as a result
of the change of market interest rate is insignificant and thus
variable-rate bank balances are not included in the sensitivity
analysis.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. If the interest rate of
bank borrowings had been 100 basis point (2014: 100 basis
point) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2015 would decrease/increase by HK$2,636,000 (2014:
HK$2,525,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

SR EER B EEEER (F)

FIF@BE
AEEAFENEER T EREBKELER
A -
R-B-BER-F-W&+-A=+—8 "

ALEFF B RITHEE RIRITREHAS
FZ= @B o

BEm

N6 B3R B 0 A IR 07 B R R R

%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂlm%ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁzxm
BEmE C WA FE ERE BT ISFIR
2 EE) o 1ooflﬁ¥£<_f PU4F : 100fEE2h)
ZEHIRREEEMTIHARAEERZE

IR o

AEERSRBMNEXAREBEPEREET
BRITEEELZRBRITAZERE ([RBER
TRIZEFS ) REFRER = ([ EREGEF
) IRE

BT

EEERA  AEEEMSNXEFHHTE

TRESRAR 2 KRB ©mAR AKX Bt @5(
RENITIL |EIET BIRITHER

RERBE DT TR BERE BN REE
MER TEREFRKRERE - WRITEEF
EFF/TRRI00ER(ZF —MHF : 1005
B)MABEMEEREIFTE  AEEHEC
E-RFE+ A=+ HILFENBRIREER
HER L, 12,636,000 7T (ZB—PO4F :
2,525,00087T) - 5 BEHNRAERZER
TREENFERBRETE -
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TR T A (&)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s structured deposits
were measured at fair value. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of structured deposits
were determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).

Fair value as at 31 December

R+=-A=+—HB2Z2¥HE
Financial assets 2015 2014
SREE —E-RE —EE

HK$41,441,00
41,441,007 7T

Structured deposits -
ERMFR -

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during both
years.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of its
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.

EMTAZAPENE
AR HEAEAEBRNAEE N AE/MEE
RNHEZER

FEEEEEREFRE A FEIRZE
BEEZ A FE
RZZE—WF+ZA=+—H ' KEBLEBIE
TR RFERE - TRESBWMATEELS
BUERAFEZEM(CERMRAZMAE
TERBARIR) ©

Valuation technique(s)

Fair value and key input(s)
hierarchy HEFER
REEER FTETWMARE
Level 2 Quoted redemption
F_R prices by the

counterparty bank
HFHRITATIRERIE

o
A

A% R S 2 55 — AR R 28 — A [ I S % o

FEFEYFZEEEELLFPEGEZETHE
ERZHMAEZAFE

AEBEEERBEMRIRASREON - Bt H
NEERAHEZEREERERBEZRF
=

AEBERERR  RERA PSR R AR H
KAAN Rz EMEER SR BB RAEEE
NFEEE -
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6. REVENUE

WA

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold net of discounts and sales related taxes, interest
income generated from equipment financial leasing to
outsiders and service income generated from service provided
to outsiders.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

WAIEE EEMHIRITHI R S RN IRER
BUHIE MR - MM B B SRR
BEE RN S A K [N SRER A AR5 P A #O AR
TEUA

TEEHR

Information reported to the executive Directors, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods delivered.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group was
organised into six (2014: five) reportable and operating
segments, being sale of handsets and solutions, sale of
display modules, sale of wireless communication modules,
internet of things business, intelligent manufacturing
business and property development. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Group started intelligent
manufacturing business. Intelligent manufacturing business
is principally selling equipment and providing services to
customers, who are mainly manufacturers, to enhance the
production efficiency of the customers through automation
and intellectualisation of manufacturing process. The
executive Directors consider this is a separate reportable
and operating segment to the Group. These reportable and
operating segments are the basis of the internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
executive Directors in order to allocate resources to segments
and to assess their performance.

ARERHPMEHEEIFEARTES (B
SRBREE) REZER  DRIAED
BRI 251 -

BE_ZT-AF+-_A=t—HULFE £&%
EEof R E(—Z—mF: AfE)JT2HK
BENE BEETREBATR  HERT
B ﬁﬁ.:,m%y?@aﬁiiﬁﬁ - IR - B
HEXBEEYEER -BE_T—HF+-A
=+—BLEE  AEERRASEEERT -
BRHHEXBEIENES (X2RLEER)HE
R MARMIRTS - BBEEBIEEIC N
1K%Eﬂ§ﬁm$§%z% ° $ﬂﬁ%$?&t’j R
BORRRNEENBIA 2R EENE - &
FR2HMEED iﬁ%iﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁm%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ
AR BAKE D 2 NERREMER - RS
FLERT AL ERER -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 7. EEHR(E)
Segment revenue and results PERARES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results TRAAEBIZAIZHREEBLEIMARE
by reportable and operating segment. BN
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE—F-FFf=-F=1+—HIEFE
Sale of Sale of
handsets wireless Internet ~ Intelligent Sale of
and communication of things manufacturing display
solutions modules business business modules Propety ~ Segments
HETHR  HEES nEa B #E  development total  Consolidated
Brng  BAER £ HEER  BRER 0 UEER E4E &&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
(Note)
(#it)
Revenue WA
External sales HMAE 2,043,240 638,847 272,990 80,301 - 161911 3,197,289 3,197,289
Segment profit (loss) AERF(58) 17,762 58,567 157 10,353 (5,031) 8,678 90,486 90,486
Other income and EtHARER
other gains and losses WEREE 36,820

Share of results of associates  MEEFERAIEE (1,261)
Corporate expenses RARX (22,014)
Finance costs BERK (14,381)
Profit before taxation B AR 89,650
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. EEH(E)
Segment revenue and results (CONTINUED) PERARES (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—F—Ff+-_A=+—HIFEF
Sale of Sale of
handsets wireless Internet Sale of
and communication of things display
solutions modules business modules Property Segments
HETHE  HEER bl $E  development fofal  Elimination ~ Consolidated
#hpgE ENER BEE BEMER O MEER 2NER Wi A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiEn Tir TR Tin FiEn Tin FiEn
(Note)
Wit)
Revenue WA
External sales HINEE 1511532 557,309 57,766 14590 A11%6 2352353 - 2352353
Inter-segment sales NEREIHE - - - 1,029 - 1,029 (1,029) -
Total feke) 1511532 557309 57,766 15619 21156 2353382 (1,029) 2,352,353
Segment profit (loss) AR (B8) 3631 40875 (15,587) (19,968) 21,865 30816 - 30816
Other income and HiARE
other gains and losses WaERER 49,008
Corporate expenses N[5 (21,050)
Finance costs BERA (8599)
Profit before taxation BRBATR 50,175
Note: The internet of things business is still in a developing stage in the Mzt RAEE - WAL NENREREE - %958

current year. The revenue of this segment represents the income
generated from equipment finance lease service, sale of goods
to vending machine customers and franchisees, and provision of
procurement agency service.

MR AERBEREEERE RAEEREP RS
AHESEREEER  URRHEBRERBME
ERHA -
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2 EER (&)

Segment revenue and results (coNTINUED)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment result represents the profit
earned or loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of gain from changes in fair values of investment properties,
rental income, interest income, gain on disposal of a
subsidiary, unallocated exchange loss, loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment, corporate expenses, share of
results of associates, finance costs and taxation. This is the
measure reported to the executive Directors for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales were charged at mutually agreed terms.

e L ONES ¢ )
AE2/MEEN B A BRRENE IR
SEZEHERMAR - DBREAREKET D8
ERDEREMEATFEEZH WG  H2W
A FRBBA - HE—BHBAR 2 HE - R
DEERER  HEWE  BEIREER -
RAFAN - DMEBERRERE - BERARE
BB TREEZKERERE - IR ER
DENFERRMARTERELRE 2T
Ao

7 JERSH SR E R E 2 FRKE -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 7.

2EER (F)

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segment:

At 31 December 2015

Segment assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Land use rights

Deferred tax assets

Entrusted loan receivables

Interests in associates

Available-for-sale investments

Consideration receivable

Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Asset classified as held for sale

Consolidated assets

Segment liabilties

- attributable to internet of things business

- atributable to property development

- attributable to intelligent
manufacturing business

- attributable to operating Segments
other than sale of display modules,
internet of things business, intelligent
manufacturing business and property
development (note)

Other payables, deposits received
and accruals

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries and an associate

Bank borrowings

Tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities

Liability associated with asset
classified as held for sale

Consolidated liabilities

NHEEE
VLS
UER TV EL
LHEME
EiLiEAE
BUZRER
BNz ER
Tﬁﬁﬁhﬁ
ERRE
EUMBLRAERR
REA
ERRAES &2
REME
BEATAER
B
DRRRELEAE

GREE

NEAR
~IBEEBEY
-MEEERR
-BHREERES

—%E@ﬁéﬁ e
E N ﬁ%k%ﬁ
RAERENUM
SENBRM (L)

E@%ﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬂ%ﬁﬁ
R
#W;“T& BEL
SFABBRE

BTk

FERHA

ELHRRRE

NBARELE
REZIMAR

= =
RARE

Sale of Sale of
handsets wireless
and communication
solutions modules
HETR  BEER
RERAE  EAER
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thn
1,057,811 348,219

)

PHEEREE
TREFIAEFBRAIZHLEESFESNE
ERBENT

R-FE-aF+=-FA=+—H

Internet ~ Intelligent Sale of
of things manufacturing display
business business modules
B B #E
X HEXR BB
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR Tén TR

Property
development  Consolidated
NEER &a
HK$'000  HK$'000
Tién TEn
211472 135,349 - 602675 2,355,526
355,981
28,615
16,768
45,487
121,952
5,333
16,875
2,560

8,504
9,854
102,864
298,386
21,384

3,396,089

12,673 - - -
132,627

12,673
132,627

- 49,914 - - 49,914

736,504
931,718

17,808

18,097
333,520
8,229
63,528

24,805
1,397,705
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED) 7. 7EER(E)

PHEEEREE (E)
R=-F—pjF+=-A=+—H

Segment assets and liabilities (conTiNuED)
At 31 December 2014

Sale of Sale of
handsets wireless Sale of
and  communication Internet display
solutions modules of things modules Property
HETH HERS business BE  development  Consolidated
ESHES BAESE  MBREE ETRR NRER e

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR T TiEn TEL TR TERL

Segment assets PEEE 750,620 503,089 83,981 64,542 617,044 2019276
Investment properties RENE 363,850
Property, plant and equipment ER e 31909
Land use rights THERE 17982
Deferred tax assets BRLfEEE 4755
Entrusted loan receivables BUZRER 167315
Interest in an associate R-EBENT ER 1,69
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 16875
Other receivables, deposits and SR - e
prepayments RERTE 5043
Pledged bank deposits BHERRATR 40913
Structured deposit ERERH 41441
Bank balances and cash BOEBRES 291,762
Asset classified as held for sale NERRELEZEE 2897
Consolidated assets GREE 3,074,583
Segment liabilies HERE
~ aftributable to internet of things business ~ B RE - - - 18845
~ attributable to sale of display modules ~HEBREREN - 75,506 - 75,506
~ attributable to property development -MERREN - - 154227 154227
~ aftributable to operating segments —HEBTER -
other than sale of display modules, £BRNEER
internet of things business and IMIEES B
property development (note) (Fist) 405,072
653,650
Other payables, deposits received AtENER  Bilike
and accruals REEE 18,108
Bank borrowings RfRE 318,960
Tax payable EfiiE 7758
Deferred tax liabilfies EiEREaR 61,401
Liabilty associated with asset HERRIELE
Classified as held for sale EEJREAE 16252
Consolidated liabilties GRRE 1,076,129
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cONTINUED)

7.

2EER (F)

Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED)

Note:

Liabilities attributable to reportable and operating segments
other than sale of display modules, internet of things business,
intelligent manufacturing business and property development
represented payables to common suppliers of the reportable and
operating segments other than sale of display modules, internet
of things business, intelligent manufacturing business and
property development, which cannot be allocated to the respective

segments on a reasonable basis.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than investment properties, certain
property, plant and equipment, certain land use
rights, pledged bank deposits, structured deposits,
bank balances and cash, entrusted loan receivables,
interests in associates, available-for-sale investments,
consideration receivable, deferred tax assets, certain
other receivables, deposits and prepayments, amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
and asset classified as held for sale. Assets used jointly
by operating segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual operating segments; and

other than liabilities specifically identified for reportable
and operating segments on sale of display modules,
internet of things business, intelligent manufacturing
business and property development, the remaining
liabilities are allocated between payables jointly
consumed by reportable and operating segments
on sale of handsets and solutions and sale of
wireless communication modules and corporate
liabilities. Corporate liabilities include certain other
payables, deposits received and accruals, tax
payable, unallocated amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and amount due to an
associate, bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and
liability associated with asset classified as held for sale.

TREERAE(E)
st - SHERRIESE - MBBET  BEMEXBERY

EBRUIIZAIZBREENRREZEE B
HEBRR - MEEET ﬁE%L%ﬁ%&%
EBERAINZAIZMEEEN R A EBOE
PRIE - RERREEAEARERRDE o

REBEDBRAREENBRNEER :

fﬁ?&ﬁ{%% aTWE - BEKRE 1%
aT AR - e\ RRITER
BT RITEBEES - %Hﬁliﬁ%
B REaNR s AJHEER
B ERRE - BEHBEEE  &TH
hFEUER IR ~ R e RIERFRIE - PR
B8R R FEER AR R SRIBA R D B R E
HEEEIN IEEENSEEE] 2R
MEESE - BESBRARAFERANEE
BEEESERNOBASE &

BARETAMESEREDR WA
% BREREXBEMEERZIER
REENE BB HBRAECS DR
EMHET MR REKEERRB
AR AT 2R L ZEDBHEIEEZ
e ARDEERAE - CEBEER
BETHMEMER  DlRe REs
BIA TEH%R'IE « FEATPI B X BI3F4E A
BRADEFAREN—RBEREZ
ROR ﬁEfﬂ%% CRERBRERSE
REEHEEEZABAE



7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEZZ A+ A=1+—HIFE

7. 2EER(E)

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Sale of Sale of
handsets wireless
and communication
solutions modules
HETH  BEER
REAFR  BAER
HK$'000  HK$'000

TEn TEn

Amounts included in the EENBEEYNE

measure of segment profit BEVRNEE

orloss or segment assefs:
Additions of property, TENE  HRE

plant and equipment Rk 14,420 8,105
Addiions of intangible assels ~ FEEFEE 105,949 43,017
Depreciation of property, plant 1%+ BE R

and equipment e 38,106 11,962
Amortisation of intangible assets  EF/AEHH 78,798 41,602
Amrtisation of land use rights £ FiEHH 1833 496
(Reversal of) allowance for bad ~ RIZEE (BE) &fg

and doubtful debts (1,230) 1,833
Impairment loss recognised in 4% « BERARE

respect of property, plant and T AERE

equipment - -

BE—F-—afF1-A=1+—HAILFE

Internet ~ Intelligent Sale of

of things manufacturing display

husiness business modules Property

e By #E  development  Unallocated  Consolidated

X BERE  BRER  NRER AR &a
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn T Tin TiEn Tin TiEn

159 129 - 17 66 37486
4399 18597 - - - 1718
295 3631 - 153 668 63793
1851 334 - - - 125565
127 301 - - 49 299
- - - - - 603

- - 430 - -3
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 7. EER(E)
Other segment information (CONTINUED) Hib o HER (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—F—Ff+-—A=+—HIFEF
Sale of Sale of
handsets Wireless Internet Sale of
and  communication of things display
solutions modules business modules Property
HEFHR HERS bl #E  deveopment  Unalocated  Consolidated
BARE BER E BrEs VESE AR &4
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
i TFhr FE Thn Thn Thr i
Amounts included in the HENBERINE
measure of segment profit BESRMEE
0r loss or segment assefs:
Addtions of propert, RENE BRLRE
plant and equipment 11,5% 207 19,165 6 431 b4 31,459
Additions of land use right RELHERE - - - - - 15,751 15,751
Additions of intangible assets TEEVEE 76,625 46,49 - - - - 123120
Depreciation of property, plant 9%+ MERAE
and equipment JITE 43217 21,626 1133 6,731 677 13.3% 86,740
Amortisation of infangble assets ~ EFAEEH 49758 43,984 - - - - 93,742
Amortisation of land use rights L FRESH 1,626 1,161 %90 40 - 43 2,960
Reversal of allowance of BOFERR
inventories (12876) - - - - - (12876)




SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED)

EANBEEBRARAR —F AFFF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MIEEMAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

2 EER (&)

Revenue from major products/services

Sale of handsets and solutions

Sale of wireless communication modules

Sale of goods to vending machine
customers and franchisees

Finance lease of equipment

Procurement agency service

Sale of intelligent manufacturing products

Sale of display modules
Sale of residential properties

Information about major customers

HEFHREBATR
HERRRMIRSA
[MEBHE P MR
KEmEEER
REEMERE
RERIBRT
HERREEM
HEBRRER
HETEME

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of total sales of the Group are as

follows:

Customer A!
Customer B?

BE A
=FB?

! Customer A operates in the mobile phone technology industry in
the PRC (2014: No transactions with the Group).

2 Customer B operates in the mobile phone technology industry in

Taiwan.

REEEBERREHBA
2015 2014
—E-EF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
2,043,240 1,511,532
638,847 557,309
252,805 53,630
4,329 4,136
15,856 -
80,301 -
= 14,590
161,911 211,156
3,197,289 2,352,353
BAREIEZFNER

RAEEFEEREEANEEAHEEEIB 0%

BEPEHWALT

2015
“E-AF
HK$’000
FTER

654,009
517,955

2014
—T-mF
HK$'000
FHL

755,277

! EFARTEBD FRRMERLZER(ZF

—POE - WEEALEETRS)

2 EFBRABEBH FREMELRLEEY -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. DEER(E)

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue and non-current assets are substantially
located in the PRC, the country of domicile from which the

group entities derive revenue and hold assets. Accordingly, no It WEETHE—F DT o

further analysis is presented.

REBWARIERBEELIERGHE - AIAK
SHERELRANREBEEEZMHER -

OTHER INCOME 8. Hflx A
2015 2014
—E-RE —E—eF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Refund of Value Added Tax HED ([HEEH])

(“VAT") (Note 1) B (AT 8,227 4,410
Government grants (Note 2) BASE B WA (Kt 2) 28,122 26,099
Interest income earned on bank RITAE R R AE TR AT SRERER

balances and structured deposits 2 FBUA 6,863 3,898
Interest income earned on entrusted ~ JEIREFEE B T B U A

loan receivables 12,787 12,417
Rental income (Less: outgoings of FAS WA Ol : 23,734,000 7T

HK$3,734,000 (ZZ—PU4F : 2,527,00077T))

(2014: HK$2,527,000)) 37,336 25,269
Others Hib 1,523 1,839

94,858 73,932




8. OTHER INCOME (conTINUED)

HAWBA (4

RANEEEERAR W—Efﬁﬁﬁ?
Notes to the Consohdate#manual Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

i

)

Notes:

(1)

Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”), Shanghai
Simcom Wireless Solutions Limited (“Simcom Wireless”) and
Shenzhen Zhuoxuda Technology Development Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Zhuoxuda”) (2014: Shanghai Simcom and Simcom
Wireless) are engaged in the business of distribution of self-
developed and produced software and the development of
automated test equipment and software. Under the current PRC
tax regulation, they are entitled to a refund of VAT paid for sales
of self-developed and produced software and the development of
automated test software in the PRC.

The amount includes HK$14,681,000 (2014: nil) related to
a conditional government grant granted to the Group in prior
years. In the opinion of the Directors, during the current period,
the conditions attached to the government grant are all fulfilled,
amongst others, including the completed works were approved
and verified by government officers. Therefore, government grants
of HK$14,681,000 was recognised to profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2015. As at 31 December 2015, the amount,
had yet been received and hence the amount was included in other
receivables, deposits and prepayments.

The amount includes HK$3,278,000 (2014: HK$14,950,000)
unconditional government grants received during the year ended
31 December 2015, which was granted to encourage the Group’s
research and developments activities in the PRC.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group also received government grants of HK$22,065,000
(2014: HK$3,322,000) towards the cost of development of
wireless communication modules and handsets and solutions in
Shanghai and Shenyang. The amount received is deferred and is
transferred to other income to match actual expenditure used in
research and development activities and HK$10,163,000 (2014:
HK$11,149,000) was recognised in the profit or loss during the
year. As at 31 December 2015, an amount of HK$58,687,000
(2014: HK$50,063,000) remained to be amortised and is included
in other payables (for current portion) and deferred income (for
non-current portion).

Bret -

(1)

(2)

FERBESRM(LE)AERARN(T LERSB
B SABESEE(LE) BRAR ([EHE
88 ]) RN ERERMBRERARAR (RIS
Mz (ZF—mF - bEsmERk EENHE
BHRVEESHBTREREEZRME - UK
R B BLRBIREREM - BRIEPBERTZH
BESR  EPERHERTREREEZRMSE -
AR FEBB AR ESNZRERATZA
B -

WEREERNBEFEAEEERZE \%#Eﬁ(ﬁ*
THE WA 14,681,000/8 T (ZZ—M4EF : &) -
ERA - RASE - BFEBRAMRSZ wﬁFi’J
ELEX EEExTTREEBNABR S RZ

At REE-E-RF+-A=1T—HI
iE * BUITIE B A 14,681,000 7 ST 1B 25 P HE
ReRNZT-—AFT-A=1t—H wARKIAE
BERE  FUt AR B AEMERERR - B
NIRRT R

hEEREREBEE-_Z—AF+-A=+—81t
irguﬁzxuzmﬂiﬁmﬁlﬁ B U A 3,278,000/8 7T
(ZZ—JU4F : 14,950,000 7T ) * T AEEI AR E
ERFREFEEE ML -

o AEEREBEE-T—RAF+-_A=1+—8

IEFFE INES BURIE B # A 22,065,000 7T (=
T U4 : 3,322,000/ 7T) + BIER L8 RES
FRE RS R T R RAR S RAOBLA © BT
Wz S EBREEHE - WEEEZE MR A
FAREEBDNERMY - WENFANEEZRFR
f#7210,163,0007% 7t (= Z — MU 4F : 11,149,000
BL)  RZT—RAF+-ZA=+—R8 ' —%
58,687,000 47T (= Z —PU4 : 50,063,000 7T)
B FIE AT R A 3 30 B AT A EL At B A5 R SR (SR ED
HEomE) RELKRA (RIENBEHTIME)
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9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HibhzmEREE
2015 2014
—E2-hfF —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, HEME - HEKEE
plant and equipment 2 (E518) W (2,402) 4,146
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain HME (E18) W 558 (43,362) 174
Changes in fair values of HEMENTFEZE
investment properties 13,210 11,103
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MEFB AR 2 WE 2,191 -
Net allowance for bad and RERBHE TR
doubtful debts (603) -
Impairment loss recognised in BV - B M ETER
respect of property, ZREEE
plant and equipment (4,305) -
(35,271) 15,423
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BE KA
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FAET
Interests on bank borrowings HRRAFRNEHEECRITEERE
wholly repayable within five years 14,381 8,599




11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

BRANEEBEBERAR —F AaFF%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ire BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEEE AT LS A=+ ALLFE

11. B T B2THABREEME

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emolument paid or payable to each of the Directors and
chief executives were as follows:

Executive Directors
Ms. Yeung Man Ying
Mr. Wong Cho Tung
Mr. Zhang Jianping
(Note 2)
Ms. Tang Rongrong
Mr. Chan Tat Wing, Richard
Mr. Liu Hong
Mr. Liu Jun (Note 3)

Sub-total

Chief executive officer
Mr. Liu Jun (Note 3)

HiTEE
)€Y G
TER%EE
RRIFEE
(Hiz2)
ERRLt
REREE
BB
ERE (W22 3)

Dt

BRHTE
BERE (W2 3)

ESREFERTRAEMS
AEBREENTETRABCNRENZME

M -

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-Z-AIF+-A=t+-HLFE

Retirement
benefits
scheme
Directors’  Salaries and Share-based contributions Total
fees  allowances Bonus  payments BB emoluments
EEHE HekEH L URGBHER TR “ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR THET
(Note 1)
(1)
- - - - 89 89
- 516 369 - - 885
- 1,500 - - 69 1,569
- 886 197 - 99 1,182
- 517 - - 59 576
- 3,419 566 - 316 4,301
- 369 344 - 40 753

The executive Directors’ and chief executive officer’s
emoluments shown above were mainly for the management of

the affairs of the Company and the Group.

Independent
non-executive Directors

Mr. Dong Yunting

Mr. Liu Hing Hung

Mr. Xie Linzhen

Sub-total

BUFQTES
EEERAL
BEHEEE
il

I

PRATEERTETRABME EEZERN Y
ARBRAREERE 2B

The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as Director of the

Company.

Total

156 - - - - 156
156 - - - - 156
156 - - - - 156
468 - = = = 468
BB IFRTER M T B2ANREEET

RABEE -
5,522
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Financial Statements

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 11. £ FETHRABREEME

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED) (#&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (CONTINUED) EERFETHAEMS (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-T-MFE+-A=+—ALEFE

Retirement
benefits
scheme
Directors’  Salaries and Share-based  contributions Total
fees  allowances Bonus  payments  R{KER  emoluments
EEWe  HelEl T MROER FEIER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET THET THET
(Note 1)
(hi1)
Executive Directors HiTES
Ms. Yeung Man Ying BXER T - - - - - -
Mr. Wong Cho Tung THEREE - - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Jianping ReITEE - - - 148 89 237
Ms. Tang Rongrong ERpTLT - 528 378 62 - 968
Mr. Chan Tat Wing, Richard BRiE&%EAE - 1,300 375 62 60 1,797
Mr. Liu Hong 25 - 904 202 16 94 1,216
- 2,732 955 288 243 4218
Chief executive officer BERYTE
Mr. Liu Jun AEE - 904 202 16 94 1,216
The executive Directors’ and chief executive officer’s LTHMBITEERFETHRAESHSEZ@NE
emoluments shown above were mainly for the management of RARRAEEEBE 2ER -
the affairs of the Company and the Group.
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive
Directors
Mr. Dong Yunting EEELE 156 - - - - 156
Mr. Liu Hing Hung BEESE 156 - - - - 156
Mr. Xie Linzhen R E 156 - - - - 156
468 - - - - 468
The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments BRI EE e E RN EFER
shown above were mainly for their services as Director of the KARESE ©
Company.

Total @t 5,902




11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

%ﬁtﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ}“—fﬁfﬁ
Notes to the Consolidated ﬁnancial Statements
RE M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

11. EES ‘FEITHRAEREE#ME

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED)

Notes:

(1)

©)

Incentive performance bonus for the year was determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance and
duties of Directors and the Group’s operating results.

Mr. Zhang Jianping resigned with effect from 30 May 2015.

Mr. Liu Jun was appointed as Director with effect from 4 June
2015.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included three (2014: two)
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2015, whose
emoluments are included in the above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2014 three) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and allowances Fre MoERL
Bonus TEAT
Share-based payments LARRAD =I5k

Retirement benefits

RIRTENIEBIHER

scheme contributions

ESRIRTHAEME (H)
Bt

(1) FEXRBEDEACOHFHNZEILEFESL
RENBBEIARAREE 2 KEFEMETE

(2) RYFEER-ZT-RFREA=+HEEHE-

3) BERENR-_ZT-HFAANBREZRERE
8

BEME
HE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HIFE 1%
BREFHALEE=2("F—0F: WH)
B HMeCREXEE - TIME(=F
—F =R ALZBEemT

2015 2014
2% —F-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TR
1,771 2,751
855 1,451

609 631

198 187
3,433 5,020
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11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 11. EE - T ETBRAEREEMNE
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED) (&)
Employees’ emoluments (CONTINUED) EEMS (E)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: WEZHESEL T EE:
2015 2014
—E-AF —T-mF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE BEAH
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /&7t % 1,500,000 % 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /&7t % 2,000,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7Tt Z 2,500,000 7% 7T 1 1
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group AEE  AEBURATMESKAGRS 5
to any of the Directors or the five highest paid individuals A T2 EAEE - (ERFFEHESEMARSE
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as B S EMA RS B R [ ST 2 AR
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors waived H - HEABBMHE - RREFEHEESN
any emoluments for both years. EZEAME -
12. TAXATION 12. BB
2015 2014
—2-AF T -IF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) AR SEFTIS L ([ EFTSHL]) (14,154) (10,104)
LAT in the PRC R £t R(E AR (3,239) (3,167)
Overprovisions on PRC EIT BTFERBRMCEMETEEEE
in previous years 3,620 350
(13,773) (12,921)
Deferred tax expense for AEEIRLERERS (F5F21)
current year (note 21) (6,002) (3,108)
Taxation for the year REETIE (19,775) (16,029)




12. TAXATION (coNTINUED)

EARNEEEERAR ,;g"—ffféfﬁi
Notes to the Consolidated F inancial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

12. %i1E (48)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for
both years as the Group has no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong.

EIT is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant districts
of the PRC taking relevant tax incentives into account.
Simcom Wireless, Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Limited
(“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”) and Shanghai Simcom are
classified as New and High Technology Enterprise and is
entitled to adopt a tax rate of 15% (2014: Shanghai Simcom
was classified as New and High Technology Enterprise and
Key Production Enterprise and was entitled to adopt an
applicable tax rate of 10%). The relevant annual tax rate used
for PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the Group’s subsidiaries
ranged from 15% to 25% (2014: 10% to 25%).

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant tax laws and regulations
of the PRC, which is charged at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% (2014: 30% to 60%) of the appreciation value,
with certain allowable deductions.

MRARBEER L BELBRTUEN - WE
AR EFEREELTENSHRE -

EEAEHRRAG MAAERBEERR - ZHEE
RR 2 RITHEE - SBES - L8R
BAERBBEFHRERARA( LERERSE
B R EEREBRET A [ SMRMEE] I
BRERMAI% R E(ZT—M4F - LEHE
BRI RMERMER | REREERK]
WHRERA10%EMRBE) - AEEHMER
AFEAZTBECEMERABFERETNF
15% ZE25% 2 B(ZZF—MF : 10%E25%) °

T+ IR (E R B R T IR IR B A B M IR SR A
ERFE MR E BRHEL - BRATAMEER
DIREERIE30% £60% (ZZF—MNF : 30%
£60%)TE - WAVEE TR
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12. TAXATION (coNTINUED) 12. HIE (&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit NEFERIBIORR S ABHEPRZBEA
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss AR ¢
as follows:
2015 2014
—E-1F —T-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FHT
Profit before taxation MR A ) 89,650 50,175
Taxation at the PRC income LR BEBIR R 25%
tax rate of 25% (2014: 25%) (ZZ—OF : 25%) T E 2 Fi1E (22,413) (12,544)
Tax effect of expenses not TNz A 2 g2
deductible for tax purpose (7,703) (5,747)
Tax effect of income not BERT 2 WA 2 B2
taxable for tax purpose 12,139 14,671
Tax effect of tax losses KRRV B 2 i s 2
not recognised (19,755) (18,884)
Utilisation of tax losses BT ARER 2 RISEE
previously not recognised 16,080 7,487
Overprovisions on PRC EIT BAEFEFRESEMSHBREEE
in previous years 3,620 350
Income tax on concessionary rate IREEMEFTE 2B 686 1,013
LAT T IRERT (3,239) (3,167)
Income tax effect on LAT TR ER 2 ST B 810 792
Tax charge for the year ARF EFIERR (19,775) (16,029)




13.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

EANBEEBRARAR —F AFFF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MIEEMAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

13. REEREF

Profit for the year is arrived at
after charging (crediting):

Auditor’'s remuneration

Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales)

Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs

Amortisation of land use rights
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment
Reversal of allowance of inventories
(included in cost of sales)
Costs of inventories recognised as an
expense (included in cost of sales)
Cost of properties sold
(included in cost of sales)
Staff costs:
Directors’ emoluments (note 11)
Other staff costs
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefits scheme
contributions
— Share-based payments

Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs

AEZEMND IR GEA) |

Gl

BV EE#E
(FTASHERA)
B BEEAMERFEKA

T bl AR 5
M - WELRETE

B BEEAMMERFIEA

ME - BB RREREEE

FEEDRE
(FTASHERA)
HERRAXZFERA
(FTASHERA)
EEMEAR
(FTASHERA)
BT -
=M (1D
HAh B T
—TEREAMEF
— IR FETBIHR

— DA 3K

B BEEAMERF KA

2015 2014
—B-Rf —FmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
1,950 1,950
125,565 93,742
(2,645) (1,007)
122,920 92,735
2,996 2,960
63,793 86,740
(3,845) (2,920)
59,948 83,820
4,305 -
- (12,876)
2,635,235 1,878,441
136,291 166,823
4,769 4,686
301,443 254,085
57,707 50,585
2,904 3,880
366,823 313,236
(130,248) (94,365)
236,575 218,871
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14. DIVIDENDS

14. B2

15.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

ESUVTERRBE_T—AFR-T—UF
TZA=+—BLEFERNRHARKRS -

15. 8KR&E7

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Earnings

Earnings for the purposes of
basic and diluted earning
per share (profit for the year
attributable to the owners
of the Company)

Number of shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares — share option

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of diluted earnings per share

&R

Bz B (RRT]
BENEEAFE
i i)

R BE

SAESRERRNZ
EBR T8

BEEREERRZ
FE— R

ARBHAANBIESRER R EHERH THIZIA

TRUREE

ARt E S E 20

BB FHEE

2015 2014
—Z—hfF —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
64,645 23,967
2015 2014
—E-HEF —ZT—F
000 ‘000

T T
2,557,747 2,557,499
15,092 2,227
2,572,839 2,559,726
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWZE
HK$'000
FHET
FAIR VALUE NF{E
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NFE—F—H 319,066
Transfer from property, BBV - REREE (A7)
plant and equipment (Note) 19,769
Transfer from land use rights (Note) 5% B T30 (F FAE (A/:) 20,154
Increase in fair value RIBERTER 2 A F{EZ N
recognised in profit or loss 11,103
Exchange differences EERER (6,242)
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NF+=-_A=+—H 363,850
Increase in fair value RIBaRER < A FEE N
recognised in profit or loss 13,210
Exchange differences [ERZER (21,079)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+-_H=+—8H 355,981
Unrealised gain on property SPABRZ AEBYEEBERE
valuation included in profit or loss 13,210
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2014, certain previously self- We BHEZZ-—NE+-A=1+—HILFE &5TiH
used premises of the buildings of the Group had been rented out to THEASEERAZEFYEEBLETBEYE =
independent third parties. Accordingly the carrying amounts of the 75 e Btk - AFEA 19,769,000 BT 2 EF 2 8
building of HK$7,394,000 with fair value of HK$19,769,000 and TE{&7,394,00078 7T A K 2 {8 £20,154,000/8 70
carrying amounts of land use rights of HK$4,776,000 with fair value 2 b FE g Z BRE(E4,776,000/8 70 - DEEE
of HK$20,154,000 are transferred to investment properties of the AEBZIHEWME -
Group.
The Group’s investment properties are held under medium- REBRIRFE 2R E TR R IR LS

term leases in the PRC. B



148

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Conselidated:Financial Statements
bre BTSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_TRF+=A=T—HLFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTINUED)

16. REW= ()

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2015 and 2014 and at the relevant dates of
transfer from property, plant and equipment and land use
rights have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers not related to the
Group.

The fair value was determined based on the income
capitalisation approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted
at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed based on
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
existing lease and reasonable and supportable assumptions
that represent what knowledgeable willing parties would
assume about rental income for future leases in the light of
current conditions. The rate is determined by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar commercial properties in Shanghai. There has been no
change from the valuation technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. At the end of the
reporting period, the chief financial officer of the Group works
closely with the independent qualified professional valuer to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value
of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
the management of the Group.

AEEREMENR _ZT-HAFR_T—HF
TZAZT—BURBHEDE - BB RREA
Kt sb e FMEAARE B Bl 2 A P18 - THPABIAR S
B R E B ERA BB MAEMBRITE
EFMHERBER QRN Z BT 2 A ERKE
B -

DFEDIRBBABRMOEETE - B - &5F
EMENMARHEEMC 2 mEEE - Wik
BEHEBYEMBHRZTSEHREMR - ™
BHEE HREB[BEARRR SRS - WARE
HErAEREN2BR(AAEERETE
BITHER TERKBEEAHE 2 RR) 1EXH
Wa KRB 2EDT LBERBERENEHERS
SHZWERERETE - HERTEBEFE R
REMR -

EAFAMEZ A TER - DEZ&SRRER
ZEREBRAZ - RBEHR  AREHEE
BBV AEREXMEMBEIAE - AL
REFEAENBERTD MBARE - HWEEZ
RFEHRERES  $RAEEEEEER
HERE 2 REA -
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BEEE AT LS A=+ ALLFE

16. REW* (8)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and
unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

As at 31 December 2015

EREATTERGABBETAVETEZ
TRETEEREMEXHEMAZAERD
RAREEXTAZ A BRRE A SR -

R-ZZE—HF+=ZHA=+—H

Fair value Valuation
hierarchy techniques Fair value
AVERE fERD AVE
HK$'000
TET
Level 3 Income 355,981
£ capitalisation
approach
WABRE

Relationship of
unobservable
Range of inputs to fair value
unobservable inputs T AIEE
Unobservable inputs AR BABEH
TABERAEE BABEEE ATEZER
(i) Capitalisation rate 5.8%-6.4% The higher the
() BAfLE capitalisation rate,
the lower
the fair value.
BR RS -
RTEWE -
(i) Market rent RMB3.5-RMB7.5 The higher
(il 5L per month the market rent,
per square meter the higher
BABEAXR the fair value.
ARE3STLE mHfdsE
ARETI5T AFEHR o
(iii) Growth rate 2.0% The higher
(i) R % the growth rate,
the higher
the fair value.
BREHE

AFEHS -
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTINUED)

16. REW= ()

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (conTINUED)
As at 31 December 2014

FREATTEERAZRBETAFENEZ
&P (|
RZE—NF+=—A=+—H

Relationship of

unobservable
Range of inputs to fair value
Fair value Valuation unobservable inputs TABR
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs TABR BAREE
NTEESE HERD AN TABEGAHE BAZEEE NHEBE
HK$'000
THT
Level 3 Income 363,850 (i) Capitalisation rate 55% The higher the
E capitalisation () B L% capitalisation
approach rate, the lower
WAB LA the fair value.
EAbEHE -
AFEMIE
(if) Market rent RMB3.5-RMB7 The higher
(il 5L per month the market rent,
per square meter the higher
BRAEFRXK the fair value.
AR#35E [t
ARET T ATESS -
(iii) Growth rate 3% The higher
(i) BRE the growth rate,
the higher
the fair value.
EREHE
ATEMS

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are

measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has pledged
investment properties having a fair value of approximately
HK$148,403,000 (2014: HK$110,038,000) to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

REBFRERBCEHERBWIERRES L

BERBERENYERS  HRAXFEER
STENMDBERARIIRIEDE -

R_ZE—HE+-_F=+—H XEEQ
F {H %9148,403,0005% jo( = & — [0 & :
110,038,000 7)) 218 EWH*E THMF - 1A
REEFTES —MIRITRE 2 BIR



RANMEREEBRAT =

151

] &J;aeh,'c/ial Statements
C T RAMERERINGE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

Notes to the Consolid

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - MERRZE

Equipment,
furniture
Leasehold and Plant and
improvements fixtures machinery Motor
Buildings BENE  REBR BER vehicles Total
=4 % R&E HE RE £

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
AL TR AL AL TERL AR

CosT KA
At 1 January 2014 R-Z-mE-A-AH 503,838 5,069 281,041 284,608 11,430 1,085,986
Exchange differences Exz2 (9,840) (%) (5,906) 6,141 (213) (9,913)
Additions NE - - 15213 1,983 1,262 18,458
Transfer to investment properties ~ ERERENE (14,315) - - - - (14,315)
Disposals HE - - (39,113) (21,975) (688) (61,776)
Acquisition of subsidiary YEEME LA - - 13,001 - - 13,001
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MF

+-F=1+-H 479,683 4973 264,237 270,757 11,791 1,031,441
Exchange differences EXxz2 (27,137) (272) (14.867) (15318) (636) (58,230)
Additions AE - 1,124 16,997 17,232 2,133 37486
Disposals hE - - (8.968) (32,553) (211) (41,732)
Acquisition of subsidiaries ENEAH - - 507 - - 507
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHBAR - - (16) - - (16)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F

+-F=1+-H 452 546 5825 257,890 240,118 13,077 969,456
DEPRECIATION AND FTERRAE

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2014 WZZ-mE-F—-A 120,670 5,069 256,057 153477 8235 543,508
Exchange differences Exz2 (1,859) (%) (5,243) (2,257) (133) (9,584)
Charge for the year KEEMHR 28,586 - 19,020 37941 1,193 86,740
Transfer to investment properties ~ ERERENE (6,921) - - - - (6,921)
Eliminated on disposals RILERHH - - (33,275) (15,662) (659) (49,596)
At31 December 2014 RZZ-m4E

+-A=1+-H° 140,480 4973 236,559 173499 8636 564,147
Exchange differences Exz® (8,844) (275) (13,351) (9,36) (438) (32314)
Charge for the year KERHG 23968 8 13941 24,664 1,142 63,793
Impairment loss recognised BRRRERE - - - 4,305 - 4,305
Eliminated on disposals R ER - - (8970) (27,268) (212) (36,450)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAF - - (1) - - (1)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1%

+-A=1+-H° 155,604 4776 228178 165,844 9,078 563,480
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F

+-F=1+-H° 296,942 1,049 29,712 74,274 3,999 405976
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MF

+ZA=1-H 339,203 = 21,618 97,258 3,155 467,294




N SRASBmAME \5
For the year ended 31 December 201!

HE_ -5 - SEET e

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. W% - BERZE ()

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress are depreciated on its cost less their residual values
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings BgF

Leasehold improvements HEWEEE

z

Equipment, furniture and fixtures — &%f&E - R LEE
Plant and machinery B M Es
Motor vehicles RE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has pledged buildings
having a carrying value of approximately HK$295,842,000
(2014: HK$18,917,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

ME - BB MR E ERTERIN) THRERA
MEFIERMEE - WABRERTHIFRFE

5%

The shorter of the lease terms and 5 years
HERRESFrBEE

20%-25%

10%-20%

20%

R-ZE—HE+_-_A=+—B A£EDIK
0 BR T (B 49 295,842,000 7T ( — & — U 4F -
18,917,000/ T) 2 EF - tEAAKEFES
—MERTTREE 2 HEIR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

lease in the PRC and amortised over the term of the lease of

50 years.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has pledged land
use rights having a carrying value of approximately
HK$38,961,000 (2014: HK$13,165,000) to secure general

banking facilities granted to the Group.

18. LAND USE RIGHTS 18. LT hfF FA#E
HK$'000
FHET
COST Jo %N
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NFE—F—H 108,034
Exchange differences ExRER (2,110)
Additions NE 15,751
Transfer to investment properties BESITEYE (5,727)
At 31 December 2014 R-F—WNF+=-_A=+—H 115,948
Exchange differences ExRER (6,559)
At 31 December 2015 RZFE—RAF+=—A=+—H 109,389
AMORTISATION #y
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—OFE—H—H 14,062
Charge for the year AR EHEE 2,960
Exchange differences PERER (277)
Transfer to investment properties BESINEYE (951)
At 31 December 2014 RZT—MFE+=—A=+—H 15,794
Charge for the year AN FEESH 2,996
Exchange differences fERER (1,006)
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—RF+_H=+—8H 17,784
CARRYING AMOUNTS BRHE{E
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—RAF+-_A=+—H 91,605
At 31 December 2014 R_ZT—NFE+—_HA=+—8H 100,154
The land use rights of the Group are held under medium-term REE NP7 T3 F AR TR E RO

B AWIRS0ELIE I o

R-Z—REF

“A=t+—R - AEEEEE

4938,961,0007 7T ( —Z — PO £ : 13,165,000
Bor) 2 L ERED TIRE - (ERARNEBFT
ES—RERITRE 2 BR -
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19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 19. EWmERE
2015 2014
—E—hF —ZE—MF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current finance lease receivables REREE 2 W EIE 9,954 7,661
Non-current finance lease receivables IR BIREE T & 2 FE WA 3,184 11,146
13,138 18,807
Leasing arrangements HERH
Certain of the Group’s storage equipment are leased out REBETEHEEIIRIEREHEELE - b7
under finance leases. All leases are denominated in RMB. EHENUARE:E st HE2TETHFEA
The average term of finance leases entered into is 4.5 years. A5 o
Amounts receivable under finance leases BMERE 2 EWRE
Present
Minimum value of
lease payments lease payments
BERAENK HENRRE
2015 2014 2015 2014

—ET-RHF —T-NF ZT—HF —T—NOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT FHxT FAT

Not later than one year —F LR 11,582 9,948 9,954 7,661
Later than one year and

not later than five years —FAERFUR 7,340 15,625 3,184 11,146

18,922 25,573 13,138 18,807

Less: unearned finance income & : A BEELELE U % (5,784) (6,766) n/a n/a

Present value of minimum

lease payments receivable  [EWHKIEAEFIBIRE 13,138 18,807 13,138 18,807
Unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance RIBEEAK - BIERMEHEERE Y BE Y EE
leases at the end of the reporting period are estimated at 1RFIEABEGET A 13,138,000 7T (—ZZ —

HK$13,138,000 (2014: HK$18,807,000). £ 1 18.807,000357T)
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19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 19. EWmERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract HEREFEBH ASHEREGHBHERR
date for the entire lease term. The average effective interest ERKFE o FHEBRFNELNH26% (ZE—H
rate is approximately 26% (2014: 15%) per annum. F 1 15%)
The finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting RmEHR BN EREW B HTRE -
period are neither past due nor impaired.
20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BEEE
Licence  Development Technical Customer
fee costs know-how contracts Total
TARE RS EvSEs RPAH @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT FET FET FEL
COST BA
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—m&E-A—AH 107,970 658,994 71,339 27514 865,817
Additions NE 4343 118,777 - - 123,120
Exchange differences Exz2 (29,614) (18,441) - - (48,055)
Write-off HisH - (24,984) - - (24,984)
At 31 December 2014 R-E—-NF+-A=+—H 82,699 734,346 71,339 27,514 915,898
Additions NE 1,168 170,794 - - 171,962
Exchange differences Ekzg (4,722) (47,932) - - (52,654)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=1+—H 79,145 857,208 71,339 27,514 1,035,206
AMORTISATION AND B RAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—m&—f—H 105,045 613,638 71,339 27514 817,536
Charge for the year REFNR 3,701 90,041 - - 93,742
Exchange differences Exzg (29,556) (17,533) - - (47,089)
Write-off ki - (24,984) - - (24,984)
At 31 December 2014 R-E-NF+-A=+—H 79,190 661,162 71,339 27,514 839,205
Charge for the year AEEHK 2,669 122,89 - - 125,565
Exchange differences EkzE (4,581) (42,000) - - (46,581)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-EF+-A=1+—H 77,278 742 058 71,339 27,514 918,189
CARRYING AMOUNTS FHEE
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=1+—H 1,867 115,150 - - 117,017
At 31 December 2014 RZE-NF+-A=+—-A 3,509 73,184 - - 76,693
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 20. BLEE (#)
Licence fee, technical know-how and customer contracts of AEBZHAEE BARMAEFAENHA
the Group were acquired from third parties. BE=FHEUS -
The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible BEEAEFTRFHABR - EBREENERE
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following LA HAR S
period:
Licence fee 1-5 years A EE 1&54F
Development costs 9 months-2 years FEER AR IMEMRAE2F
Technical know-how 5-8 years EHFI 5E Q4
Customer contracts 3 years EFAEH 34

21. DEFERRED TAX 21. IRIERIE
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets UTERRFEERBEFE  NEBHERL
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during FERLCEHIE(BE) EERE@ZS) -

the current and prior years.

Write-down of  Impairment of

Development inventories property, Revaluation of

cost and trade plant and investment

capitalised receivables equipment properties
[5j-¢3(4 RERER W% BER R&nx Total
BEHA  ESRIMN RibHfE Eff Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Tién Tén TEn TEn
At 1 January 2014 RZE-WE—-F—AH (9,694) 30,799 18,545 (44,710) (5,060)
Exchange differences ExEZ 215 532 (362) 876 1,261
Credit (charge) to profitor loss ~ PMB25st A (31R) 1,626 (1,958) - (2,776) (3,108)

Charge to properties revaluation ~ FAYIEE(ERET MR

reserve - - - (6,938) (6,938)
At 31 December 2014 RZF-RF+=A=1—H (7,853) 29,373 18,183 (53,548) (13,845)
Exchange differences ExkzZ h38 (732) (1,029) 3,029 1,806
Charge to profit or loss RERNR (2,515) (308) - (3,179) (6,002)

At 31 December 2015 RZE-HF+-A=t—H (9,830) 28,333 17,154 (53,698) (18,041)
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HE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

1. EFERE ()

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets RIEFIIRE B
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE F

At 31 December 2015, other than the deferred tax assets
and liabilities mentioned above, subsidiaries of the Group
had unused tax losses of approximately HK$392,687,000
(2014: HK$453,369,000) available for offset against future
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of those subsidiaries.
Included in unused tax losses was HK$79,020,000 (2014:
HK$72,943,000) that will expire by 2020 (2014: 2019). Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$881,215,000 (2014: HK$787,248,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

AT IOt A 6 S Ve 2 IBE R TR SR BT

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
45,487 47,556
(63,528) (61,401)
(18,041) (13,845)

R-ZFB-RAFT-A=+—H BREREE
HEBRERAEIN  AEEHNBRRA R
P BiTE E5 #8 #9392,687,0008 TT( = F — M
4F + 453,369,0007% 7T ) A 1 $5 R Sk F o
=R L PAIE - R o N R
W EERELEHIAAE - KPABEBRTA
79,020,000 7T (=% — 4 : 72,943,00078
)RR ZFZTF(ZFT—WF: ZF—N
) Em o Bt EiR ] R A o

REFRBMEMERE  URBRBARMNZ
TT)N\FE— A BEFABEUEN T RO EZA
BRZTEINH - BREWEHRER AR A B E MBS
A BT AR E R 2 58 881,215,000/8 7T (=
T —PU4E : 787,248,000 78 7T ) 1E H IR AE T 78
#H REAANEEEHZEYREENELD
B ARZEERZ AN RO R KA
BERED -
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HEZ

T 0 G N

22. ENTRUSTED LOAN RECEIVABLES

22. BB ZEFRERK

Carrying amount receivable RIEE R HEmEE
based on maturity A&z
set out in the loan agreements FEW R IERRE(E
Within one year —FR
More than one year but —FAEETRME

less than two years

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiary, Shanghai Suncom Logistics (“Suncom Logistics”)
had two entrusted loan agreements with China Fortune
Securities Co. Ltd. (“China Fortune”) and China Minsheng
Banking Corp., Ltd. Shanghai Branch (“Minsheng Bank”).
Pursuant to these agreements, Suncom Logistics entrusted
an aggregated amount of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$47,360,000) to a specific corporate
borrower at an interest rate of 9.25% per annum. China
Fortune acted as a manager to manage the entrusted loan for
a management fee of 1.2% per annum and Minsheng Bank
acted as the trustee of the entrusted loan for a trustee fee of
0.05% per month. These entrusted loans will be matured in
April 2017.

As at 31 December 2015, Suncom Logistics also had
an entrusted loan agreement with Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank. Pursuant to the agreement, Suncom
Logistics entrusted an aggregated amount of RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$35,520,000) to a specific
corporate borrower at an interest rate of 8.6% per annum.
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank acted as the trustee of
the entrusted loan for a trustee fee of 0.1% per month. This
entrusted loan will be matured in August 2016.

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—gF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
74,592 167,315
47,360 -
121,952 167,315

RZZE—AF+_A=+—8 £&£EZ2EN
BRRAELESRENMBETHERAR(EREN
M) RESFLBEREAQA(ES]) P
B RAERITROABRAE (LF51T) ([RAR
TR M ETER R - BIFZSHE -
BREHTEZISEFF M —RIETAAME
RAZB —E 8% A A RH 40,000,000 7T (48
L #947,360,000870) 2B - EBIEAE
BA BEXERGFHRLI2 2ERE
ﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁgﬂzxﬁA'tH%H
0.05%tEE - ZELZTAEFBNR T —+F
P9 A EIER -

RIB-—HF+-A=+—H  FEEHiaRE
EEBERERRITATL—MHETERBE
RIBEZWHE  BRETAE - FREARYE
30,000,000 7T (#5572 47 35,520,000 7T ) 2 K
BLRAT REERAMERA - BEFRIRF
MEBOEF S - LEHRBERRITEREZE
ER2ZFEAGAWER0.1%TEE - ZtER
BR-ZFE—NFENAZH -
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22. BREFEER (H)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s wholly
owned subsidiary, Simcom Wireless, had an entrusted loan
agreement with Agricultural Bank of China. Pursuant to
the agreement, Simcom Wireless entrusted an aggregated
amount of RMB33,000,000 (2015: equivalent to
approximately HK$39,072,000) (2014: HK$41,415,000) to
a specific corporate borrower at an interest rate of 10% per
annum. Agricultural Bank of China acted as the trustee of this
entrusted loan. Trustee fee of 0.05% per month is charged
by Agriculture Bank of China. This entrusted loan matured in
October 2015, and has been extended to April 2016 pursuant
to an extension loan agreement signed during the year.

As at 31 December 2014, Shanghai Sunrise Simcom had
five entrusted loan agreements with Orient Securities Asset
Management Company Limited (“Orient Securities”) and
China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd, Qingdao branch (the
“Bank”). These agreements were signed during the year
ended 31 December 2013. Pursuant to these agreements,
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom entrusted an aggregated amount
of RMB100,000,000 (or approximately HK$125,900,000
“Entrusted Assets”) to a specific corporate borrower.
Orient Securities acted as an asset manager to manage the
Entrusted Assets and the Bank acted as the trustee to the
Entrusted Assets.

Orient Securities was responsible to manage and invest the
Entrusted Assets into investment products under KZ{Z5F o
FrERELEERE—EL{EEAR (Chang An Trust Hui
Cheng Shi Ye Entrusted Loan Single Fund Trust Agreement)
with the instructions from Shanghai Sunrise Simcom. Details
of the investment products were as follow:

RZBE—RAFR=_ZT—NF+=_A=+—8 -
REBZEWB RSB EGETEZER
TRINERER B# - REZHE - RESE
G —SE @5 AR 33,000,000t (ZE—F
& MR 39,072,0008 7)) (ZE—PF
41,415,000/ 70) ZHREZE T —BETAH
ERA  BERERFEFEI0ERE - FRE
EBRITIEAZEZTERZZAA - hERER
THAKRE0.05% T E B - ZETEFBRZ
AT+ AR WREAFERNETZE
EEFHEEEE T —~FNA -

R-ZB—mWE+-_A=+—H  LEEEZH
RERFFFEETEERAR(EAESD
EHPBIRAERITRNDERAR(EED1T) ([3%
BITDAIERNETER B - LS5 HanNE
ECE-=F+-A=+—BItFEREL -
BEZSHE  DERERSBBE—SREA
R # 100,000,000 7T ( sk # 125,900,000 % 7T )
ZHIBE([ZAEENZT T RIETREMER
AN RABHEREEEEBAEEITEE
MZRITAEASZAEEZ XA

ROhBEHRER LERAFBBIIETERS
AEE  UHHERENRRZET e FHEXZ
AERE-—ESERARBA T ZREEM &
BERZFENT
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22. ENTRUSTED LOAN RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

22. BREFEER (M)

Principal amount

i

RMB20,000,000
AR 20,000,000 7T
RMB20,000,000
AE# 20,000,000 7T
RMB20,000,000
AEH 20,000,000 7T
RMB20,000,000
AR 20,000,000 7T
RMB20,000,000
AR 20,000,000 7T

Maturity date Effective interest rate
EIHHE BER=
April 2015 7% per annum
—E—RFMA FRERTE
April 2015 7% per annum
—ET—hHFMNA FMNETE
July 2015 7% per annum
—T—RFtA FENETE
July 2015 7% per annum
—E-RFtA FRERTE
July 2015 7% per annum
—E—RFtA FRXR7E

Management fee and trustee fee of approximately 0.2%
per annum and 0.06% per annum were charged by Orient
Securities and the Bank respectively. During the entrusted
period, Shanghai Sunrise Simcom might withdraw part of the
amount of the Entrusted Assets provided that the remaining
balance of the Entrusted Assets in the account should not be
less than RMBT1 million. Although the Group could withdraw
the Entrusted Assets in accordance with the entrusted loan
agreements, the management expected that the Group would
not withdraw the Entrusted Assets until its maturity. The
entrusted loans have been fully settled during the year ended
31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group received interest income
of HK$12,787,000 (2014: HK$12,417,000) and recognised
as other income.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, no entrusted loan
receivables have been past due or impaired.

All the Group’s entrusted loan receivables are denominated in
RMB, which is the functional currency of the respective group
companies.

RETBHFRZBITHDRIRFEELH02% K
0.06%WMERERFTEE NEXEHHE "
LtEREFEBURRIEEEN DS
HERPAZRXAEERBEIRINARYE
1,000,0007t - BEAEE A RERTERD
BIERXAEE - EEEERMAEENEH
AT ERMEAEE  ZFRAERCRE
E-E-RFT-_A=1T-HIFEAZEE

e
A

R-E—HFE+_A=+—0 A£EZK
B F B U A 12,787,000 T ( = F — Y £ -
12,417,000787T) » Wi HERAHMIA

RIE-—RAFR-_T-WF+-_A=1+—H"
FEWZFEE SR Ma s RE

AEBRARREZEETHUAARKEE - T
AREREBEERRZINEER -
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3. RBFE N E 2B

2015 2014
—E-HE — PO
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Costs of investments in unlisted RIEEMEE AR Z
associates "E 2R 35,011 31,694
Share of post-acquisition losses DGR B E EE (2,294) (1,033)
Less: Asset classified as held for sale & : DEABELEZEE (27,384) (28,967)
5,333 1,694

The Group had interests in the following associates:

Form of
business Country of
Name of entity structure incorporation
RB%H 354 1 BRUGAEES
Xian Helicopter Co. Incorporated The PRC
Limited
(“¥ian Helicopter”) Ba AT Gl
ERERERLT
(IEZERE)
Bejing Yunyfangyu 10T Incorporated The PRC
Limited (‘Beijing Yunyi")
TRESHENER A ol
FRAA(RES))
LERENRENR Incorporated The PRC
BRAR(LERS))
A hE

Principal
place of
operation

TRERR

The PRC

The PRC

e

The PRC

R

REBPNTIIB L AR R AR

Proportion of Proportion
Class of registered capital of voting
share held held by the Group power held Principal activities
AEEf
FRRHEH HRERLH FERERLH TERH
% %
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZB-Rf _T-ME ZR-5F IF
Registered - - - - Provision of industrial
capital (Note i) (Note i) (Note i) (Note i use helicopter semvices
&R - - - - RETEREAN RS
W) wE) WE) )
Registered 45 4 45 4 Software development
capital
g 45 4 45 & il
Registered 40 - 40 - Software development
capitl (Note i) (Note i)
AR 0 - 4 - HEGEE
(W) (i)
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (coNTINUED)

23. REFE N T 2 s ()

Notes:

()

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (“Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with the existing major shareholder of Xian Helicopter
(the “Acquirer”), to dispose of the Group’s entire 30% equity
interest in Xian Helicopter for a consideration of RMB26,160,000
(or equivalent to approximately HK$32,831,000) which will be
settled by three instalments. As at 31 December 2015, part of
the consideration amounting to RMB20,950,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$24,805,000) (2014: RMB12,950,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$16,252,000)) has been received
by the Group and the remaining RMB5,210,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$8,026,000) (2014: RMB13,210,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$16,579,000)) has not been
settled. The transaction will be completed upon the receipt of the
full consideration by the Group. As at 31 December 2015, the
interest in Xian Helicopter has been classified as asset classified
as held for sale and the consideration received of HK$24,805,000
(2014: HK$16,252,000) has been classified as liability associated
with asset classified as held for sale.

The sale proceeds exceed the carrying amount of the interest in
Xian Helicopter and, accordingly, no impairment loss has been
recognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group incorporated
/BB B with registered capital of RMB20,000,000. Initial
capital injection of RMB4,000,000 was made by the Group
upon incorporation. As at 31 December 2015, the Group and
other investors had capital commitment of RMB4,000,000
(equivalent to HK$4,736,000) and RMB12,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$14,208,000). The Group’s capital commitment is set out in
note 36.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the associates
to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to
repay loans or advance made by the Group.

Bt -

()

(ii)

BE-T-—NF+-A=+—ALEFE ~&£E
HATEARBREFERR(ESDICZER
R ((EERE])  HERXEEREREAK Y
2E30% i iE - B R AR 26,160,000 7T (5%
FHER#)32,831,00047T) « D =B o B
—T-AF+ZR=1+—8 AKHBKIBH
KB A R # 20,950,000 7T (#8257 49 24,805,000
B (ZT—N4F : AR 12,950,000 7 (1%
A #716,252,0007 7T )) + # T~ AR # 5,210,000
T (%R 498,026,000 T (ZT—MF : AR
¥ 13,210,000 7T ( 48 % 1 #)16,579,0007% 7T ))
BRGNS - ZR SN AEBBREERERT
KeR-ZZT—RF+-A=+—8 REAZXEFH
W2 RREDEARIELEEE  MEKRREY
24,805,000 7T (ZZ— M4 : 16,252,000 7T )
EDEARBEHELE 2 AERBZ 81 -

HEMBSTRBANAREN G ZRE
B8 Et SRR ERE -

BE-_T-—AFt+_A=+—HLEEE &
SEFAMKLIEERS  FMERAARKE
20,000,000 7T © AR EE R MK LB EE A
R¥4,000,0007T - A-E—RE+-A=+—
B AEERHMOREENERREAARE
4,000,000 7T (1855 7 4,736,000 7T ) R A R
12,000,000 7T (182574 14,208,000587T) » A5 M|
ZERANEFRMES6 -

BEARARERETRAAEEEEE S NE
BAEERRZERRBRZENTEZFEXR
R -
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24, THHERE

2015 2014
—E-AfF —EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Available-for-sale investments comprise: A] it H &8 & B 3E
Unlisted equity securities in the PRC ~ AF Bl 7 3F FRAE 5 16,875 16,875
The above unlisted equity investments represent investments Fat3E F R AR ERBIEERH—FEEP
in unlisted equity securities issued by a private entity MBI A TR ITAIE L AR AN E
incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost less %o AANFENSIBETHEMRK EFHR
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the BENFEETREEASME - RN EREER
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that BB ERBEmMTE -
the Directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.
25. INVENTORIES 25. F&
2015 2014
—E—AF —ZE-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Raw materials R 316,903 222517
Work in progress RS 39,542 23,530
Finished goods S m 311,826 108,318

668,271 354,365
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26. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 26. REAPNEHEWE

FOR SALE

HK$'000

FAT
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—F—H—H 483,710
Additions nNE 208,536
Exchange differences [ER=R (9,446)
Transfer to properties held for sale EREENEYE (226,852)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=A=+—H 455,948
Additions = 170,553
Exchange differences ExRER (25,795)
Transfer to properties held for sale EEHENEYE (373,696)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=A=+—H 227,010
The properties under development for sale of the Group are REBERFMOEEWEMNRE R EZENE
situated in the PRC and located on land use rights under FREATR 4045 8 T (FE AR 0 | o
medium-term leases.
Included in the properties under development for sale RZE—RAFFZA=+—8  2BEARHE
classified as current assets as at 31 December 2015 is an EZEEFREEYEBEIE—290,951,000%
amount of HK$90,951,000 (2014: HK$157,833,000) which st (—Z—PU4F : 157,833,000/870) 2 774 -
represents the carrying value of the properties expected to be EARBEAZEEHNREARET @ A%
completed and sold after more than twelve months from the SRR M 2 W 2 BRE(E -
end of the reporting period.
27. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 27. FESHEME

The Group’s properties held for sale are all situated in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

AEBFFEHEMEOURPE - FRERHEH
EMEDARA R A BIRHE 2 BIRETIE
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28. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 28. HitREBEMEE

The normal credit period given on sale of goods relating HEMEFHE RS R - BBRES R ELRE
to handsets and solutions, display modules and wireless BREHE s ENe —REEHASEOK - D
communication modules is 0-90 days. A longer period is EAREEE RITEKBRAMERRIER .
granted to a few customers with whom the Group has a BREFQERRZEZEH - WEREEMELT
good business relationship and which are in sound financial ZEH -

condition. There is no credit given to sales of properties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net AT AR ERE AR (BERERIWA 2 A BRE ) &
of allowance for bad and doubtful debts, as well as notes WE SR (N RIZREME ) LA R BN RIE L
receivables presented based on the invoice dates at the end BEHBEL 2RO -

of the reporting period, which approximated the revenue
recognition dates:

2015 2014
—Z—hfF —ET—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables FEUE SRR
0-30 days FTE230K 169,379 199,100
31-60 days 31 260K 75,372 31,550
61-90 days 61 290K 26,913 4,475
91-180 days 91 & 180k 3,688 1,851
Over 180 days i@ 180K 30,964 35,987
306,316 272,963
Less: Accumulated allowances W BETEE (31,551) (32,877)
Trade receivables EIE SRR 274,765 240,086
Notes receivables (Note) FRUCERIE (K7a)
0-30 days TE30K 17,591 15,660
292,356 255,746
Note: Notes receivables represent the promissory notes issued by banks Wit - FEWNEE AR WELRIBITEHE 2 A H ZRE -

received from the customers.
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28. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(CONTINUED)

28.

HtRB S mEE (8)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice a
year. The Group has policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which is based on an evaluation of the collectability and
age analysis of accounts on every individual trade debtor basis
and on management’s judgment including creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$6,348,000 (2014:
HK$7,871,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss
because they were either subsequently settled as at the date
of this report or there was no historical default of payments
by the respective customers. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 150 days (2014: 170 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired

90-180 days
181-365 days

90 E 180K
181 £365K

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year FEEH
Exchange differences EXRER
Impairment losses recognised FrigEsR 2 R EEE
Impairment losses reversed BB &R
Balance at end of the year FRERR

EWMEMHERPR  AEEGTEEETPH
FEERITRETFPNEERE - TFRES
FEAMAK - AREEAREK - RESHEEK
B MR R B 2 AR m AR ARl R AR I AT A
RERBZHH (BREBREFPZEENER
BEERRE) - RRBRIELERE -

NEBZEREZEREHNBSRAAE
/56,348,000 7T (= Z — 04 : 7,871,000
TO) KRR RSB ACBRmALE
B EsRERRERE - BEEREBED R
HEABMBENERELRLIEHBRMNK
S8k o AN Z A R TR IK T
Mo RERWRERZ FHERABIS0OK(ZE
—PO4 : 170K) °

EEMERBENEKE SRR 2Rk

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
3,670 1,805
2,678 6,066
RERBEZEH
2015 2014
—E-REF —Z=—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
32,877 32,465
(1,929) 412
1,833 -
(1,230) -
31,551 32,877
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HttRBemMEE (8)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of
HK$57,495,000 (2014: HK$98,253,000) are denominated in
USD, which are not denominated in the functional currency of
the respective group entities.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and will be
settled within twelve months after the end of reporting period.
Deposits mainly represented trade deposits paid to third
parties.

The following is the breakdown of other receivables, deposits
and prepayments:

VAT recoverable AU EIE(E T
Deposits paid to suppliers for MEEFEZNT
purchasing inventories HER ke
Deposits paid to sub-contractors PR
for construction of properties FoREER LS

Deposits paid for the acquisition

of land use rights for property RNz izse
development purpose
Prepayments TERTRIR
Other receivables H A EYARR
Entrusted loan interest receivable FEREEEHA L
Government subsidy receivable FEURER )2 B,

Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand.

FAULHE T3 AR R B R

RERBEZEEH ()

R-ZT—AF+-A=+—H 57,495,000
JL(—Z—PU4F : 98,253,000/87T) HEKE 5
BRFUAETTETE - WIEARBEEEEERNINAE
EEEGTHE -

Hip B RS EER - 8 RERMEHR
BT_EANER RETBRINTE=T
BT -

AT REMEEER  ReRENKEBZD
i

2015 2014
—ZT—hfF —ZE—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHBT
82,380 91,775
99,834 90,557
557 26,319
28,416 30,720
10,584 4,588
13,189 5,938
5,879 -
13,870 -
254,709 249,897

e 2 R SRR AR AR R IR

BRTEREER  REREEREER -
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29.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

29.

EEFRTERRBITERK
Re

30.

The bank balances and cash of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB, HK$ and USD. The bank balances
receive variable interest at an average rate of 1% (2014: 1%)
per annum. Included in the bank balances and cash and
pledged bank deposits was an amount of HK$316,422,000
(2014: HK$296,451,000) denominated in RMB, which is not
freely convertible into other currencies.

The Group’s bank deposits of HK$102,864,000 (2014:
HK$40,913,000) as at 31 December 2015 were pledged to
secure the short-term general banking facilities granted by
banks and discounted bills. The bank deposits will mature on
clearance of the discounted bills.

At 31 December 2015, bank balances of HK$84,431,000
(2014: HK$35,371,000) are denominated in USD, which are
not denominated in the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

STRUCTURED DEPOSITS

30.

REEZRTEHRRESETBUARE BT
RETCFHE - RITEBIRDFBF R B - F15
FRRBIB(ZZE—WF : 1E) - BI7&H%
MESURBEBETFRABE —ZEUAR
HESHE 2 FU0E 316,422,000 70 ( Z T — P4 -
296,451,000/7T) * ZEFIE A ERERA
Hgk o

AEBR_E-RFT-A=+—HZRTF
7102,864,000 7% 7T (= Z —M4 : 40,913,000
BT B TERA - AERERRITELEN &
RITRVAE RABRRRZIERF - RITIFFGNRE
REBHEERIE -

MNZZB—RE+-A=+—HB UETHE
B8R 1T 4584 /84,431,000 T ( — 2 — P 4 ¢
35,371,000/ 70) * BEFKIEBEIL I ARBEE
FRNINEEETE -

mEEER

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
entered into investment contracts of structured investment
products with banks. They were principal protected notes
with maturity less than 1 month. The counterparty banks
guaranteed 100% of the invested capital and the return of
which were determined by reference to the change in the
price movements of underlying assets. These investments
had been designated as financial assets at FVTPL at initial
recognition. The structured deposits were stated at fair value
and were determined by reference to the quoted redemption
price provided by the counterparty banks. The structured
deposits have been matured and settled during the current
year.

BE_Z-NF+-_A=t—HLFE £%
BESMBTIVABEREERZKREAR
e FRERAIHAR—EARNNRARE
1B o $FTIRITRFRRL 100% HAEBA - M
CRANRIEEEEZ EREHETE - RARE
ERVIT RS E RB BEER A TENR
ZEWEE - REEBUEEFRATFENR
RHETDZEHFHRITARFEZERQREE
E o BEUERCRAFEIBTEE -
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31. RAE

Trade and notes payables, other payables, deposits received
and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purposes and ongoing costs.

Trade and notes payables

Trade and notes payables (other than for the construction
of properties held for sale) principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. The normal credit period
taken for trade purchases is 30-90 days.

Payables and accrued expenditure on construction of
properties held for sale comprise construction costs and other
project-related expenses which are payable based on project
progress measured by the Group.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and notes payables at
the end of the reporting period presented based on the invoice
dates for trade payables or date of issuance for notes payables
is as follows:

0-30 days TE30K
31-60 days 31 260K
61-90 days 61 E90K
Over 90 days HBEI0 X

As at 31 December 2015, included in the trade and notes
payables, HK$150,941,609 (2014: HK$173,150,569) are
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

BNEZEREFE - HEMERX  2%iR
EREAFEIZEBEESHAR I AENREA
VAR FHERK R

ENEZRARRE
ENESEANER (T EERERIEHED
X)IZCRAEEZEIRBEE - EHK
B2 MREEHR/IDENX -

FRERHEHE R 2 BRNRRAMEF FAX 2R
BERA R EAEIE B AR 2 FX - ARAIA
BREAEEFEZRBERESN -

NTARBERRAEBZENEZERALE
BRENESERZEZEANRENERZE
B EME L 2 RRER AT

2015 2014
—Z—hfF —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
569,902 273,817
35,444 35,162
4,112 6,489
18,943 91,355
628,401 406,823

RZZE—AF+-A=+—0 ENESER
M BN IEAEITFHME Z 3078 150,941,609
It (—Z—PO4 : 173,150,569 7T) © A3
FIENSELAMERA S B E BRI AE B HE -
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31. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

31. TREE (#)

Other payables, deposits received and accruals
The following is the breakdown of other payables, deposits
received and accruals:

Deferred income (note) EIEWA (H12E)

Payables on acquisition of property, WHEMIEE - BB &
plant and equipment S 2 FEITBR SR

Deposits received from customers HHEEEWRER
for sales of goods B 2 &

Deposits received from customers REEMHERE
for pre-sales of properties WE 2 &

Accruals JEETFIR

VAT payables JERHEET

Other payables H b FE(TBR TR

Note: As at 31 December 2015, other payables included deferred
income on government grants amounting to HK$58,687,000
(2014: HK$50,063,000). Government grants are given to support
the research and development of advanced electronic devices
and technology and used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. These grants are released to income to cover actual
expenditure used in research and development activities or
transferred to profit or loss over useful lives of the related assets.
Included in deferred income on government grants amounting to
HK$52,550,000 (2014: HK$47,140,000) represented the income
that is not expected to be realised to profit or loss within 12 months
of the reporting date based on the depreciation rates of the related
assets and therefore has been presented to non-current liabilities.

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
and an associate

Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Hitb A RN - ERRSRERRE
AT SEMENERR - EliRE REFTHRIEZ
DT

2015 2014
—E-hF —ZT—MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
58,687 50,063
12,103 4,796
129,258 74,013
56,526 64,691
9,001 12,504
7,455 4,783
15,780 18,945
288,810 229,795

MiF W-ZT—RE+=—A=+—8  HthENEXE
FEEFIE B WA Z i 3E Y A 58,687,000 % 7T (=
T — U4 : 50,063,000 7T ) © BATE B WA TY
PP ST #5 S B F okt e BT 2 BF B - A U
ME  BELIEE ZESHISEREWRATH
MRS 2 FW G s BRI A B 2 i A R i
- BNEBERBRAZEERATBE—%
52,550,000 7T (ZZ —PU4F : 47,140,000 % 7T)
R - BB EEITEX - RBAENKE
TEREEARE+—EARNBETEE -
M2 AERBDELE

BB R R —EBE QR ERRRFR

BRARAREER 2R REELEER -
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32. RITEE

Secured:
Bank loans (note i)
Discounted bills (note ii)

Notes:

(i

(ii)

BHEM
TER (L)
BRI (Hratii)

At the end of the reporting period, the loans include an amount of
HK$47,360,000 denominated in RMB, which are the functional
currency of the respective group entities (2014: an amount of
HK$258,858,000 of loans denominated in USD and an amount of
HK$60,102,000 denominated in RMB). The loans carry variable
interest at LPR plus a spread (2014: USD denominated loans carry
variable interest at LIBOR plus spread; RMB denominated loans
carry variable interest at LPR plus a spread or at a fixed interest
rate). All loans are repayable within one year. Pursuant to the loan
agreements, the bank borrowings were secured by investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, land use rights and
pledged bank deposits as disclosed in notes 16, 17, 18 and 29

respectively.

Discounted bills include an amount of HK$54,901,000
denominated in USD and an amount of HK$231,259,000
denominated in RMB, which is the functional currency of
respective entities of the Group, and are secured by pledged bank
deposits. The effective interest rates of the discounted bills range
from 1.6% to 2% per annum. Bills are issued through intra-group
transactions and the relevant group entities discounted the bills to
independent third parties. The bills receivable and payable issued

between group entities are fully eliminated on consolidation.

Wit

(i)

(ii)

2015 2014
—ZT-EF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
47,360 318,960
286,160 -
333,520 318,960

RIEHR  FHERBREAREEEER Y
BEE I NRMEAHE 2 B5047,360,0008 L (=%
—PU4F - AT AHE 2 B 54 258,858,000 7T &
UAREESHEZ B3060,102,00077T) - AREER
m BIRITRAEFEMEEZFHF XL (=
—IOF : UETEHEZ ERIRMBERITRIENR
Eﬂu%%@ﬁb%ﬂ%aﬁ% P AARBHEZER
}EE%\%W%\J%M@%z;?&%ﬁU%ﬁ“iﬂ%%#
8) IEERHER—FRNEE - REEZH
& ﬁﬁmﬂiéﬂwxé#@¥~ ME - BB K&&
& T E AR R ERRITERERER(H
BURAMEE16 ~ 17 ~ 18 & 29 4% EE) o

BLR R B BIE AR ITETME 2 £ %154,901,00078
T RAEEEEER R EBARKE
Z & FH231,259,0008 7T » I A B EIFIRITF K
EREM - WREBZERFANENN1L6ER
2B - ZERBEEBEEANRRZET MEM
SEERHRBRETBEUE= - SEERM
FREs1T 2 R R B RIBR R & ARRRS 2 BUE
8 o
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33. SHARE CAPITAL

33. BA

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised:
At 1 January 2014,
31 December 2014 and
31 December 2015

Issued:
At 1 January 2015
Shares issued upon exercise
of share options

At 31 December 2015

Details of the exercise of share options are set out in note 38.

FBE(EC.1 BTz BBk

R-ZE—RF—HF—H
TTE RN R T 2 B 1D

—ZET-RafF+-A=+—H

Number Share
of shares capital
R BB ;&S

'000 HK$'000
F& FAT
3,000,000 300,000
2,557,499 255,750
398 40
2,557,897 255,790

TTIERBRE 2 FEBE I EE 38 »



34. RESERVES

34, #E

BRANKEBERAE & AFF7
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Properties revaluation reserve

At 1 January 2014

Surplus on transfer of land use
rights and property, plant and
equipment to investment properties
at fair value

Deferred tax liabilities on surplus on
transfer of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment to
investment properties at fair value

At 31 December 2014 and 2015

Translation reserve

At 1 January 2014
Exchange differences arising on
translation to presentation currency

At 31 December 2014
Exchange differences arising on

translation to presentation currency

At 31 December 2015

MEEMRE

RZE—MNFE—A—H
&b E AR - BER
BEEREERATENIE

ZIRBWEL B

1 L E R R - B K
B S ES NSl
REMEZ BB ZBERAAR

R_ZE—NEER—ZFT—RF+-_A=+—H

WZZE—RF+=-A=+—H

HK$'000
TR

82,012

27,753

(6,938)

102,827

HK$'000
TAT

279,093

(17,598)

261,495

(83,922)

177,573

1Z3
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The Group made minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of office premises of approximately
HK$10,277,000 (2014: HK$7,002,000), in which
approximately HK$5,531,000 (2014: HK$4,281,000) were
capitalised in development cost.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT 35. REHELH
The Group as lessee AEBEREBA

AEERBAEYEMRBGEREZ N 2 &
(KA £ FIEL 410,277,000/ TT( =T — U4
7,002,00077T) + HF#15,5631,000787T (=F
—PO4F : 4,281,00087C) BRFAERATEAR
e

RMEHR - AEERBETAIRELEHEE
M2 ARRFERSKEAEZZHENT

2015 2014

— —TMF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within one year —FR 3,553 1,793
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFRTF(HEMFEBEEA) 1,597 510
5,150 2,303

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and
rentals are fixed for an average of two years.

The Group as lessor
All of the properties held have committed tenants for the next
2-10 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments:

HEZFOFHMERME - MAESEEHF

FEEERHBEA
FRERE ZYMERK2E10FHFHEE A -

P REBEEER ) 2 RARKIER

k> X

wE
115

H
gL

- M

2015 2014

—E-AF —E-mE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

Within one year —FR 26,500 21,325
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERF(HEMFBEERN) 39,410 45,998
After five years AFE 1,692 7,918

67,602 75,241




36. COMMITMENTS
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Expenditure in respect of
investment in an associate
contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial
statements (note 23)

Expenditure in respect of properties
under development for sale
contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated
financial statements

Expenditure in respect of
properties under development
for sale authorised but not
contracted for

36. EiE
2015 2014
—E—FE —Z—pF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
EEESEE NNy e
B BEBEN—EBE AR
ZIRERZ (H5223)
4,736 -
BEETHERAGRE ISR P S
ZEERPHEERMY
158,672 95,327
EREERTOZERT
HEVFERY
- 35,348

1Z5
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

37. RIKBERIFE

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under rules and
regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all its employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of
the Group in Hong Kong are required to join the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ salaries and are charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts of HK$58,023,000 (2014:
HK$50,828,000) contributed by the Group to the schemes
and cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

AEEREARFIMERTESTEKOAEMES
ERER Y —EARESHE - TERBBHN
SEEEHAMARESTE - HHFIRREEE
REEHRE—ADLIEL - WRERES S
ZHRARIE T AR E BaR b - 8T
SHECEEHRASENEMEESFEE
H—BYERESER - ERRESTEIHE
RE AEEEIERFEZEEEREEA
B-RZE—RAFRZTE—OF+ZA=1+—
B - WL 2 HEER AT A VEHR AN S B R R R
FEZEAMHER -

AEERTEZHBRRERTEZERR
A 28 -REREEAEMBFE LR
BAEE - EARAKIEKRENEER D
Lo tb R AR M ET B R - AERBFLR KGR
FEH 2 E—BERIERIEEHN -

RAEE - AEERF 485 58,023,000
BT (ZZ—4F : 50,828,000/&7T) » MR4ER
BE@mARMBR A - KRTEBRIET IR
AIRIEFE L R AT BB 2 (R BRE -
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8. lBIRAES &

The Company had two share option schemes, including
pre-initial public offering share options scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Options”) and post-initial public offering share options
scheme (the “Post-IPO Options”). Both Pre-IPO Options and
Post-IPO Options were adopted on 30 May 2005. The major
terms and conditions of the two schemes are set out below:

(A) Pre-IPO Options

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included Directors of the
Company or its subsidiaries, senior management
and other employees of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options might be granted under the
Pre-IPO Options shall not exceed 44,000,000
shares.

Any cancellation of options granted but not
exercised must be approved by the board of
directors. Any options cancelled cannot be
regranted.

Subject to the vesting period set out in note 38 of
this report and the terms of the Pre-IPO Options,
an option may be exercised by the grantee at any
time during the period of 10 years commencing
on the date of grant.

No consideration is required to be paid by the
grantee for the grant of options.

ARBEMBBERETS - BRERAREES
GG R R=PNGE: sV ke = I
RERAFRBERBRESS([BERRAMEE
RIBRMEE D) - BRAREERBARER S
RERAABRERBEEAION_ETAF
TA=1THBRS - A B Z TR GTME
LN

() BERAFBEANBRETE
() BHERRZEERMYE -

REBEANRSEMBARE
CAEEZSREREREME

m g W

\
’

(i)  ERAFEEBRERT SRR
Z BRI MR = B R
AJ 83 44,000,000 A% ©

(iv) (HAIEHEERBERITE 2 BARE
AREFEERE o NS EHEBR
TR EEHR N -

()  REBEARENZIBHME 2 FE
N E R ERIBIRERT 8 2 (5
B AR AR R A EEE
HAFEIRE RS 17 e R AR AE -

(vi) AR ABERERZ BRI AME
AHAE -

LZ7
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

38. BRHERE (A

(A)

(B)

Pre-IPO Options (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

The exercise price of an option is 60% of the offer
price in the Company’s initial public offering on
21 June 2005.

The life of the Pre-IPO Options shall be valid
and effective from 30 May 2005 to 14 June
2005, after which time no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Pre-IPO Options
shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.

Post-1PO Options

(i

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as the
board of directors may consider appropriate.

On 12 December 2008, a resolution to renew the
10% general limit of the Post-IPO Options was
duly passed by the shareholders of the Company.
The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the Post-
IPO Options must not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at 12 December 2008 (i.e. 151,749,000
shares, being 5.93% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this annual report) and
in any event the total maximum number of shares
which might be issued or issuable upon exercise of
all outstanding options should not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. No consideration is required to be paid by the
grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option must be the highest
of:

o the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

° the average closing price of the share for the
5 trading days immediately preceding the

grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

(A)

(B)

BRORBERBRESS (F)

(vii)

(viii)

BREZITEERARRAR_ZT
HERNAZT—RETBERRRAE
EHEREEEZ60%

B ARBERNBRETS 2 FH

TEERFRA=THE-ZZ
AFEXNA+TUE BB ERR
g BT EE— PR ERE -
MEE R AREE AR E 2 15
REFBEMFEDATRR IR
R o

BRARBERBRENS

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BHERSEERHE -

SEERREMREINTES
NREESFRERRAEIEMA
+

RZZEENFE+ZA+TZH &R
AR E VBB TRREAREH &
RARBERBRIEE Z10%
—RRER - RIBERAFEERE
P MR &I AT 4% H 0 BB AR A S Ko
H&ESKHBE - TEBBN_-F
ZENF+ZRBTZHBZITRN
2 10% (B1151,749,000 J% i 15 -
HERARBRAFRAYD T
B2 5.93%) - MEATTEME H R
1Tz R AT sE 2 31T AT 3%
T &= N B - EwiE M
BRI RD BITRAZ
30%

Rz ZA(HEZRR) BAR
BB R EEERAE -
HFIRNBERER 2 BRSNS

BEREZITEBUARUT ZES
%

o REHAMKHZWKTHE :

. EEBEASNEERSE
B2 R : &

e  RiOpZEME-



38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

BRANKEBERAE —F AFF7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MIEEMAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

38. BRHERE (#)

(B) Post-IPO Options (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The life of the Post-IPO Options was effective until
29 May 2015, after which time no further option will
be granted but provisions of the Post-IPO Options
shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.

On 19 July 2013, the Company granted an
aggregate of 63,000,000 share options under the
Post-IPO Options to eligible participants thereof,
including certain employees and business
partners of the Group (“Grantees”). The Options
entitle the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate
of 63,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each in the share capital of the Company upon
exercise in full.

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding 1
per cent of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number
of shares already issued or to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted
to such grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further
grant exceeding one per cent of the total number
of shares in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the shareholders in
general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

(B) BERARMBERBRETSE ()

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BRARBEERBRESZFH
BE-Z-HFHEA-TARAIL
—EHAR - RESTERREER
¥ BERARESRBIRETZ
ZIEXEFRA BT E A+ K
N R o

R-ZE—=FtA+NIB AR
AIRBERAMEERBIES
Rtz ER2RE (BEAR
SEETREREREBBMHE(TARER
A1) H & 4£63,000,000 15 8 ik
B o FEBHE IS AR BB TR R S T
ERANENRBEARRBRAHEH
63,000,000/ FAXE(E0.10/E T2
g mA o

i AR AR 121 A B (R
MREBREMNEBRNITEZS
BN 2D BT TEITR
NRBBAERCHITRNDAR
1% BRIFERRRIRRAE LA
LR RIFT Az 77 A - B A
BT Al I AR AR B RER
FE o

WA ERRE R BERIN HHER
HEE B 12188 A W AR ARSI
B Ao B (i B BT i) M
BYRTEDE T REE A
B AZPTERBEE (BHRERDTRE
AR NORTTEE) 2 #IT KRG
Tz EABBE BTN A
1% - BIZZIRREIMNE L B /A &
BARRBBRRNBIRAE LATH
o MzB2EEREBEALA

MERZHERR °
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

38. BB S (#)

The following table disclose details of the options under
Pre-IPO Options, Post-IPO Options held by the grantees and

movements in such holdings:

Name

Category of participants of scheme Date of grant

SEAEH HEEL] ik

Directors

£

Thang Jianping Pre-IP0 Options 3052008

BT EriFEEn CIEEE
B HA=1A
PostP0 Options 2832008
EfiFRER TR
B BN
Post1PO Options 39209
EriFEER TR
B A=A

Tang Rongrong Post1PO Options 832008

e EfiFRER TR
B BN
Post1PO Options 39209
EriFEER TR

BRE 1AZR

Exercisable period

L42006:052005
“EEERA-RE
“F-RERAZTAA
1420092132018
“EENERATRAR
“5-E=R4A
154201029019
“5-TERATRAR
“E-nENAZH
1420092132018
“EEERATRAR
“5-)E=R4A
154201029019
“5-TERATRAR
“E-nENAZH

Brercise
price
per share

i
k6
HK§
AL

0§

069

068

069

068

Qutstanding
it

1 January
014
R-2-D%
-B-B
AR

175,000

00

8775000

936,000

351000

TREEAEARBE QAN SRR
B % R AR T AR B 2 IR
ZHERREHS T B -

Reallocated

upon
appointment Qutstanding ~ Reallocated Qutstanding
of chief Lapsed it upon  Exercised LapsediExpired it

erecutive during 31 December ~~ change of during during 31 December

officer the year 014 diectorate the year the year 2015
RERER H-2-IE H-2-3%
HfERER t2R=-B EERE4 T2R=1-8

B EARN HAGE  ENAR  EAGE EARW/EE  MAGE

(Mo )
()

- - 100 (L7s500) - - -

- - B0 (80 - - -

- - 8RN0 87700) - - -

- - %600 - - - %00

- - 3510000 - - - 3510000
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38. BRHERE (#)

Category of participants

S528H

Directrs (continued)
B

Chen Tat Wing,Richrd
Rk

LiirHong
)]

Chief evecutive officer
EEEGH
L
(anpointed on
11 Septemoer 2014)
BErt
(RZZ-EEART-A
Bk

Name
of scheme

THeE

PrePO Opions
ERDRRE
B
PostP0 Optons
BRNRREK
ERE
PostIPO Opions
ENDRREL
B
PostP0 Optons
BRNEREK
ERE
PostIPO Options
ENDRREL
B
PostP0 Optons
EH/NB;ZXE
ERE
PastIP0 Opions
ENDRREL
B

PastPO Opions
ﬁmggm

BREE

Date of grant

Rung

3052000
“E3RE
fili
2832008
)L
=A-thA
39009
BRIk
1AZH
13112007
BN
t-At=A
832008
L)
ZA=t/A
392009
BNk
1828
39009
BRIk
1AZH

392009
ik
fLE=A

Exercisable period

{8
(o2

14.2006-95205
“ELERA-BR
“E-RERACTAA
154.2009-27 32018
“SENERATRAR
“5-\E=R-f4A
154210292019
“I-ZFMATERE
“I-NENAZA
1420081211017
“5E)\ERF-AE
“5-tEr-A12A
54032732018
“ITNERATERE
“E-N\E=RtA
154.2010—2.92019
“5-EERATRAR
“E-NERAZA
154210292019
“E-TEMATRAR
“I-NENAZA

1BA10292009
“F-EERATREE
“ENENACR

Bxercise

price

per share

£
ik
Hes
A

0y
069

068
069

068

068

068

Redllocated

pon
Quistanding ~ appointment Qutstanding ~ Reallocated Qutstanding
it of chief Lapsed it upon  Exercsed  Lapsed/Expired it

Thanuay — evecutive during 31 December ~ change of during during 31 December

2014 officer the year 014 diectorate the year the year 015
R-8-BE  HERER H-%-BF H-2-1f

-f-B  HfiERER t2R=t-R EfE4 t2A=1-A

HAE A ERAM MARE  ENAR  EAGR EARW/EE  HAGR
(Netei)

585,000 - BB - - (98000 -
1872000 - 180 - - - 18R
3510000 - 3510000 - - - 3510000

11700 - 17w - - -1

RNV - B - - - Bw

93,000 - O - - - OR0

- - 0000 - - 9300
D910 L9410 (10179000) - (000 1220120
93,000 - R0 (9300 - - -
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

38. BRHERE (A

Category of participants

S528H

Ermployees o the Group
15868

Consuants

B

Total
5]

Exercisable at the end
of the year
RERTF(E

Name
of scheme

iR

mmmm
ENNERE
%kk#ﬂ
Post-IP0 Options
ENDRREL
EhEr
Post-P0 Options
ERORRER
ERE
Post-P0 Options
ENDRREL
e
Post-P0 Options
ERORRER
B
Post-P0 Options
ENDRREL
e
MW%m
R

%%k%ﬂ

Date of gran

Rung

3052008
351k
1f=1E
25%%
— 7 2/ \ﬁ
RATzA
13112007
5EHE
A=A
832008
I
=t
39009
5N
1AZE
97203
5E
AR
1972013
Ik
tAthA

Exercisable period
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)
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Notes to the Consolidated ﬁnancial Statements
ire BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

38. BRHERE (#)

Notes:

(i) In relation to each grantee of the options granted under the Pre-
IPO Options, subject to the vesting period set out below and terms
of the Pre-IPO Options, an option may be exercised by the grantee
at any time during the period of 10 years commending on the date
of grant, 25% of the options will vest during the period from 1 April
2006 to 31 December 2006 and in each of the three calendar years
from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 12 May 2006
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each of the
four calendar years from 1 January 2007.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 13 November
2007 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each
of the four years from 1 April 2008.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 28 March 2008
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the four
year from 15 April 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 3 September
2009 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of
the four year from 15 April 2010.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 19 July 2013
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the four
year from 15 April 2014.

(ii) Zhang Jianping resigned as an executive Director with effect from
30 May 2015. Liu Jun was appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company with effect from 11 September 2014 and an
executive Director with effect from 4 June 2015.

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share option
reserve. For the year ended 31 December 2015, an amount of
share option expense of approximately HK$2,904,000 (2014:
HK$3,880,000) has been recognised with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the Group’s share option reserve.

Bret -

0] MIRBEERARE GBS ERBREL
BRARAME  ETXAHZBEBHARERD
RBERBREZ GRRRT » ARATTREHR
FHEI0FHRABERITEBRE MR-
ERENA-RE-ZTRF+-A=1+—HLE
HRER _ZELF-A-—HE_ZTNF+=
A=t RLE=EBFEFKE25% 2 BRE
5 -

ARBERDREERBLET SN —TTRF
AAT-RERBEREISLERAMNE B
ZRAF-A-AENNEEFSFHE25%
B -

HREBEERABEERBLETER _ZTLF
T—AT=RERBEREISZEREAME » &
—ETN\FNA-BENNESEESFKE 25%
ZIRERE

HBBEARNHAEEEBREANER_TTNF
SR N\BEREREZBEEEANS
H-ZTNENATRAARNNEEESEEE
25% 2 FEIRIELRIE

BRBEERAREERBLET N _TTAF
NAZRERBEREZSLZARANE  B=F
—ZFEN AT ARRAOEFESFRE25% 2
B ERE -

HRBEERDRBEERBREN N T —=F
tATNBEERBREZSZEARAME 1=

—MEP A+ A RROEFESF A 25%
ZERERE

i)y RKYFER-_ZE-AFAEA=THHEHTE
FoRER-_T-MFAA+-REZERER
HITBEY —ZT-—AFANEEEZERES -

RELBHFEETREER L ZBREs AF
ERREHXH TR AEE 2 BRERE
ERERE BE—_Z—AE+-_A=1+—8
IEFE - ERERERES 542,904,000
Bt (—ZF—P04F : 3,880,000587T) » WEK
RNEE 7 IR EERIEERAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-_Z—hF+ZA=T—HILFE
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BEALRS
Compensation of key management personnel FEEEA S 2R
The remuneration of key management other than the RAFE - EMFE 1L ATEENEZHE AN
Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in note 11 during the TEEBABMEOT ¢
year was as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HEF —PUeF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Short-term benefits HHAE A 4,453 4,155
Post-employment benefits BEBR 12 1B T 316 243
Share-based payments LARRAD 32 45F - 288
4,769 4,686
The remuneration of Directors and key executives is EELTETRAEBCHecHTFHEZEEeKE
determined by the remuneration committee having regard EAEBEKEES  EARMAREZSERER
to the Group’s operating results, responsibilities and W TISHBIEET
performance of individuals and market trends.
40. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 40. HE—FEM B2 F

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
disposed of its 60% equity interest in /& & & WHER A
[R 72 B]Shanghai Dingxi Internet of Things Technology Limited
(“Shanghai Dingxi”) at a total consideration of RMB4,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$5,000,000) to the non-
controlling shareholder (“Purchaser”) of Shanghai Dingxi
(“Disposal”). The consideration will be satisfied by cash, of
which (i) the first instalment of RMB1,200,000 will be settled
at the date of the completion of the Disposal; (ii) the second
instalment of RMB600,000 will be settled on the 90th day
of the date of the completion of the Disposal; and (iii) the
final instalment of RMB2,200,000 will be settled at the third
anniversary date of the date of completion of the Disposal. The
settlement date of final instalment of RMB2,200,000 could be
delayed to the sixth anniversary date of the date of completion
of the Disposal at the discretion of the Purchaser. Fair value of
the consideration receivable is estimated by using discounted
cash flow method with imputed interest rate of 7.345% per
annum at initial recognition and subsequently measured
at amortised cost. As at 31 December 2015, the unsettled
consideration of RMB2,038,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,560,000) was recorded as consideration receivable in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

REZE-_Z—AF+=-_A=+—RHLFE " &
SEM EERFYEBANEERAR ([ LER
D) IERERE((ES D) HEER EE&RH
60% Rt - HARE AR AR 4,000,000 7T (HEE
7R 495,000,000 7T) ([ HEFIE]) - BERE
AR SER - R EE@AE%QO0,000%
HREHESEEKBAREN (i BFZHPARE
600,000 T &7 & EIH5E ;ﬂzaﬁﬁfééﬁ%%fa
5 T (i) & & — EAA R B 2,200,000 7T A H
EEHETKAPEN=AFTEREN - BAHA
B 5 &% — 2 AR ¥ 2,200,000 7T HY3E 3 B
HIGEE HEEBETKABENNEFER -
AR BN AT EDR A RRERARER
ENMRARGEEFREBF 745 EHARER
R AGTE - M- E—AF+-_A=1+—
B HARESHREARE 2,038,000t (HE
472,560,000 7870 ) AR A BT ISR R R EC 1R
W& o



40. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (coNTINUED)

BRAMKEBERAE —F AFF7%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

40. HE—FEMEB 23 (8)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$2,191,000 was
recognised to profit or loss during the year ended 31

December 2015.

Consideration received:

Cash received
Deferred cash consideration

Total consideration received
and receivable

Analysis of assets and liabilities
over which control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other payables

Bank balances and cash

Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:

Consideration received and receivable

Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

Cash consideration
Less: Bank balances and cash
disposed of

REBE-—Z—RAF+-_A=+—HIFE &
& — R E A AR U z£ 2,191,000 TR 18 5
FRHEER ©

HK$'000

FHT
BlRRE :
BUERE 1,507
FIER S RE 2,565
B R E AR

4,072

HK$'000

FAT
KEREEBNEEREBDT
L E =Y 15
B 5 REMER B (106)
RITHEB RIS 1,972
HEEEFE 1,881
HE—EHBATRERE
B R U (B 4,072
HEEEFE (1,881)
HEMERE 2,191
HEEEXZBERATE
ReERE 1,507
W HEZRITESRNES

(1,972)

(465)
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BE-_T—RF+=A=1T—HLFE

41. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS

41. WK

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group entered into two capital injection agreements
(the “Injection Agreements”) with the respective
shareholders of REET ¥TEKIZE B L REFIM AR
2 A] (unofficial English translation being Dongguan
Xinlubiao Automatic Equipment Technology Limited)
(“Dongguan Xinlubiao”) and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda
(shareholders of Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen
Zhuoxuda collectively referred as the “Vendors”).
Pursuant to the Injection Agreements, the Group
and the Vendors agreed to inject capital by way of
subscribing new registered capital of Dongguan
Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda. After the capital
injection, the Group owned 70% and 78% equity
interests in Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen
Zhuoxuda respectively. Pursuant to the Injection
Agreements, the Group shall inject HK$15,021,000
by way of cash and the Vendors shall inject
HK$6,075,000, of which, HK$3,115,000 by way of
property, plant and equipment and HK$2,960,000
by way of cash. As at 31 December 2015, the capital
injection from the Group has been completed and the
capital injection from non-controlling shareholders has
not been completed and was recorded as amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries.
The acquisitions have been accounted for using the
purchase method.

(a)

REBE-Z—AF+-A=+—HLHF
B AEEBEREMHRZEESCRE
BT AR 2B ([REHEELD RFEI
FEMESAZBRE(EEHMBE R
BEMEZRREARAIER DI MIE
FEHFER(EERE]D - REEER
HAKERESREARBRTHIE
ERFIEMENFEmERN T T
B NEER  AREDRIEEREH
FAZ MR B ENETO% K 78% A% #E ©
BEFEFTEHZ  AEBURESFREE
15,021,000/87T * ME A% & 6,075,000
BT R UAYE - BEREEN R
JEE 3,115,000 7T - RARES I FE
2,960,000/t - HE-_T—HF+—-A
=t+—B AEEERREE  MKH
FEVERR AR ER 2 X B M AR TERK WL VERE
UGB BB A B FEIEARAR B FRIA - B IR
FHEDEABEEANR -



41. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (conNTINUED)

BRANBKEBERAT — & aFF7%

Notes to the Consolidated F inancial Statements
RE M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

41. WHEET (&)

(a)

(continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisitions:

REER S ERREERAE -

HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment  ¥12 - = M &AE 507
Inventories & 4,840
Trade and notes receivables JEWE SRR N Z 16,818
Other receivables, deposits EEKERTR « e KB FRIE
and prepayments 2,432
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRR ® 5,629
Trade and note payables BB SRR R EE (3,459)
Other payables, deposits EMEMERER - elige
received and accruals Mg FR (3,956)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (7,536)
Tax payable JERREIE (679)
14,596
Less: Amounts due to B R E AT
non-controlling JEFERR AR R R TE
shareholders of (K1a1)
subsidiaries (Note i)

The fair value as well as the gross contractual
amounts of trade receivables, notes receivables,
other receivables, deposits and prepayments
acquired amounted to HK$19,250,000 at the date
of acquisitions. At the acquisitions date, none of
the contractual cash flows was not expected to be
collected.

(14,596)

RKREEH WEZE S EERA -
R R  HMEERE RehE
NRBEZAFEERNLGHNEER
19,250,000/ 7T » MUFE B H - A TR
i 2 A HIRE ©
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BE—_Z—AF+=A=T—HIFE

41. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (conTINUED)

41. WIEEH (8

(a)  (continued)

No goodwill arose in the acquisitions of Dongguan
Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda.

(@ (#&)

WiE R R RORY | R i 2

Net cash inflow on acquisitions  WHEKTB AR ZFHERA

of the subsidiaries
Bank balances and WEESRI TSR IR &
cash acquired

Notes:

(i) The Vendors are entitled to the distribution of the
retained profits of Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen
Zhuoxuda before the completion of the capital injection.
The aggregated amount of retained profits of Dongguan
Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda of HK$14,596,000 was
recorded as amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

of subsidiaries at the completion date.

(ii) In accordance with the Injection Agreements, if the profit
of Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda are able
to reach a pre-determined level, the Group will be required
to sell to the Vendors at most 19% equity interests in
Dongguan Xinlubiao and 27% equity interests in Shenzhen
Zhuoxuda at a pre-determined consideration within 3
or 5 years from the completion of the capital injection
(the “Additional Considerations”). In the opinion of the
Directors, the fair value of the Additional Considerations
have been determined as insignificant as at the date of

completion of the capital injection.

Included in the profit for the year is HK$5,029,000
attributable to the additional business generated
by Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda.
Revenue for the year includes HK$35,630,000
generated from Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen
Zhuoxuda.

EHE -
HK$'000
TETT
5,629

0] ERERETHRITIERE D IRRZHE
BRARNSAENRE AT - REHK
BERIESAENRBENRSER
14,596,00078 7T + H7eRk B SRR 1ERETHT
B R RIZER AR AR AOR o

(i)  BIETEWE  WREMEERRIIE
EEMEEERTEERT - REBEANE
ERRH = BFR  RREREQE S
HEHRZ REEHIEIR 19% I SR =50
E27%BRE(TRIMAED) - EFRA - B
SMUBR A TEIIE TR B SEERT
ERe

AR ROR Y R REATE £ 2 5850
SRR FEH T A 5,029,000/8 7T © B
EBEERFEMEMEEZFER
A %35,630,000 7T °



41. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (conNTINUED)

BARNBEBERAT —F AFFH
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

41. BT (&)

(a)

(continued)

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2015, total group revenue for the year would have been
HK$3,204,335,000, and profit for the year would have
been HK$69,593,000. The ‘pro forma’ information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015, nor is
it intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro forma’ revenue and profit of
the Group had Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen
Zhuoxuda been acquired at the beginning of the
current year, the Directors have:

° calculated depreciation of plant and equipment
acquired on the basis of the fair values arising
in the initial accounting for the business
combination rather than the carrying amounts
recognised in the pre-acquisition financial
statements; and

° determined borrowing costs based on the
funding levels, credit ratings and debt/equity
position of the Group after the business
combination.

On 5 December 2014, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest of Shanghai Boshen Vending Machine
Limited (“Shanghai Boshen”) at an aggregate
consideration of RMB9,828,000 (equivalent to
HK$12,286,000) from two independent third
parties. Shanghai Boshen is principally engaged in
manufacturing, sales and leasing of vending machines.

(a)

BN _F—HF—A—BxX  F
W& B AU A 155 3,204,335,000 47T
F A M 769,593,000 7T © [ 8 |
BRHEEHBZ MM IR MKER
“E-HF-A-HERHNBELTASE
B ERESZRARKEESE T
HERBREERTR -

TR EETE i UL i RS2 ¥ B AR BRI = ALz
RAFEVETRZ [HE | WA T EH
o EE=C:

o HEAEWEEERREBITERZE
Bah T atELEZRF
18 MIFERRUB AT B HRRER
ZIRHERE - M

o HEEEMRERARUEBAHER
KB ESKYF  ERAFMERE
B,/ AR R ELE o

R_Z—NE+-FRHB AEBEMNU
AR E AR BS828000T( 1 % R
12,286,000 78 7T ) [ 44 832 56 = 5 W ig
LEERAHEERERAR([ LEE
B )100% g - BSEBEEIBHRESE
EEWMRE HERBEER -
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BE—_ZT hF+SHSTHETE

41. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (conTINUED)

41. WIEEH (8

(b)

(continued)

Consideration transferred

Cash B
Assets acquired and liabilities R B BARERR

recognised at the date WEEERBE
of acquisition:
Property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% - B MK
Inventories FE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H M FERGRIA
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERS
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMENFIE

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$3,659,000 at the date of acquisition. At the
acquisition date, none of the contractual cash flows was
not expected to be collected.

No goodwill arose in the acquisition of Shanghai
Boshen.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of the subsidiary

Bank balances and cash acquired UBEIR7T4E#R MIR &
Cash consideration paid BERNRENRE

(b (&)
HERRE

HK$'000
TAT

12,286

HK$'000
TR
13,001
285
3,659
6,632
(11,291)
12,286
REERH - FIEEE S REMBRYGRIEZ A

FEE RS XS R3,659,000/8 7T « B
BHY  WEBHHREZ SRR -

Wi D g Rl A EEL

WM E AR ZRERHRE

HK$'000
THET

6,632
(12,286)

(5,654)



41. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (conNTINUED)

BARNBEBERAT —F AFFH
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE=T A5 +=A=1+—ALFE

41. WHEET (&)

(b)

(continued)

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December
2014 is a loss of HK$561,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by Shanghai Boshen.
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014
includes HK$2,582,000 generated from Shanghai
Boshen.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2014, the revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 would have been HK$2,356,843,000,
and profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would have been HK$34,158,000. The ‘pro forma’
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2014, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

In determining the ‘pro forma’ revenue and profit of
the Group had Shanghai Boshen been acquired at the
beginning of the current year, the Directors have:

° calculated depreciation of plant and equipment
acquired on the basis of the fair values arising
in the initial accounting for the business
combination rather than the carrying amounts
recognised in the pre-acquisition financial
statements; and

o determined borrowing costs based on the
funding levels, credit ratings and debt/equity
position of the Group after the business
combination.

(b)

EEEERMEL 2RI EREREEE
E-FE+-_A=+—BIEFEENE
[E18561,0008 7T - BE T —MF+=
A=t—RIFELEERMELEZF
JEUA 52,582,000 47T ©

HRBEBN T —NFE—F—AB%k &
E-FT-—NF+-_A=+—HLEFER
£ B8 2 WA £2,356,843,000% 7T
BE-_Z—NF+_A=+—BILFE
i A 5 34,158,000 87T © [EE | &
BIERBAZ AMIEIFRERMBER=Z
—FE—A—AERAER T AEE
ERESZIRARKEESE - TTRE
HiEZERNTEA -

REEMEE LEEERAFEIIE T
Rz [ | AR - =0 -

o HEFEYBEEMRETERIZE
BaHTR 2P EAELEZRF
18 - MIFER BRI R TER
ZIEmERE &

o EEEEERARNUEBAHHEAR
SEZESKFE  ERIARRE
1B/ AR R EE -
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42. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

42. FREXRZ

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the purchase
consideration of property, plant and equipment amounting to
HK$12,103,000 (2014: HK$4,796,000) remained unsettled
and included in other payables, deposits received and
accruals as at 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group and
certain non-controlling shareholders incorporated certain
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of which capital injection
from non-controlling interests amounting to HK$2,429,000
(2014: Nil) remained unsettled and included in amounts due
from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the capital
injection of HK$6,075,000 from non-controlling shareholders
of Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda in respect
to the acquisition of business (as detailed in note 41(a))
remained unsettled and included in amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries.

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

HE—_ZT-—haf+_A=t+—HIFE B=
WE - BE RBREHREF A 12,103,000 7%
TT(—ZF—PU4E : 4,796,000 7T) K& - I
AR ZE-RE+-_A=1+—HthHMtE
ERFR - B S RIEF AR -

HE-_Z-—AF+-_A=+—RHLFE K&
B & & T IR R A mA LS TIER BN B
NAE] - B A TR ERE & 2,429,000 %
TT(ZE—WF BRI WHRZ=ZF—h
F+ZA=+— Bt AEYME R R AR AR
HZIER o

HE-_Z—RAF+-_A=1+—HILFE kA
IR I R B ST AR MOR I S E S S
75 (NP sE 41(a) R FraFat ) J2 & 6,075,000 %8 7T
RIS - Wat AFEURHT B A B IEIE AR AR BT
B -

43. TEWBARZFE

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

RZE—RAFR-ZT—NF+-A=+—HXK
NalZMBEARFIBIT

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company

ALRFERAER/ HREA LA
Directly Indirectly

Principal activities

L3 3 TEER

2015 2014 2015 2014

E-5f —3-RF -E-EF -3-F

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered capital
Name of subsidiary AL/ BREARER
KEAAEE RERLE R4 /ifEs
SIM Technology Group 13 October 2004 Ordinary shares
(BVI) Limited BVI US$12,233
“EIMETATEE LER1BER
ARRLHE
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited 17 December 1999 Ordinary shares
EEETT£ERAE Samoa US$2,002
“NANETZATER  E@R2002%T

BETEE

100% 100% -

- - 100%

- Investment holding

REZR

100%  Investment holding
Rash
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Notes to the Consolid

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

43. TEMBE AT 2#FE (@)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capitall registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital KOAFERATE/ SRER LA
Name of subsidiary HRAL/FR REIE 1 Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEARAE RERBES RA/2mER E# [ TEEH
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-3f —E-mF Z%-RF -3
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom? 9 November 1993 Registered and - 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sales of display
LERERGR The PRC contributed capital modules in the PRC
—MZET-ANA RMB200,000,000 TrELERBERTER
bt AMRELER
AR 200,000,007
Shanghai Simcom? 5 December 2002 Registered and - 100% 100%  Design and development of handsets and
icrsich The PRC contributed capital solutions and wireless communication
“EECETCARR EREHER modules in the PRC
hEl S$5,000,000 BN ER RRETRREATE
5000000%7T RESENESR
Shanghai Suncom Logistics Limited" 23 September 2003 Registered and - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing,
LEBRGRETARAG! The PRC contributed capital sales and marketing of
“EZSEABCHER USH400,000 the Group s products and
ke A REGER provides logistics
400,005 senvices in the PRC
RPERE M HEREEALE
EmRREMRRE
Simcom International Holdings 2 October 2003 Ordinary share - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited BV US$1 RERR
s = LERIEL
ABRAHE
Suncom International Holdings 12 January 2004 Ordinary share - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited BV USs1 REER
“EEINE-R+-R TERIER
EBRaiE
SIM Technology HK Limited 21 April 2004 Ordinary share - 100% 100%  Provision of administrative services in
BAEARAA Hog Kong HtSL Horg Kong
“TEMEMACT-R EERLER REBRETIR
Shanghai Speedcomm Technology 16 November 2005 Registered and - 100% 100%  Design and development of handsets and
Limited" The PRC contributed capital solutions and wireless communication
PEBUEENRIERAR  ZTERET-ATSE RMBT500,000 modules in the PRC
hEl AMEELER BN ER RRETRREAE

ARHET7500,0007

RESENER
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

43. TEMBE AT 2 #FE (@)

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration

Narme of subsidiary AL/ R

WEARAR RERS

Max Vision Limited 17 September 2003

ARERAH Hong Kong
“EE-ENATLA
B

Max Vision (Shanghai) Limited" 8 December 2003

REAST(LR)ERATY  ThePRC
ZZR=ETA\A
el

Simcom Wireless* 31 October 2006

AEER! The PRC
ZEERETA=T-R
el

Shanghai SIM Technology Limited! 2 August 2006

B (08) ARAA! The PRC
—E55E\AZH
HE

Shanghai Simcom Electronic Limited" 21 November 2006

LEGEETERAE! The PRC
ZE55ET-AzT-R
hE

Sino Team Investments Limited 3 January 2007
Samoa
ZF5t5-A=R

BETEE

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BETRAR

R/ ERER

Ordinary shares
HKS2
LiER2AET

Registered and
contributed capital
US$200,000

A RESES
200,000%7

Registered and
contributed capital
US$1,000,000

A RESES
1,000,000% 7

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB40,000,000

HhREGER
AR 40,000,0007C

Registered and
contributed capital
US$200,000

HMREGER
2000001

Ordinary share
Usst
ERRLET

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
RAAMBRAEE/ARER A
Directly Indirectly
B 3
2015 2014 2015

-1 CTME

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

“E-1f %

2014

—mE

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

IBER

Investment holding

RERK

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group s products
and provides logistics services in the
PRC

RPERE 5 HEREEALE
EmRREmRRS

Design and development of wireless
communication modules in the PRC

EERERH RS ERRARR

Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC
RpE TR RERR

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group" s products
and provides logistics services in the
PRC

RAERE M HERERASE
ERRREEDRRSR

Investment holding

REZK
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43. TEME AT 2#FE (@)

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered capital
Narme of subsidiary HREL/ER BRIRER
WEAREE RERBES R4 /sfEs
Shanghai Basecom Limited” 18 April 2007 Registered and
BEREMRN (L) ARAA"  ThePRC contributed capital
“ZZ+ERATI\A 1$$200,000
bt AMRELER
2000001
Shenyang SIM Technology Limited® 25 Qctober 2007 Registered and
RARBONE) ERAR? The PRC contributed capital
ZERLETACTRA 1$$10,000,000
hE AMRELER
10,000,000
Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited 8 November 2007 Registered and
(“SYRE"P The PRC contributed capital
ERER (15 ARAF? S L US$13,100,000
o A RESES
13,100000%
Shenyang SIM Simeom Technology - 24 July 2008 Registered and
Limited* The PRC contributed capital
IERAGEANRERREY  ZFEN\ELACTOA RMB30,000,000
hE AR EGER
AR 30,000,000
Shenzhen Simcom Technology 28 August 2008 Registered and
Limited The PRC contributed capital
RIFRENEERAR ZSZ/ENAZHAE RMB5000000
hE AR EGER
AR 50000007
Simeom Holdings HK Limited 22 September 2008 Ordinary share
RHERERERAR Hong Kong HKS1
“ERN\EARCTCR  EERIAR
B
Shanghai iLove Limited 27 February 2009 Registered and
PEEREARGERAT  ThePRC contributed capital
ZEENEZACTEA US§3,000,000
hEl AMEELER

3,000,000%7

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
AAAMBRAEE/SRER A
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-3f —E-mF -3 —TMF

Principal activities

IZER

- - 100% 100%  Design and development of handsets and
solutions and wireless communication
modules in the PRC

B ER RRETRREATE
REsARER

- - 100% 100%  Investment holding of land use rights in

the PRC
Rz HRRE RERR

- - 60% 60%  Properties development in the PRC
ERERENEER

- - 100% 100%  Design and development of handsets and
solutions and wireless communication
modules in the PRC

RS RAETRREANE
kEgRRER

- - 100% 100%  Design and development of wireless
communication modules in the PRC

EERER RS EREARS

- - 100% 100%  Investment holding

- - 100% 100%  Investment holding
R
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

Group Limited Annual Report 2015

Financial Statements

43. TEME AT 2 FHE (@)

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
Narme of subsidiary AL/ R
WEARAE AR
Shanghai Xinkang Electronic 5 January 2009
Technology Limited* The PRC

LESRETREERAA

HE
Shenyang SIM Simcom Trading 5 June 2009
Limited* The PRC
IERAFEAZSERAE  TENENARA
B
Goldsey Limited 31 January 2008
BitARAH Hong Kong
“E5\E-A=1+-A
B
Smartwireless Technology* 13 February 2007
FRELEEREARAT! The PRC
“ETEZATEA
e
Shanghai Mabile Phone Public 21 December 2009
Testing Platform Co., Ltd.* The PRC
LEFEAHARRRTEER —TEAETAZT-H
e k|
Shenyang Chenda Precision 15 November 2010
Industry Co., Ltd. * The PRC
EBRERTANERLR! “2-TET-ATAA
e
SIM Northeast Limited 9 November 2012
Samoa
“Z-—ET-ANH

& T

BEGHS

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
RAAMERAEE/ARER A
Indirectly

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BETRAR

R/ ERER

Directly

ER
2015 2014
Z§-1F CE-MF

Registered and - -
contributed capital
RMB20,000,000

HMRELER
AR 20,000,000

Registered and - -
contributed capital
RMB2,000,000

AMRELGER
AR 2,000,000

Ordinary shares - -
HK$18,000,000
LR 1800000057

Registered and - -
contributed capital
RMB20,500,000

HhREGER
AR 20,500,0007C

Registered and = -
contributed capital
RMB20,000,000

HhREGER
AR20,00000070

Registered and - -
contributed capital
RMB30,000,000

HMREGER
AR30,0000007

Ordinary share - -
Uss1

LAR1%T

2015
Z8-1f

100%

100%

100%

100%

81.5%

90%

100%

2014

—3-mE

100%

100%

60%

60%

81.5%

90%

100%

Principal activities

IEER

Design and development of wireless
communication modules in the PRC

EREUERT RARESENER

Procurement, outsourcing sales and
marketing of the Group” s products
and provides logistics services in the
PRC

RPERE M HEREEALE
EnRREmRRSE

Investment holding

RERR

Design and development of handsets and
solutions in the PRC

RPERHRRETRRBATR

Design and development of handsets and
solutions in the PRC

IR RRETRIBATR

Manufacturing and sales of display
modules in the PRC
RPEEEREERTER

Not yet commence business

AR
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Notes to the Consolid

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EME A F 2515 (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capitall registered capital

incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company

registration registered capital KAAFERATE/ SRER LA
Name of subsidiary HRAL/FR ERIRMR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEARAR RERLE RA/2MER E# 54 TEEH

2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-1f M ZB-RF CEQF

Seamount Limited 23 November 2012 Ordinary share - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Samoa Uss1 RABR
SECET-ACER EERIER
EEDES
Ever Honest Limited 13 November 2012 Ordinary share - - 100% 100%  Not yet commence business
Samoa USs1 HAEE
“E-ZE+-ATZR TERiER
EEDHES
Jiangsu Baidao Electronic Limited® 18 April 2013 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Design and development of handsets and
THEEETARAE? The PRC contributed capital solutions in the PRC
ZE-ZEMATI\R RMB50,000,000 KRBT RREFRRERAR
mE AR EGER
ARH50,000,0007T
Shanghai Huanjin Electronic Limited* 14 May 2013 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
LEESSFERAR! The PRC contributed capital RARR
Z5-=FRAHRA USD2,000,000
bl AMREGER
2,000,000%
Taizhou SIM Real Estate Limited® 7 March 2013 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Properties development in the PRC
FNRHEZERAT? The PRC contributed capital ERENENEER
ZE-ZEZALA RMB120,000,000
bt AMRELER
AR 120,000,007
Shanghai Dingxi Internet of Things 15 May 2013 Registered and - - 0% 60% - Not yet commence busingss
Technology Limited! The PRC contributed capital WREE
LESEMRANEERRE  —T-ZERATHA RMB10,000,000
hE AMRELER
AR¥10,0000007C
Jiangsu Chenri Investment Limited* 24 April 2013 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
THEAREBRAA! The PRC contributed capital RARR
“E-ZEMAZTMA RMB50,000,000
i A REGER

ARH500000007
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

43. TEMBE AT 2 #FE (@)

Name of subsidiary

HELFER

Jiangsu Yunmao Internet of Things
Technology Limited*
THZEMBERAERLA

Shanghai Wide-Top Financial
Leasing Co.,Ltd."
LEBSRERERRAR)!

Jiangsu Hangjin Electronic
Technology Limited®
TEm#ETHRBRAR?

Shanghai Zhenkang Electronics
Limited"
LEERETERAR!

Jiangsu Jixin Internet of Things
Technology Limited®
IR ENEARAR:

Jiangsu Baizhi Electronic Limited?

THREETARAR

Global Union Holdings Limited

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
HREL/ER
RERBES

7 June 2013

The PRC
“%-Z%7AtA
E

17 July 2013
The PRC
“RSELATLR
E

9July 2013

The PRC
“E3-ZELANA
el

17 September 2013
The PRC
“I-ZEARTHR
nE

31 December 2013
The PRC

“F-ZEtZA=1-H

o

7 November 2013

The PRC
“E-=F+-A+A
B

13 November 2012
Samoa
“E-CET-AEA
EEGEE

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BRARER

R/ sER

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB10,000,000

HMREGER
AR 10,000,000

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB5,000,000

AMRELER
ARE50000007C

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB30,000,000

HRREGER
AR 30,000,000

Registered and
contributed capital
USD100,000

HMREGER
100,000%7

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB30,000,000

AMRE4ER
AR 30,000,000

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB30,000,000

AMRELER
AR%30,000,0007C

Ordinary share
usnt

LER1ET

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital

held by the Company
RORFRRARE/ SREA LA
Directly Indirectly Principal activities
ER 3 IERH

2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-1F

“2-mF ZR-BF TQE

100% 100%  Development of internet of things
equipment

RENBERE

100% 100%  Finance lease service in the PRC

EhERIBATRERY

100% 100%  Development of internet of things
equipment

RENBERE

100% 100%  Development of internet of things
equipment

RENBERE

100% 100%  Development of internet of things
equipment

RENBERE

100% 100%  Development of internet of things
business

SRUBEER

100% 100%  Not yet commence business

HAEE
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43. TEME AT 2#FE (@)

Name of subsidiary

HELFLR

Global Keen Limited
B9ERAA

Alpha Apex Limited

Wuxi Simeom 0T Limited*

FREMBENR (B ERAE)!

Shanghai Boshen Vending Machine
Limited*

LERRaEERARLA

Shanghai Yunhao Tradmg Limited*
LEERESERAR

Shanghai Yunmao IOT Limited"
HEERYRERRERAR

Shenyang Zhonghong Intel-Tech
Limited"

BT EEHEARAR

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
HRAL/ R
RERBE

9 August 2013

Hong Kong
“E-=E)\ANA
Bk

26 October 2012
Samoa
ZE-CETRZTAA
EEDEE

17 January 2011

The PRC
“E——E-A+tA
hEl

5 December 2014

The PRC
“E-RETZARA
e

1 September 2014
The PRC
“Z-REAA-H
e

13 November 2014

The PRC
ZE-MET-AT=A
hEl

28 October 2014

The PRC
ZE-METAZTAR
o

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BRARMR
RA/HHER

Ordinary share
HKS1
LakLET

Registered and
contributed capital
UsD$1

AMRESER 1T

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB5,000

AR EGER
ARE50007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB10,000,000

AMREGAAARS
10,000,0007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB38,000,000

HRESETARS
38,000,0007C

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB10,000,000

AMRESETARS
10,000,0007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB30,000,000

AR EGER
AR 30,000,007

Proportion of nominal value of
share capitall registered capital

held by the Company
RAAMERAEE/SRER 2
Directly Indirectly Principal activities
Ef 3 ITER
2015 2014 2015 2014
“2-3f “E-mF Z%-RF C—TF
- - 100% 100%  Not yet commence business
HREX
- - 100% 100%  Not yet commence business
HAEE

- - 100% 100%  Development of internet of things
equipment

REMBERE

- - 100% 100%  Finance lease service and trading of
snacks in the PRC
EPEREBERERER
t=3RE5

PRC
ErRETRBRES

- - 100% 100%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
ErEfEERES

- - 75% 60%  Development of internet of things
equipment

RENBERE

A RENE

98.7% 51%  Procurement and trading of snacks in the

-
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Name of subsidiary

HEAAER

Shanghai Simcom System Limited
FRARERSENR (L) AR
Bt

Shenzhen Zhuoxunda Technology
Development Co., Limited"

RImERENRERARA"

Hangzhou Kawo Automation
Technology Co., Limited*
ARRBBMRERRR!

(Guangdong Chentuo Robot
Technology Co., Limited*
ERRABEANEERRE)!

Dongguan Xinlubiao Automation
Equipment Technology Co.,
Limited*

RETHRREBIRERIER
R

Shenyang Jingrincheng Automation
Technology Co., Limited®

ERREIRDANARR!

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
HREL/ER
RERBE

17 March 2014

The PRC
“E-EEZAT4A
4B

4 January 2015

The PRC
“Z-15-ANA
P

13 February 2015

The PRC
“E-REZATEH
HE

11 March 2015

The PRC
“2-RF-At-8
e

14 May 2015
The PRC
“F-REFRATER
RE

24 August 2015

The PRC
“T-RE/\AZT0A
hE

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BRARER
RA/sER

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB20,000

HMREGER
ARE200007T

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB7,000,000

AMRELER
ARE7,000,0007C

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB3,750,000

AMRELER
AR¥3,750,0007C

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB6,606,000

HhREGER
AR E6,606,0007C

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB10,000,000

HRREGER
ARE10,000,0007C

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB5,059,000

HMRELER
ARE5,059,0007C

2015
Z%-1f

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
AORFRRARE/ SREA LA
Directly Indirectly
=43 5
2014 2015
“I-ME ZB-FF

2014
—3-ME

100%

100%

- - 78% -

. S a0% -

- - 80% -

- - 70% -

- - 60% -

Principal activities

IBER

Building design and construction of smart

home
Gapeiaiets

Development of automated test
equipment and software

RREBLRAREREN

Development of automated test
equipment

REEBLRIRG

Development of automated test
equipment

REEDLRIRE

Development of automated test
equipment

ERERI B

Development of automated test
equipment

REEBLRARE
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

43. TEMBE AT 2FE (@)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
fegistration registered capital RAAFERAER/ SRER LA
Name of subsidiary HRAL/ 2R EERER Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEARAR RERbE RA/2MER B 53 TEEH
2015 2014 2015 2014
“2-Rf “E-MF ZF-RF E-IF
Hefei Yunhao Trade Co,, Limited* 19 December 2014 Registered and - - 80% - Trading of snacks in the PRC
ARERESERAR! The PRC contributed capital THENETRES
“E-RETZATNA RMB1,200,000
hE AMREGER
ARE1,2000007C
Hangzhou Yunyou Trade Co., 3 November 2015 Registered and - - 51% - Not yet commence business
Limitedt The PRC contributed capital HAEE
NEEEHERAR Z5-RFt-A=A RVB2,000,000
bt AMRELER
AR 20000007
Shenzhen Yunding Vending 16 January 2015 Registered and - - 51% ~ Not yet commence business
Operators Co,, Limited* The PRC contributed capital HAEE
MIMERaIEERERER  —T-15-A1/H RMB9,501,000
A mE RRJEE
ARE9501,0007
Shanghai Bachen Intelligent 14 October 2015 Registered and - - 100% - Not yet commence business
Technology Co., Limited The PRC contributed capital ETNE
LAERBERMERAR! “E-n5TATEA RMB5,500,000
hE A REGER
ARE5,500,0007C
Shanghai Jizhi Automation 29 September 2014 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Development of internet of things
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC contributed capital equipment
DEERESRRERAT  ZT-NEAAZTAR  RMB5000,000 RENLERE
bl AR EGER
ARE5,000,0007C
1 Wholly foreign owned enterprises (“WFOE”) registered in the PRC. ! EREERZINEBERE -
2 Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered in the PRC. 2 FEREEMzPIEERE -
3 Re-investment in WFOE registered in the PRC. 3 BFREVEPEZEM I EBEERE -
4 Domestic Company registered in the PRC. ¢ EREEMz2RERE -

W EAE B A RN A E R AFERER
B A (R AR B E S

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EMB AT ZFH1E (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)
A majority of these subsidiaries operate in sale of handsets ZEMBRARARIONEHEFHREE RS
and solutions, sale of wireless communication modules, R HEBGBAER  WEERE - WBEX
property development, internet of things business and BREGERIEHET - ZEMBRARIZEEER
intelligent manufacturing business. The principal activities of AT -
these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:
Principal place
Principal activities of business Number of subsidiaries
FEEK FTEZEMT MEAREE
2015 2014

—E-HF —T-F
Sale of handsets and solutions PRC 8 16
SHE FHRAAT R A EY
Sale of display modules PRC 1 9
HERRIER A EY
Sale of wireless communication modules PRC 4 4
THE mABAESR A
Property development PRC 2 2
MEER i
Internet of things business PRC 9 13
b7k A
Intelligent manufacturing business PRC 9 -
ERLRLEE FRE
The table below shows details of a non-wholly owned TRET— FWXEIE"““:}:‘%’E@EK#? & e
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling mZIEEEM BT

interests:
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43. TEMBE AT 2#FE (@)

Name of subsidiaries

i) PEEL

SYRE
RiEx

Individually immaterial subsidiaries

with non-controlling interests

FEFERER BRITEANEAA

Summarised financial information for the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014 in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Place of
incorporation
and principal
place of business

AMRIRERERE

PRC
RH

2-1f

Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting rights held by
non-controlling interests
FERBHAS
BRRRERREELH
2015 2014
ZE-[E

40% 40%

Profit allocated to
non-controlling interests

AREFERER 2 EA
2015 2014
“E-3f ZE-[OF
HK$'000 HK$000
TiEn Tir
235 8811

Accumulated non-
controlling interests

ZiERER
2015 2014
ZE-1F ZE-mf
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Tin Tin
76,290 80,625
26,315 5818
102,605 86,443

RNEEHAEA AR ERS ZHBRARNRER
ZE-RAFRZTE-MOF+ZA=t+—HIEF
BzPHERBENT « TXH#EzHBER
BEE D ARIELSEBA AR EEH o
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

43. TEMB AR 2 FH15 (K

SYRE
EREXE
2015 2014
—E—AfF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Non-current assets ERHEE 250 368
Current assets MENEE 301,484 324,446
Current liabilities mENEE (111,009) (123,251)
Total equity B RE 190,725 201,563
Revenue WA 59,042 211,354
Expenses sz (58,455) (189,327)
Profit for the year REE @A 587 22,027
Other comprehensive expense AEEHMEEMR

for the year (11,424) (3,595)
Total comprehensive (expense) AFE2E(FY) RESE5E

income for the year (10,837) 18,432
Profit for the year attributable to YIS IEEEAFEE R

— the owners of SYRE -RHBEZEAAN 352 13,216

— non-controlling interests of SYRE - BB E 2 IR 235 8,811
Profit for the year REE R A 587 22,027
Other comprehensive expense for TR EEEERNFEEMEEMY

the year attributable to

— the owners of SYRE -RABEZHEBA (6,854) (2,157)

— non-controlling interests of SYRE - RHEFE IR ER (4,570) (1,438)
Other comprehensive expense AEEHEMPEFR

for the year (11,424) (3,595)
Total comprehensive (expense) THSEELMAFERE

income for the year attributable to (R Wz1a%s

— the owners of SYRE -EABEZHEREA (6,502) 11,059

— non-controlling interests of SYRE - RHEE IR ER (4,335) 7,373
Total comprehensive (expense) AFEE2HE (X)) KGR

income for the year (10,837) 18,432
Net cash (outflow) inflow from LRI S OR L) RAFEE

operating activities (31,225) 26,808
Net cash outflow from investing B GRS R FE

activities (18) (1,050)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from REEESRS ORLD) RAFEE

financing activities (6,004) 5,766
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be ORE)RAFHE (37,247) 31,524




44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

EANBEEBRARAR —F AFFF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TE MR IR
For the year ended 31 December 2015

BEEE AT LS A=+ ALLFE

44, RNR BB AR R R w#E

Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables
Bank balances

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities
Capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
RITB AR ZIRE
FE W Bt /B8 xR FROR

RBEE
H it el R IA
RITHEER

REAE
FETH BB & R F0R
H At S AR S FERT50R

RBEEFE
HEERRBAE
BEAXR#E

N

G

S

2015 2014
—E-FHfF —T—pE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET
118,401 118,401
1,074,295 1,048,233
1,192,696 1,166,634
623 589

140 273

763 862

106 106

1,190 1,319
1,296 1,425
(533) (563)
1,192,163 1,166,071
255,790 255,750
936,373 910,321
1,192,163 1,166,071
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44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

44, RN T FBAR TR K A (8D

Movement in the Company’s reserves

At 1 January 2014 RZE-WE
-A-8
Profit and total comprehensive  AFEEFIREE
income for the year Ynes
Transfer upon forfeiture of R B R
share options
Recognition of equity-settled BRARREE 2
share-based payments B OIES
At 31 December 2014 N=ZT-mE
+-F=1-8
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AFEEFI L
income for the year 2ENREE

Issue of new shares upon
exercising of share options

RITERRER ST
Hii

Transfer upon exercise of TR R RS
share options
Share options lapsed BREL
Recognition of equity-settled BRARELE 2
share-based payments B OIES
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F
tZA=t-A

EARREEE
Capital Share
Share Share  redemption option Special Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
Ba  ROOEE EFEORGE BRERE  RIRE  RHER @zt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TAR FAR TEL TR FAR TEL
255,750 831,188 2,282 30,624 193,848 (172,688) 1,141,004
- - - - 21,187 21,187
- - - (2,130) - 2,130 -
- - - 3,880 - - 3,880
255,750 831,188 2,282 32,374 193,848 (149371) 1,166,071
- - - - 23,047 23,047
40 101 - - - - 141
- 74 - (74) - - -
- - (4,316) - 4316 -
- - - 2,904 - - 2,904
255,790 831,363 2,282 30,888 193,848 (122,008) 1,192,163




RESULTS
Revenue

Profit (loss) before taxation
Tax credit (charge)

Profit (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

£ |
WA

BBATERN (B8)
BIRTA (F18R)

AEREN (BR)

AT AL
ZAYNSIIZZEUN
FER S

EERAME
REE
wafE

ARAEEA
fefbiEs
IR

BRANEEBEERAR —F aFF%

Financial Summary
M E

For the year ended 31 December

BE+tZA=t-BLEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
“E——F —ECF —T-=F T —E-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT FET FET THL
3,334,099 2,925,316 1,716,079 2,352,353 3,197,289
(41,626) (95,407) (266,178) 50,175 89,650
13,574 (1,492) 13,797 (16,029) (19,775)
(28,052) (96,899) (252,381) 34,146 69,875
(25,478) (96,671) (239,198) 23,967 64,645
(2,574) (228) (13,183) 10,179 5,230
(28,052) (96,899) (252,381) 34,146 69,875
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+-H

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—2——F —E-CF —Z-=F —E-F —E-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT FET FEL TET
3,841,468 3,463,334 2,858,620 3,074,583 3,396,089
(1,766,578) (1,291,461) (899,572) (1,076,129) (1,397,705)
2,074,890 2,171,873 1,959,048 1,998,454 1,998,384
1,986,466 2,082,239 1,880,947 1,912,011 1,895,779
88,424 89,634 78,101 86,443 102,605
2,074,890 2,171,873 1,959,048 1,998,454 1,998,384
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

- HEMRER

HITES Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Ms YEUNG Man Ying (Chairman) Hamilton HM 11 BBt (FE) Hamilton HM 11
Mr WONG Cho Tung (President) Bermuda FHERSLAE (485 Bermuda
Mr ZHANG Jianping (resigned R FEER=_F—AF
as Executive Director with HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL AA=1HEHT ERENEERTELE MY
effect from 30 May 2015) PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HITEE)
HONG KONG
Ms TANG Rongrong ERlEl 2t
Mr CHAN Tat Wing, Richard Unit 2908, 29th Floor, PRIZELE A BB
Mr LIU Hong 248 Queen’s Road East ZIBASTAE BT
Mr LIU Jun (Chief executive officer, Wanchai ERE(BHEHTE SRKEBHR248 5
appointed as Executive Director Hong Kong R-F—AFENAH 29 #2908 &
with effect from 4 June 2015) ZHERPTEE)
PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR RIPBFEREE
Independent AND TRANSFER OFFICE BUKHTES
non-executive Directors
Butterfield Fund Services Butterfield Fund Services
Mr LIU Hing Hung (Bermuda) Limited BEELE (Bermuda) Limited
Mr XIE Linzhen Rosebank Centre BRI AE Rosebank Centre
Mr DONG Yunting 11 Bermudiana Road EERESLE 11 Bermudiana Road
Pembroke Pembroke
AUDIT COMMITTEE Bermuda EREES Bermuda
Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman) HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE BERSE (£E) EBRMBFERSRE
Mr XIE Linzhen REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER HBHRE £
Mr DONG Yunting OFFICE BEELYE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE Computershare Hong Kong Investor FHEES BEAFRBLRELBERAA
Services Limited BA
Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman) Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor BERSE (£E) L
Mr XIE Linzhen Hopewell Centre HBHRE £ SRREF183 5
Mr DONG Yunting 183 Queen’s Road East EERESLE AL
Mr WONG Cho Tung Wanchai FHERLLE 17 1#1712-1716
Hong Kong
COMPANY SECRETARY ARME
WEBSITE ADDRESS ik
Ms WONG Tik =t
http://www.sim.com http://www.sim.com
AUDITORS AT
STOCK CODE BB 4R
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu =) « BAEMR S ETARTT
2000 2000

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO HONG
KONG LAWS

BREEZEERE

LEUNG & LAU REFEDERETT
PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEARET

Hang Seng Bank Limited BARITARAE
Bank of Communications ZiBERTT

Shanghai Pudong Development AR ERRT

Bank
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SIM Technology Group Limited
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